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March 25, 2014

THE PUBLIC UTILITIES BOARD OF MANITOBA

400-330 Portage Avenue

Winnipeg, Manitoba

R3C 0C4

ATTENTION: Mr. H. Singh, Board Secretary and Executive Director
Dear Mr. Singh:

RE: Directive 12 of Order 43/13 and Directive 1(d) of Order 85/13 re: Demand Side
Management Expenditures

Manitoba Hydro and Centra Gas Manitoba Inc. (“Centra”) require confirmation from the
Public Utilities Board of Manitoba (“PUB”) with respect to the Corporation’s interpretation
and intended accounting treatment of Directive 12 from Order 43/13 and Directive 1(d) from
Order 85/13 related to the Demand Side Management (“DSM”) spending in 2012/13 and
2013/14.

Directive 12 of Order 43/13
On April 26, 2013, the PUB issued Order 43/13 with respect to Manitoba Hydro’s 2012/13 &
2013/14 General Rate Application (“GRA™). Directive 12 of Order 43/13 states:

“That Manitoba Hydro’s revenue requirements are determined based on the level of
Demand-Side Management spending as set out in Manitoba Hydro’s 2011 Power
Smart report, i.e., $34 million for 2012/13 and $35 million for 2013/14, for a total of
$69 million. To the extent Manitoba Hydro's spending on Demand-Side Management
in the test years, including the Affordable Energy Fund and the Lower Income Energy
Efficiency Program, falls below $69 million, Manitoba Hydro shall establish a
deferral account for the discrepancy, the disposition of which the Board will consider
at the next General Rate Application.”

In Directive 12 from Order 43/13, the DSM spending amounts identified by the PUB of $34.4
million in 2012/13 and $34.7 million in 2013/14 were determined based on the level of
forecast electric Power Smart spending in the 2011 Power Smart Plan. These amounts did not
include the forecast Affordable Energy Fund (“*AEF”) spending.

Manitoba Hydro filed IFF12 as part of the 2012/13 & 2013/14 GRA, which included an
updated Electric Power Smart budget, as follows:
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Table 1: Electric DSM Budget
2012 Capital Expenditure Forecast
($millions) 2012/13 2013/14 Total
Electric Power Smart $28.5 $28.0 $56.5

The Corporation’s investment in DSM is deferred and amortized over a period of 10 years
commencing in the year after the costs are incurred. The amortization of these costs are then
included in the annual depreciation and amortization expense in revenue requirement.
Accordingly, the amount of DSM included in Manitoba Hydro’s revenue requirement for the
purpose of setting rates includes the amortization of DSM expenditures from prior periods;
not the forecast level of Power Smart spending in the test year.

As such, Manitoba Hydro interprets Directive 12 of Order 43/13 as requiring the difference
between the amortization of the forecast Electric Power Smart amounts included in revenue
requirement and the amount of actual spending that will be reflected in amortization expense
for financial reporting purposes to be captured in a deferral account. The following table
shows the difference between the amount of forecast DSM spending reflected in revenue
requirement for the 2013/14 test year, and the actual level of DSM spending that will be
reflected in amortization expense for financial reporting purposes. The amounts to be included
in a deferral account, in accordance with Manitoba Hydro’s interpretation of Directive 12 of
Order 43/13, is $0.19 million.
Table 2: Electric Power Smart Deferral Account
($millions)

Amortization of Forecast DSM spending for 2012/13 included in $2.85
2013/14 Test Year Revenue Requirement’
Amortization of of actual DSM spending for 2012/13 included in $2.66
2013/14 amortization expense for financial reporting purposes’

Amount to be included in deferral account $0.19
'Represents one-tenth of the 2012/13 forecast spending of $28.5 million
*Represents one-tenth of 2012/13 actual Electric Power Smart Spending of $26.6 million

In future General Rate Applications, the amortization of the actual Electric Power Smart
spending for 2012/13 and 2013/14 will be reflected in DSM amortization expense and as
such, there will be no further differences between forecast amounts included in revenue
requirement and actual spending.

Manitoba Hydro requests the PUB’s confirmation of its interpretation of Directive 12 of
Order 43/13 and notes that the PUB will have further opportunity to consider the disposition
of this deferral account at Manitoba Hydro’s next General Rate Application.
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Directive 1(d) of Order 85/13
The PUB provided a similar directive for the natural gas operations in Order 85/13 which was
issued with respect to Centra’s 2013/14 GRA. Directive 1(d) of Order 85/13 states:

“Centra’s revenue requirement is determined based on the level of Demand-Side
Management spending as set out in Manitoba Hydro’s 2011 Power Smart Plan of
$19.3 million for 2013/14. To the extent Centra’s spending on Demand-Side
Management in the Test Year, including the Affordable Energy Fund and the Lower
Income Energy Efficiency Program, falls below $19.3 million, Centra shall establish a
deferral account for the discrepancy, the disposition of which the Board will consider
at the next General Rate Application.”

In Directive 1(d) from Order 85/13, the DSM spending amounts were determined based on
the level of forecast gas DSM spending in the 2011 Power Smart Plan, as follows:

Table 3: Gas DSM Budget
2011 Power Smart Plan
($millions) 2013/14
Gas Power Smart $13.5
Affordable Energy Fund $3.5
Furnace Replacement Program $2.3
Total $19.3

Centra notes that the $19.3 million represents the total natural gas DSM forecast spending for
2013/14, including the AEF and Furnace Replacement Program (“FRP”). As a point of
clarification, the above amounts were not included in Centra’s 2013/14 revenue requirement.
Rather, for the purposes of setting natural gas rates, the amount of DSM included into
Centra’s revenue requirement is the amortization of DSM expenditures from prior periods.
Centra’s rates for the Small General Service class also includes $3.8 million to fund the FRP.

The forecast AEF expenditures for both electric and natural gas are amortized to the electric
operations only, since the fund was established by The Winter Heating Cost Control Act based
on a percentage of Manitoba Hydro’s 2006/07 gross electricity export revenues. As such, the
AEF amortization is allocated to the electric operations only and is not included in Centra’s
revenue requirement.

With respect to the FRP, Centra has collected approximately $3.8 million in each year since
2007/08 to fund the FRP, as directed by the PUB. All amounts collected for the FRP are
maintained in the FRP fund to finance program expenditures.
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Since the amortization of DSM expenditures commences the year after the costs are incurred,
Centra’s revenue requirement for the 2013/14 test year did not include any of the forecast
Natural Gas Power Smart spending for 2013/14. Given that the DSM amounts included in
Centra’s rates is the amortization of prior period DSM expenditures, and that Centra’s
revenue requirement does not include any amortization of the AEF, there are no amounts to
capture in a deferral account. Centra will continue to maintain the amounts collected for the
FRP in a deferral account to fund related program expenditures. As such, Centra already
maintains a liability account on its balance sheet which reflects the actual total FRP funding to
date less the actual expenditures made from the fund.

Manitoba Hydro respectfully requests the PUB’s confirmation of its interpretation of
Directive 12 of Order 43/13 and Directive 1(d) of Order 85/13 by April 11, 2014, in order for
the Corporation to advance related year-end auditing processes in a timely manner. Should
you have any questions with respect to this submission, please contact the writer at (204) 360-
3257 or Greg Barnlund at (204) 360-5243.

Yours truly,
MANITOBA HYDRO LAW DIVISION

Per: - ______; —

Brent Czarnecki
Barrister & Solicitor
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May 15, 2014

Mr. Brent Czarnecki
Law Department
Manitoba Hydro

22" floor

360 Portage Avenue
Winnipeg MB R3C 0G8

Dear Mr. Czarnecki:

RE: Manitoba Hydro - DSM Spending

On March 25, 2014, Manitoba Hydro requested confirmation from the Board that
Manitoba Hydro correctly interpreted Directive 12 from Order 43/13 and Directive 1(d)
from Order 85/13. Manitoba Hydro’s interpretation does not agree with the Board’s
direction. The Board provides clarification of its direction as follows.

At the last electric GRA, the Board expressed a concern that less was being spent on
DSM than that set out in the 2011 Power Smart Plan: $34.4 million in 2012/13 and
$34.7 million in 2013/14 or $69.1 million for the two test years. During the GRA,
Manitoba Hydro filed an updated forecast of DSM spending of $56.5 million, or $12.5
million less over the two years.

The Board directed:

“ That Manitoba Hydro’s revenue requirements are determined based on the
level of Demand-Side Management spending as set out in Manitoba Hydro’s
2011 Power Smart report, i.e., $34 million for 2012/13 and $35 million for
2013/14, for a total of $69 million. To the extent Manitoba Hydro’s spending
on Demand-Side Management in the test years, including the Affordable
Energy Fund and the Lower Income Energy Efficiency Program, falls below
$69 million, Manitoba Hydro shall establish a deferral account for the
discrepancy, the disposition of which the Board will consider at the next
General Rate Application.” [Order 43/13 Directive 12]
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The Board clarifies that Manitoba Hydro is to establish a deferral account that captures
the difference between the budgeted level of DSM spending from the 2011 Power
Smart Plan and the actual spending by Manitoba Hydro. With respect to 2012/13, the
budgeted amount was $34.4 million while the actual spending was $26.6 million. The
difference of $7.8 million should accrue to the deferral account. Likewise, the difference
between actual spending in 2013/14 and the budgeted spending in the 2011 Power
Smart Plan of $34.7 million should accrue to the deferral account.

The Board directs a similar treatment of DSM expenditures for Centra. The DSM
spending forecasted in the 2011 Power Smart Plan for gas DSM programs in 2013/14
was $19.3 million including the AEF and Furnace Replacement Program. The
forecasted spending in the 2011 Power Smart Plan minus the AEF and FRP was $13.5
million. The Board directs that any difference between actual spending on gas DSM
programs and the $13.5 million forecasted spending is to accrue to the DSM deferral
account.

The Board understands that Manitoba Hydro is forecasting increased levels of DSM
savings and investment in its 2014-2017 Power Smart Plan. The Board is encouraged
by the planned increased level of investment and looks forward to reviewing the new
Power Smart Plan at upcoming General Rate Applications. At that time the Board will
consider the continued need for the DSM deferral account in the context of Manitoba
Hydro’s new Power Smart Plan.

Sincerely,
“Original Signed By”

Kurt Simonsen, P. Eng.
Associate Secretary

KS/nac

c.c. Mr. Bob Peters, Board Counsel
Ms. Odette Fernandes, Manitoba Hydro
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May 23, 2014

THE PUBLIC UTILITIES BOARD OF MANITOBA

400-330 Portage Avenue

Winnipeg, Manitoba

R3C 0C4

ATTENTION: Mr. H. Singh, Board Secretary and Executive Director
Dear Mr. Singh:

RE: Directive 12 of Order 43/13 and Directive 1(d) of Order 85/13 re: Demand Side
Management (“DSM”) Expenditures

Further to the Public Utilities Board’s (“PUB”) letter of May 15, 2014, Manitoba Hydro
wishes to obtain confirmation of the appropriate accounting treatment of the PUB's DSM
Directive 12 of Order 43/13 and Directive 1(d) of Order 85/13 for the purposes of it financial
statements as at March 31, 2014.

Considering the clarification provided by the PUB in the letter, Manitoba Hydro can advise
that the cumulative amount of the differences between actual and forecast DSM spending to
March 31, 2014 associated with the directives is approximately $15 million related to electric
operations and $5 million related to gas operations. The total for consolidated operations is
approximately $20 million.

Manitoba Hydro has considered two alternate accounting treatments to reflect the PUB's DSM
directives in its financial statements:
l. Record the cumulative DSM spending differences as a regulated liability and a
corresponding Power Smart regulated asset; or,
2. Record the cumulative DSM spending differences as a regulated liability and a
corresponding reduction of 2013/14 net income.

The focus of the PUB in its clarifying letter of May 15, 2014 is in maintaining a level of total
spending on DSM programs to target higher levels of domestic customer energy savings
rather than the mechanics of how DSM spending is ultimately amortized into rates and net
income (which was provided in Manitoba Hydro's letter of March 25, 2014). Accordingly,
Manitoba Hydro believes that the first alternative is the most appropriate accounting treatment
under the circumstances and requests that the PUB provide written confirmation that it is
consistent with the intent of the DSM directives. Manitoba Hydro further notes that the PUB
will consider the disposition of these deferred amounts at the next General Rate Application.
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Given that the amounts in question are material to the financial statements and that the
Corporation is nearing the end of its year-end audit process and a closing meeting is
scheduled with the external auditors for Thursday, May 29, 2014, Manitoba Hydro
respectfully requests that confirmation be provided by the PUB in advance of that date.

Yours truly,

MANITOBA HYDRO LAW DIVISION

Per:
K.

Rebecca Hutchings
Barrister & Solicitor
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May 28, 2014

Rebecca Hutchings
Law Department
Manitoba Hydro

22" floor

360 Portage Avenue
Winnipeg MB R3C 0G8

Dear Ms. Hutchings:

RE: Directive 12 of Order 43/13 and Directive 1(d) of Order 85/13 re Demand Side
Management (DSM) Expenditures

The Board is in receipt of your letter dated May 23, 2014 seeking confirmation of the
appropriate accounting treatment of the PUB’s DSM Directive 12 of Order 43/13 and
Directive 1(d) of Order 85/13 for the purposes of it financial statements as at March 31,
2014.

The Board notes that, it does not in due course, dictate the accounting treatment related
to directives of Manitoba Hydro (MH), however the Board appreciates Manitoba Hydro
seeking the Board’s input on this issue. The Board relies on the Financial Statements of
the Corporation in assessing rate adequacy and supports accounting treatment that are
consistent with the economic effect and intent of the Board’s directives. The Board’s
preference is that the transaction be consistent with the intent of its directive of
maintaining a level of total DSM program spending consistent with the 2011 Power
Smart Plan to target higher levels of domestic customer energy savings.

The Board believes that MH’s proposed accounting to establish a regulated asset to
track the unspent DSM program monies and to establish a corresponding regulated
liability is consistent with the Board’s intent under the circumstances.
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The Board notes that MH has recently indicated higher planned DSM spending in its
2014 Power Smart Plan. The Board will review the matter of DSM spending at the
upcoming General Rate Application and will assess the status of the regulated asset
and liability at that time.

If there is a need for further clarification of this matter please do not hesitate to contact
the undersigned.

Sincerely,
“Original Signed By”

Hollis Singh
Secretary

HS/nac

c.c. Mr. Bob Peters, Board Counsel
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Manitoba Hydro

Centra Gas Manitoba Ltd.
(Transmission, distribution and retail
sale of natural gas)

Minell Pipelines Ltd.
(Operate gas pipeline in
Saskatchewan and Manitoba)

Manitoba Hydro Utility Services
Ltd.
(Gas/Electric meter reading and
other services)

Teshmont LP Holdings Ltd.
(Holding company for Manitoba
Hydro’s 40% interest in Teshmont)

Manitoba Hydro International Ltd.

(International utility management
and services)

Legend

Wholly Partial
Owned Interest

Wuskwatim Power Limited
Partnership
(Limited Partner for Wuskwatim
G.S)

5022649
Manitoba Ltd.

(General Partner for
Wuskwatim partnership)

eeyask Hydropower Limited
Partnership

(Limited Partner for

Keeyask G.S.)

5900345
Manitoba Ltd.

(General Partner of Keeyask
Hydropower Limited Partnership)

4985371 Manitoba Ltd.

(Holding company for head office
building)

6690271 Manitoba Ltd.
(Holding company for Manitoba

Hydro’s interest in U.S. transmission
line)
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Detail of all related party transactions with Subsidiaries for the last three fiscal years.

Summaries of all related party transactions between Manitoba Hydro and affiliated entities
are provided below. All amounts are provided in thousands of dollars unless otherwise noted.

Minell Pipelines Ltd.

The services provided by Manitoba Hydro to Minell Pipelines consist mainly of labour such
as general pipeline maintenance. Minell has a line of credit arrangement with Manitoba
Hydro. Funds advanced under this agreement have no fixed terms of repayment and bear
interest at the average one-month banker’s acceptance rate.

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Activities charged by MH 9 39 64
Interest charged by MH 18 17 14
Advance from Parent 1046 1117 1725

Teshmont Holdings Inc.

Teshmont Holdings Inc. was established as a holding company to acquire a 40% ownership
of Teshmont Consultants Limited Partnership (TCLP). Teshmont Consultants Limited
Partnership provides engineering related consulting services to Manitoba Hydro.

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Consulting Services 6795 5280 3592

Page 1 of 4
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Manitoba Hydro Utilities Services (MHUS)
MHUS provides Manitoba Hydro and its wholly owned subsidiary Centra Gas Manitoba Inc.
with meter reading, interactive voice response systems and other contracted services. The
General Manager and the Finance & Administration Coordinator are seconded from
Manitoba Hydro. MHUS is charged for these positions consistent with charges for seconded
employees. MHUS leases its premises from Manitoba Hydro, and is charged on a cost
recovery basis.

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Admin expense charged by MH 287 266 212
Services provided to MH 5428 4618 4909
Rent charged by MH 12 12 15

Manitoba Hydro International (MHI)

MHI currently has four business segments, International Utility Services, Manitoba HVDC
Research Centre, W.I.R.E. Services and Telecom Services. International Utility Services
provides professional consulting, training and electricity infrastructure management services
primarily to developing markets. The Manitoba HVDC Centre provides technology products,
research and development and engineering services to the electrical power system industry.
W.I.R.E. Services provides aerial LIiDAR data collection and analysis to determine
transmission line thermal ratings. Telecom Services provides state of the art broadband
telecommunication solutions for telecom carriers, internet service providers and large
commercial customers.

The staffing provided by Manitoba Hydro for the execution of contracts and management of
its operations is billed to MHI consistent with charges for seconded employees. During the
normal course of business, MHI provides services to Manitoba Hydro and MHI pays for the
rental of fibre strands from Manitoba Hydro.

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Payroll charged by MH 1771 2336 2302
Fibre rental charged by MH 464 475 521
Services charged to MH 1965 5264 3105

Page 2 of 4
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Centra Gas Manitoba Inc.

Centra’s short-term funding is financed by Manitoba Hydro with interest calculated monthly
at floating rates with no fixed repayment terms. Manitoba Hydro has also provided long-term
advances to Centra Gas with various interest rates and repayment terms. The following
amounts are provided in millions of dollars.

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Operating & Admin charged by MH 62 64 67
Interest charged by MH 19 18 16
Common asset depreciation to Centra 5 6 5
Common asset depreciation from Centra 1 1 1
Due to Parent 14 26 34
Long term debt 298 295 305

Wuskwatim Power Limited Partnership (WPLP)

The Wuskwatim Power Limited Partnership was formed on December 9, 2004 to carry on
the business of developing, owning and operating the Wuskwatim hydroelectric generating
station and related works excluding the transmission facilities but including all dams, dikes,
channels, excavations and roads to be located at Taskinigahp Falls near Wuskwatim Lake.

WPLP has entered into various agreements with Manitoba Hydro to provide services to the
partnership. The following agreements are currently in effect:

a) the Construction Agreement, whereby Manitoba Hydro will construct the Wuskwatim
Generating Station and related works;

b) the Interconnection and Operating Agreement, whereby Manitoba Hydro will connect
the Wuskwatim generating station to Manitoba Hydro’s integrated power system;

C) the Management Agreement, whereby Manitoba Hydro will provide administrative
and management functions to WPLP; and

d) the Project Financing Agreement, whereby Manitoba Hydro will provide debt
financing to WPLP.

Page 30f 4
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The following amounts are in millions of dollars:

Page 4 of 4
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Financial Statements

Centra Gas Manitoba Inc.
March 31, 2013

G

Elf ERNST & YOUNG
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholder of
Centra Gas Manitoba Inc,

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Centra Gas
Manitoba Ine., which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2013 and the
statements of income (loss), retained earnings and cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information,

Management‘s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
cnable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of - accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

i” ERNST& YOUNG A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Centra Gas Manitoba Inc. as at March 31, 2013 and the

results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

W ¥ ?M ALP
Winnipeg, Canada, f

June 26, 2013. _ Chartered Accountants

i” E RNS T& YOUN G A member firm of Eenst & Young Global Limited
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.
STATEMENT OF INCOME (LOSS)
For the year ended March 31
Notes 2013 2012
millions of dollars
Revenues
Commodity 182 197
Distribution 146 131
328 328
Cost of gas sold 182 197
146 131
Other income 1 1
147 132
Expenses
Operating and administrative 3 64 62
Finance expense 3&4 18 19
Depreciation and amortization 27 26
Capital and other taxes 18 19
Corporate allocation 5 12 12
139 138
Net Income (Loss) 8 (6)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial staterrents.
STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS
For the year ended March 31
2013 2012
millions of dollars
Retained eamings, beginning of year 34 40
Net income (loss) 8 (6)
42 34

Retained earnings, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.
BALANCE SHEET
As at March 31
Notes 2013 2012
millions of dollars
Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
In service 6 661 637
Less accurmlated depreciation 6 232 224
429 413
Construction in progress 6 2 2
431 415
Current Assets
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 76 47
Gas in storage 21 4]
97 88
Other Assets
Regulated assets 7 78 77
Intangible assets 8 8 8
86 85
614 588
Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
Long-Term Debt 9 295 235
Current Liabilities
Due to parent 10 26 14
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 11 76 70
Current portion of {ong-term debt 9 - 63
102 147
Other Liabilities
Refundable advances from customers 21 18
21 18
Contributions in Aid of Construction 33 33
Shar eholder's Equity
Share capital 14 121 121
Retained eamings 42 34
163 155
614 588

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Appro half of the Board:

William Fraser, FCA Jéfnes Husiak, CA
Chair of the Board Chair of the Audit Committee
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended March 31

2013 2012
millions of dollars

Operating Activities

Cash receipts from customers 294 389

Cash paid to suppliers (239) (320)
Interest paid 20) (20)
Cash provided by operating activities 35 49

Financing Activities

Long-term repayments to parent (63) -

Long-term advances from parent 60 -

Short-term advances from (repayments to) parent 12 (6)
Cash provided by (used for) financing activities 9 (6)
Investing Activities

Property, plant and equipment, net of contributions 34) (31)
Other (10) (12)
Cash used for investing activities (44) (43)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents - -

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year - -

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of the Organization — Centra Gas Manitoba Inc, (Centra) distributes natural gas to
more than 269 000 residential, commercial and industrial customers throughout Manitoba.
Centra delivers natural gas to its customers through a network of transmission pipelines and
distribution mains totaling approximately 9 300 kilometers in length. Centra is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board (Manitoba Hydro) and is regulated
by the Public Utilities Board of Manitoba (PUB).

Basis of Presentation — The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as set forth in Part V of the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) Accounting Handbook, “Pre-Changeover
Accounting Standards” and include the significant accounting policies described hereafter.

Rate-Regulated Accounting - The prices charged for the sale of natural gas within
Manitoba are subject to review and approval by the PUB. The rate-setting process is
designed such that rates charged to £as customers recover all costs incurred in providing gas
service to customers. As permitted under GAAP, Centra applies standards issued by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) in the United States as another source of
GAAP. FASB Accounting Standards Codification Section 980 — Regulated Operations,
represents the standard Centra applies for rate-regulated accounting. These accounting
policies differ from enterprises that do not operate in a rate-regulated environment. Such
accounting policies allow for the deferral of certain costs or credits which will be recovered
or refunded in future rates. These costs or credits would otherwise be included in the
determination of net income in the year that the cost or credit is incurred. Centra refers to
such deferred costs or credits as regulated assets (Note 7) or regulated liabilities (Note 11)
which are generally comprised of the following:

* Power Smart programs - The costs of Centra’s energy conservation programs,
referred to as Power Smart, are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over a
period of 10 years.

* Deferred taxes - As a result of its acquisition by Manitoba Hydro in 1999, Centra
became non-taxable and, in so doing, incurred a non-recurring tax expense. This non-
recurring tax expense has been deferred and is being amortized over a period of 30
years.

» Site restoration costs - Site restoration costs incurred are deferred and amortized on a
straight-line basis over a period of 15 years.

* Regulatory costs - Costs associated with regulatory hearings are deferred and
amortized on a straight-line basis over periods up to 5 years.

* Purchased gas variance accounts - Accounts are maintained to recover/refund
differences between the actual cost of gas and the cost of gas incorporated into rates
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charged to customers as approved by the PUB. The difference between the recorded
cost of natural gas and the actual cost of natural gas is carried as an account
receivable/payable and recovered or refunded in future rates.

Centra’s other significant accounting policies are as follows:

a)

b)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost which includes direct labour, materials,
contracted services, a proportionate share of overhead costs and interest applied at the
average cost of debt. Interest is allocated to construction until a capital project
becomes operational or a decision is made to abandon, cancel or indefinitely defer
construction. Once the transfer to in-service property, plant and equipment is made,
interest allocated to construction ceases and depreciation and interest charged to
operations commences.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line remaining-life basis. The range of estimated
service lives of each major asset category is as follows:

Distribution 5 - 65 years
General plant 10 - 45 years

Provision for removal costs of major property, plant and equipment is charged to
depreciation expense on a straight-line basis over the remaining service lives of the
related assets. Retirements of these assets, including costs of removal, are charged to
accumulated depreciation with no gains or losses reflected in operations. The
estimated service lives and removal costs of the assets are based upon depreciation
studies conducted periodically by Centra.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include computer application development costs and land easements.
Intangible assets are recorded at cost. The cost of computer application development
includes direct labour, materials, contracted services, a proportionate share of
overhead costs and interest applied at the average cost of debt. Intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortized over their useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
expected useful lives are as follows:

Computer application development 10 years
Land easements 75 years

The estimated service lives of intangible assets are based upon depreciation studies
conducted periodically by Centra.
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d)

g)

h)

)

k)

Contributions in Aid of Construction

Contributions are required from customers whenever the costs of extending service
exceed specified construction allowances. Contributions are amortized on a straight-
line basis over the estimated service lives of the related assets.

Gas in Storage
Gas in storage is valued at average cost.

Revenues
Customers' meters are read and billed on a cyclical basis. Revenues are accrued in
respect of energy delivered for those cycles not yet billed.

Cost of Gas Sold
Cost of natural gas sold is recorded at the same rates charged to customers.

Financial Instruments

All financial instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition as of the
trade date. Measurement in subsequent periods depends on the classification of the
instrument. Financial instruments are classified into one of the following five
categories: held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, held-for-trading,
available-for-sale, or other financial liabilities. Financial instruments classified as
loans and receivables and other financial liabilitics are measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method of amortization. Held-for-trading financial
instruments are measured at fair value and all gains and losses are included in income
in the period in which they arise.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income
(OCI). As Centra has no items related to OCI, comprehensive income for the year is
equivalent to net income.

Foreign Currency Translation

Current monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into Canadian currency at the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet
date. Gains or losses related to natural gas storage purchases which arise from the date
of receipt to date of payment are included as inventoried cost. All other exchange
gains and losses on the translation of current monetary assets and liabilities are
credited or charged to finance expense in the current period.

Derivatives

Centra does not engage in derivative trading or speculative activities. Centra mitigates
natural gas price volatility to customers through the use of natural gas price swaps.
Fixed price swaps are carried at fair value on the balance sheet with gains and losses
recorded in income.
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I} Debt Discounts and Premiums
Debt discounts and preminms are amortized to finance expense using the effective
interest method.

m)  Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates, but
differences are not expected to be material.

NOTE 2 ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Overhead Rate Estimate

Centra’s policy is to include a proportionate share of overhead costs in property, plant and
equipment based on overhead rate studies that are performed annually. In 2012, Centra
revised its overhead rate estimate to remove information technology infrastructure and
related support costs and common building depreciation and operating costs. This change in
estimate was applied prospectively effective April 1, 2012 and resulted in a $2 million
increase in operating and administrative expense in 2012-13,

Future Accounting Changes

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

In February 2008, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) announced that
publicly accountable enterprises would be required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian
GAAP for fiscal years beginning on or after January [, 2011. In October 2009, the Public
Sector Accounting Board confirmed that government business enterprises such as Centra
would be required to follow IFRS for periods beginning January 1, 2011.

Although IFRS and Canadian GAAP are premised on a similar conceptual framework, there
arc a number of differences with respect to recognition, measurement and disclosure. The
areas with the highest potential to impact Centra include property, plant and equipment,
regulatory assets and liabilities and the transitional requirements upon the adoption of IFRS
under the provisions of IFRS 1, First-Time Adoption of IFRS.

In May 2010, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued the omnibus
Improvements to IFRS, which includes an amendment to IFRS 1 for entities with rate-
regulated activities. The amendment applies to first-time adopters by offering an optional
exemption to use the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
as deemed cost of those assets on the transition date. This exemption eliminates the
requirement to retrospectively adjust opening property, plant and equipment and/or
intangible asset balances for costs that would otherwise not qualify for capitalization under
IFRS. Centra intends to apply this exemption.
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In September 2010, the AcSB implemented changes to Part I of the CICA Handbook —
Accounting; allowing qualifying entities with rate-regulated activities to be permitted, but not
required, to defer their adoption of Part I IFRS for one year. In March 2012, September 2012
and February 2013, the AcSB announced additional optional one-year deferrals of IFRS for
qualifying entities with rate-regulated activities. Centra meets the AcSB criteria for deferral
and intends to adopt Part I IFRS for its 2015-16 fiscal year with comparative information
presented for the 2014-15 fiscal year.

On April 25, 2013, the JASB issued the Exposure Draft, “Regulatory Deferral Accounts”,
The Exposure Draft proposes an interim standard intended to allow entities that are firsttime
adopters of IFRS and that currently recognize regulatory deferral accounts (i.e. regulatory
assets and liabilities) in accordance with their existing GAAP, to continue to do so upon
transition. Under the proposed interim standard, entities will be able to avoid making major
changes in accounting for regulatory assets and liabilities on transition to IFRS until the
IASB can provide more guidance through its Rate-regulated Activities project. Comments on
the Exposure Draft are due in September of 2013 and the 1ASB is not expected to make a
decision on the proposed interim standard until December of 2013.

At this time, it is uncertain as to the final position the JASB will take as part of its Rate-
regulated Activities project. In addition, the IASB has a number of on-going projects on its
agenda which may result in changes to existing IFRS prior to the commencement of Centra’s
2015-16 fiscal year. Centra continues to monitor and evaluate the impacts of current and
prospective IFRS on its accounting policies, financial position and business activities.

NOTE 3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Centra has related party transactions with its parent which are recorded at the exchange
amount. The following transactions are in addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements:

2013 2012
millions of dolicrs
Expense ‘
Net operating and administrative costs 64 62
Interest on advances from parent 18 19
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NOTE 4 FINANCE EXPENSE

2013 2012
millions of dollars

Interest on debt 21 22
Interest capitalized (3) (3)
18 19

Included in interest on debt is $3 million (2012 - $3 million) in respect of the Provincial Debt
Guarantee Fee. The fee during the year was 1.0% of the total outstanding debt guaranteed by
the Province of Manitoba (2012 — 1.0%).

NOTE 5 CORPORATE ALLOCATION
Financing costs related to the acquisition of Centra are allocated between gas and electricity

operations in accordance with the synergies and benefits derived by each segment of the
business at the time of acquisition.

NOTE 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2013 2012
Accumulated Construction Accumulated Construction
Inservice depreciation in progress In service depreciation in progress
millions of dollars mitlions of doliars
Distribution 648 223 2 623 215 2
General plant 13 9 - 14 9 -
661 232 2 637 224 2




Appendix 11.4
2015/16 & 2016/17 General Rate Application Corporate Overview MFR 6

CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the yvear ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 7 REGULATED ASSETS

2013 2012
millions of dollars
Power Smart programs 46 44
Deferred taxes 29 30
Site restoration costs 2 2
Regulatory costs 1 1
78 77

If Centra was not subject to rate regulation, the costs associated with the regulated assets
would be charged to operations in the period that they were incurred and the net income for
2013 would have decreased by $1 million (2012 — net loss increased by $2 million).

In total, regulated assets of $11 million (2012 - $10 million) were amortized to operations
during the period.

NOTE 8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2013 2012
Accunmlated Accumulated
Cost _amortization Net Cost  amortization Net
mitlions of dollars millions of dollars
Computer application development 8 4 4 7 3 4
Land easements 5 1 4 5 1 4
13 5 8 12 4 8

The additions to intangible assets for the year were $1 million (2012 - $1 million). In total,
intangible assets of $1 million (2012 - $2 million) were amortized to operations during the
period.

10
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NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT
2013 2012
millions of dollars
Long-term advances from parent 295 298
Less: Current portion of long-term debt - (63)
295 235

Debt principal amounts and related yields are summarized by fiscal years
are required to be repaid in the following table:

in which advances

2013 2012
Total principal Weighted Total principal
amount of average amount of
repayment yield rate repayment
millions of dollars millions of dollars
2015 35 1.74% 35
2019-2023 20 3.18% -
2024-2028 - - -
2029-2033 60 5.57% 30
2034-2038 130 4.40% 110
2039-2043 50 4.43% 60
295 4,56% 235
NOTE 10 DUE TO PARENT

Centra’s short-term funding is provided by Manitoba Hydro with interest calculated at the
three-month T-Bill rate plus a 1% Provincial Guarantee Fee on the outstanding balance. The
effective rate for fiscal year 2013 was 0.95% (2012 — 0.90%). There are no fixed repayment

terms.
NOTE 11 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
2013 2012
milfions of dollars
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 52 40
Regulated liabilities
Purchased gas variance accounts 24 30
76 70

11
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Centra passes costs related to the purchase and transportation of natural gas onto its
customers without markup. If Centra was not subject to rate regulation, the purchased gas
variance accounts would not be maintained and the actual cost of gas would be expensed in
the period incurred. For fiscal year 2013, if actual gas costs were expensed and sales rates
were not adjusted accordingly, net income would have decreased by $6 million (2012 - net
loss decreased by $17 million).

NOTE 12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of Centra’s non-derivative financial instruments at
March 31 were as follows:

2013 2012
Carrying  Fair  Carrying  Fair
Financial instruments value value value value
millions of dollars

Loans and Receivables
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 76 76 47 47

Other Financial Liabilities

Long-term debt 295 337 298 330
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 76 76 70 70
Due to parent 26 26 14 14

The fair value measurement of financial instruments is classified in accordance with a
hierarchy of three levels, based on the type of inputs used in making these measurements:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable in active markets for the
asset or liability; and '

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

Financial instrument measurements are Level 1 measurements with the exception of long-
term debt which is a Level 2 measurement. Fair value measurement of Centra’s long-term
debt is based on market yields at close of business on the balance sheet date for similar
instruments available in capital markets. The carrying values of all other financial assets and
liabilities approximate fair value.
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Financial Risks

During the normal course of business, Centra is exposed to a number of financial risks
including credit and liquidity risks, and market risk resulting from fluctuations in interest
rates and commodity prices. Risk management policies, processes and systems have been
established to identify and analyze financial risks faced by Centra, to set risk tolerance limits,
establish controls and to meonitor risk and adherence to policies. An integrated risk
management plan has been developed, and reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Centra
Gas Board, to ensure the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks
faced by Centra. The nature of the financial risks and Centra’s strategy for managing these
risks has not changed significantly from the prior year.

a) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to
the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Exposure to credit risk related to
accounts receivable arising from natural gas sales is minimized due to a large and
diversified customer base.

The value of Centra’s aged accounts receivable for customers and related bad debt
provisions are presented in the following table:

2013 2012
millions of dollars
Under 30 days 71 42
30 to 60 days 4 3
Over 60 days 3 4
78 49
Provision at end of period ) (2)
Total accounts receivable 76 47

The provision for bad and doubtful accounts is reviewed annually, based on an estimate
of aged receivables that are considered uncollectible. There was no significant change to
the allowance for doubtful accounts from last year.

To mitigate credit risk related to the use of derivative instruments, Centra adheres to well
established credit exposure limits with institutions that possess a minimum credit rating
of “A’ from recognized bond rating agencies or provide a parental guarantee from an A’
rated parent comipany. The maximum exposure to credit risk related to Centra’s
derivative counterparties is equal to the positive fair value of its financial derivatives.

b) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that Centra will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they come due. To meet forecasted cash requirements, Centra uses cash
generated from operations, as well as short-term funding and long-term advances from
Manitoba Hydro.
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The following is an analysis of the contractual undiscounted cash flows payable under
financial liabilities and derivative liabilities as at the balance sheet date:

Carrying
Value 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
and
thereafter
millions of dollars

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 76 76 - - - - -
Due to parent 26 26 - - - - -
Long-term debt* 295 13 48 12 12 12 458

Derivative financial liabilities
Fixed price swap contracts - - - - - - -

115 48 12 12 12 458

*including current portion and interest payments

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Centra is exposed to interest rate risk
and commodity price risk associated with the price of natural gas.

1.

ii.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Centra is exposed to interest rate
risk associated with amounts due to the parent company, floating rate long-term
debt, fixed rate long-term debt maturing within 12 months, and the purchased gas
variance accounts, offset by the change in interest capitalization. At March 31,
2013, an increase or decrease of 1% in the interest rate would reduce or increase
net income, respectively, by $1 million (2012 - $1 million).

Commodity Price Risk

Centra is exposed to natural gas price risk through its purchase of gas for delivery
to customers throughout Manitoba. Centra mitigates commodity price risk for its
fixed rate service with the use of natural gas price swaps. Centra does not use
derivative contracts for trading or speculative purposes.

14
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NOTE 13

Centra has entered into natural gas price swaps until July 2016 to purchase
231 510 gigajoules of natural gas at a weighted average fixed price of $5.12/GJ.
The weighted average forward price of the swaps per AECO at March 31, 2013
was $3.67/GJ. These contracts are reported as derivatives and carried at fair value
on the balance sheet,

The unrealized fair value losses of these natural gas derivative contracts as at
March 31 are as follows:

2013 2012

millions of dollars

Fixed price swap contracts - 3

Fair value is calculated by using the monthly forward AECO price as reported by
the Natural Gas Exchange as at March 31, 2013.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Centra has energy purchase commitments of $136 million (2012 — $39 million) that relate to
future purchases of natural gas (including transportation and storage contracts), which expire

in 2020,

Centra has various legal and operational matters pending. It is not possible at this time to
predict with any certainty the outcome of these matters. Management believes that any
settlements related to these matters will not have a material effect on Centra’s financial
position or results of operations.

NOTE 14 SHARE CAPITAL
2013 2012
millions af dollars
Share capital
Authorized
Unlimited number of common shares
Issued
1 505 common shares 121 121

121 121

15
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NOTE 15 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Centra manages its capital structure to ensure sufficient retained earnings to enable it to
absorb the financial effects of adverse circumstances. Centra’s capital requirements are met
through cash generated from operations as well as short-term funding and long-term
advances from its parent company, the Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board.

NOTE 16 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Where appropriate, comparative figures for 2012 have been reclassified in order to conform
to the presentation adopted in 2013.

16
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Partners of
Wuskwatim Power Limited Partnership

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Wuskwatim Power
Limited Partnership, which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2013,
and the statements of loss, partners' capital and cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for private
enterprises and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
confrol. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

g” ERNST& YOUNG A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Wuskwatim Power Limited Partnership as at March 31,

2013, and the results of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises.

&z»u,t ¥ ?4&7 ALP
Winnipeg, Canada,

July 25, 2013. Chartered Accountants

ﬂERNST& YOUNG A member firm of Ernsl & Young Global Limited
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENT OF LOSS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

Notes 2013 2012
millions of dollars

Revenue 25 -
Expenses
Operating and administrative 5 -
Finance expense 3 41 -
Depreciation 12 -
Amortization 4 _
Water rentals 4 3 -
65 -
Net Loss (40) -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

BALANCE SHEET
As at March 31, 2013

Notes 2013 2012
millions of dollars

Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

In service 3 1325 -
Less accumulated depreciation 5 12 -
1313 -
Construction in progress 5 1 1259
1314 1 259

Intangible Assets

In service 6 303 -
Less accumulated amortization 6 4 -
299 -
Work in progress 6 - 296
299 296

Current Assets

Term investment 7 1 1
Accounts receivable 8 4 -
Prepaids 9 4 2
9 3
1622 1 558

Liabilities and Equity

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 31 37
Interest payable 10 16 17
47 54
Long-Term Debt 11 1288 1201
Total Liabilities 1335 1255
Partners' Capital 12 287 303
1622 1 558

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

Yol | ™
Wg. Darren B. Rainkie, CA
, air of the general partner of WPLP Treasurer and Chair of the Audit Committee

(5022649 Manitoba Ltd.)
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STATEMENT OF PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
For the year ended March 31, 2013
March 31 March 31
2012 Contributions  Net Loss 2013

millions of dollars

General Partner = 2 - -

(5022649 Manitoba Ltd.)
Manitoba Hydro 203 16 (27) 192
Taskinigahp Power Corporation 100 8 (13) 95

303 24 (40) 287

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

2013 2012
millions of dollars

Operating Activities

Cash receipts from customers 20 -
Cash paid to suppliers (30) -
Interest paid (41) -
Cash used for operating activities (51) -
Financing Activities

Proceeds from issue of units of WPLP 24 39
Proceeds from long-term debt 87 143
Cash provided by financing activities 111 182

Investing Activities

Additions to property, plant and equipment (56) (156)
Additions to intangible assets €))] 27)
Term investment - |

Cash used for investing activities (60) (182)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents - -

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year - -

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year B -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Wuskwatim Power Limited Partnership (WPLP or the Partnership) was formed on December 9, 2004
under the laws of Manitoba to carry on the business of developing, owning and operating the Wuskwatim
hydroelectric generating station (the Project) and related works excluding the transmission facilities but
including all dams, dikes, channels, excavations and roads to be located at Taskinigup Falls near
Wuskwatim Lake.

An agreement was reached between Manitoba Hydro and Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation (NCN) on the
development of the Project pursuant to a Project Development Agreement (the PDA) and the execution of
the PDA was carried out on June 26, 2006. Initial Closing, as defined under the PDA, occurred on June 28
and 29, 2006. The parties to the PDA executed as a supplementary agreement to the PDA the Wuskwatim
Project Development Supplementary Agreement on March 15, 2011. Manitoba Hydro and Taskinigahp
Power Corporation (TPC) (owned beneficially by NCN) arc limited partners of WPLP. The General
Partner, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Manitoba Hydro, also owns a nominal interest in WPLP.
TPC became a limited partner on June 28, 2006.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of Presentation
These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Part I of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) Accounting Handbook - Accounting Standards for Private
Enterprises, which sets out generally accepted accounting principles for non-publicly accountable
enterprises in Canada (“GAAP”) and include the significant accounting policies described
hereafter.

b) Revenue
Manitoba Hydro purchases all the power from the Partnership under a Power Purchase Agreement.
Revenue is billed when energy is generated and billed on a monthly basis.

¢) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost and interest applied at WPLP’s average cost of debt.
Finance expense is allocated to construction until a capital project becomes operational or a
decision is made to abandon, cancel or indefinitely defer construction. Once the transfer to in-
service property, plant and equipment is made, finance expense allocated to construction will
cease, and depreciation and finance expense charged to operations will commence.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the following years to depreciate the
assets over their estimated useful lives:

Generating station 20-125 yecars
Staff house 20-65  years
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

d) Intangible Assets
Intangible asscts include contributions made to Manitoba Hydro for transmission lines. Intangible
asscts are recorded at cost and interest applied at WPLP’s average cost of debt associated with the
Interconnection Credit Facility. Once the associated transmission asset is in-service, finance
expense allocated to the intangible asset will cease, and amortization and finance expense charged
to operations will commence.

Amortization is provided using the straight-line method over the following years to amortize the
assets over their estimated useful lives:

Transmission line 10-85 years

¢) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make
cstimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the financial statements. Actual results
may differ from those estimates, but differences are not expected to be material.

NOTE 3 FINANCE EXPENSE
2013 2012
millions of dollars
Interest on debt 66 -
Interest capitalized (25) -

41 -

Included in interest on debt is the Provincial Debt Guarantee Fee of 1.0% on the Non-Revolving Credit
Facility, the Revolving Credit Facility and the Interconnection Credit Facility.

NOTE 4 WATER RENTALS

Water rentals are paid to the Province of Manitoba for the use of water resources in the operation of the
Partnership’s hydro-electric generating stations.
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2013 2012
Accumulated Construction Accumulated Construction
In service  depreciation in progress Inservice depreciation  in progress

millions of dollars

Generating station 1325 12 - - - 1259
Staff house = = 1 - 2 .
1325 12 1 - - 1259

On June 22, 2012, the first generator was put into service. This resulted in $354 million in transfers from
construction in progress to property, plant and equipment. On August 22, 2012, the second generator was
put into service. This resulted in an additional $520 million in transfers from construction in progress to
property, plant and equipment. On October 6, 2012, the last generator was put into service. This resulted in
an additional $439 million in transfers from construction in progress to property, plant and equipment. For
the year ended March 31, 2013, $19 million (2012 - $46 million) in interest charges have been allocated to
the generating station.

Manitoba Hydro is building the staff house in accordance with the Construction Agreement. Depreciation
on the staff house will commence when it is in service (December 2014) and will be calculated on a
straight-line remaining life basis.

NOTE 6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2013 2012
Accumulated  Work in Accumulated Work in
In service amortization  progress Inservice amortization progress
millions of dollars
Transmission line 303 4 - - - 296

The intangible assct was moved from work in progress to in-service proportionate to the in-service of the
three generating units.

The intangible asset represents amounts accrued or paid to Manitoba Hydro to develop the transmission
facilities required to connect the Wuskwatim generating station to Manitoba Hydro’s transmission system
as specified in the Interconnection and Operating Agreement (IOA). Ownership of these facilities remain
with Manitoba Hydro. For the year ended March 31, 2013, $6 million (2012 - $15 million) in interest
charges have been allocated to this asset.

Contributions were made by WPLP to Manitoba Hydro according to a schedule included in the IOA. As at
March 31, 2013, the excess of scheduled contributions over actual expenditures was recorded as a prepaid

asset.
7
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 7 TERM INVESTMENT

This balance represents an investment of $1 million (2012 - $1 million) in surplus cash plus accrued
interest that Manitoba Hydro has invested on behalf of the Partnership. This investment is redeemable
within two business days on demand and interest earned is based on the average interest rate earned by
Manitoba Hydro on its trust investments over the same period, or the average of the overnight investment
rates as quoted by the Province of Manitoba over the term of the investment. The effective interest rate as
at March 31, 2013 was 1.0% (2012 - 0.9%).

NOTE 8 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable consist of revenue receivable from Manitoba Hydro and amounts recoverable from

the federal government for Goods and Services Tax (GST) paid both of which will be settled in
approximately the following month.

NOTE 9 PREPAIDS

This balance represents the excess of scheduled contributions over actual expenditures of $4 million (2012
- $2 million) by WPLP to Manitoba Hydro for the construction of the transmission facilities. Contributions
for the transmission facilities are based on the I0A, which differs from actual expenditures.

NOTE 10 INTEREST PAYABLE

Interest payable represents interest owing on the credit facilities and is comprised of the following:

2013 2012
millions of dollars

Non-Revolving Credit Facility 12 12
Interconnection Credit Facility 4 5
16 17
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 11 LONG-TERM DEBT

Manitoba Hydro will provide all debt financing for the Project through credit facilities to WPLP. The debt
incurred by WPLP through these credit facilities matures 50 years after the in-service date of the first
generator in the Project and bears interest at rates specified in the Project Financing Agreement. This debt
is secured by the assets owned beneficially by WPLP up to a maximum of $1.3 billion as per the Demand
Debenture executed on June 28, 2006 by the General Partner.

Long-term debt is comprised of the following:

2013 2012
millions of dollars

Non-Revolving Credit Facility 971 897
Revolving Credit Facility 13 12
Interconnection Credit Facility 304 292

1288 1201

The Non-Revolving and Revolving Credit Facilities consist of Manitoba Hydro advances received by
WPLP to fund a portion of the total capital cost related to the Wuskwatim generating station. Non-
revolving advances are limited to an amount that cannot exceed 75% of the total capital cost less any
advances received through revolving advances, except for the first ten years following the final closing
date when the amount may increase to 85% of the total capital cost less any advances made under the
Revolving Credit Facility. The interest rates on the Non-Revolving and Revolving Credit Facility advances
are based on Manitoba Hydro's short-term borrowing cost or the one-month Bankers’ Acceptance rate plus
a 1% Provincial Guarantee Fee which was equal to 2.2% as at March 31,2013 (2012 — 2.2%). The
effective interest rate for the year was 5.2% (2012 — 5.4 %) for the Non-Revolving Credit Facility and
2.1% (2012 - 2.0%) for the Revolving Credit Facility.

Once the principal amount of the advances under the Non-Revolving Credit Facility exceed $200 million,
the interest rate is converted to a fixed rate equal to the Canadian Thirty Year Rate, which includes a 1%
Provincial Guarantee Fee, in effect on the conversion date. The first conversion date was February 13,
2008, at which time the Canadian Thirty Year Rate was 5.9%. The second conversion date was July 14,
2009, at which time the Canadian Thirty Year Rate was 5.9%. The third conversion date was June 11,
2010, at which time the Canadian Thirty Year Rate was 5.7%. The fourth conversion date was May 13,
2011, at which time the Canadian Thirty Year Rate was 5.4%.

The Interconnection Credit Facility consists of Manitoba Hydro advances received by the Partnership to
fund the total capital cost to construct and install transmission facilities and interconnection system
upgrades pursuant to the IOA with Manitoba Hydro. The interest rate on the Consolidated Interconnection
Credit Facility is a fixed rate based on the weighted average of all Canadian Thirty Year Rates established
for the Interconnection Credit Facility on June 29, 2012 and includes a 1.0% Provincial Guarantee Fee.
The effective interest rate for the Interconnection Credit Facility for the year was 5.5% (2012 — 5.4%).

9
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013
Principal payments on these loans are as follows:
Total
millions of dollars
2014 5
2015 -
2016 -
2017 -
2018 =
2019-2063 1288
1288
NOTE 12 PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
Authorized: Unlimited number of limited partnership units at $1 000 each.
Issued: 326 750.000 limited partnership units at $1 000 each.
As at March 31, limited partnership units issued were as follows:
2013 2012
units
General Partner (5022649 Manitoba Ltd.) 32.675 30.283
Manitoba Hydro 218 889.825 202 868.050
Taskinigahp Power Corporation 107 827.500 99 935.000
326 750.000 302 833.333

During the year ended March 31, 2013, WPLP issued 23 916.667 limited partnership units. These units
have no preference, exchange, pre-emptive or redemption rights.

NOTE 13 FINANCIAL RISKS

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a third party to a financial instrument might fail to meet its obligations under the
terms of the financial instrument. The Partnership’s financial asset that is exposed to credit risk is accounts
receivable. This risk is minimal as it mainly relates to accounts receivable arising from the sale of power to
Manitoba Hydro.

10
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in market interest rates. The Partnership is exposed to interest rate risk associated with debt financing
provided by Manitoba Hydro through variable-rate credit facilities.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Partnership will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
come due. To meet forccasted cash requirements, the Partnership uses cash generated from operations and
credit facilities provided by Manitoba Hydro (Note 11).

NOTE 14 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

WPLP separately identifies within its records all transactions with Manitoba Hydro at the exchange
amount as determined by various agreements. As at March 31, the following balances and transactions
relate to Manitoba Hydro:

2013 2012
millions of dollars

Revenue 25 -
Expenses

Operating and administrative 5 -

Finance expense (Note 3) 41 -

Water rentals (Note 4) 3 -
Term Investment (Note 7) 1 1
Accounts receivable (Note 8) 4 -
Accounts payable 31 37
Interest payable (Note 10) 16 17
Long-term debt (Note 11) 1288 1 201

Amounts paid to Manitoba Hydro include $87 million (2012 - $156 million) relating to the generating
station, $14 million (2012 - $27 million) related to the transmission line, and $4 million (2012 - $7
million) in GST that was recovered from the Canada Revenue Agency with the exception of the accounts
receivable noted above. Amounts reccived from Manitoba Hydro includes $16 million (2012 - $26
million) in equity contributions from both Manitoba Hydro and its wholly owned subsidiary, the General

Partner.

11
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

WPLP has also entered into various agreements with Manitoba Hydro to provide services to the
Partnership as follows:

a) the Construction Agreement, whereby Manitoba Hydro will construct the Wuskwatim generating
station and related works;

b) the Project Financing Agreement, whereby Manitoba Hydro will provide debt financing to WPLP;

¢) the Management Agreement, whereby Manitoba Hydro will provide administrative and management
functions to WPLP;

d) the Maintenance and Operations Agreement, whereby Manitoba Hydro will provide all maintenance
and on-site operations for the Wuskwatim generating station;

¢) the I0A, whereby Manitoba Hydro will connect the Wuskwatim generating station to Manitoba
Hydro’s integrated power system;

f) the Systems Operation and Dispatch Agreement, whereby Manitoba Hydro will operate and dispatch
the Wuskwatim generating station in an integrated fashion with Manitoba Hydro’s integrated power
system; and

g) the Power Purchase Agreement, whereby Manitoba Hydro will purchase from WPLP all of the power
gencerated by the Wuskwatim generating station. WPLP is economically dependent on Manitoba Hydro
as the sole purchaser of the power from Wuskwatim.

Amounts paid to Manitoba Hydro under the Management Agreement for the year ended March 31, 2013
totaled $3 million (2012 - $3 million).

NOTE 15 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Under the terms of the Wuskwatim PDA, WPLP maintains a 75:25 debt/equity ratio except for the first ten
years following the final closing date when the amount may increase to 85% of the total capital cost less
any advances made under the Revolving Credit Facility. Long-term debt financing is provided by
Manitoba Hydro on an as-required basis. Manitoba Hydro also provides a $50 million revolving credit
facility and a separate credit facility to finance the contributions to Manitoba Hydro for the construction of
the transmission interconnection facilities necessary to connect the Wuskwatim generating station to the
Manitoba Hydro system. The outstanding balance of this Interconnection Credit Facility is excluded from
the calculation of the debt/equity ratio.
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

WPLP’s debt ratio as at March 31 was as follows:

2013 2012
millions of dollars

Long-term debt 984 909
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and term investment (1) (1)
Net debt 983 908
Partners' Capital 287 303
Debt ratio 77% 75%
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Financial Statements

Manitoba Hydro International Ltd.
March 31, 2013

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholder of
Manitoba Hydro International Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Manitoba
Hydro International Ltd., which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
March 31, 2013, and the consolidated statements of income, retained earnings and
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards
for private enterprises, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

§!’ ERNST& YOUNG A membar tirm of Errst & Young Globaf Linaited
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. '

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Manitoba Hydro International Ltd. as at

March 31, 2013, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises.

C‘/'buut ¢ ;J&n?/ AP
Winnipeg, Canada,

June 26, 2013. ‘ Chartered Accountants

EJ E RN S T& YOUN G A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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MANITOBA HYDRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended March 31

Notes , 2013 2012
thousands of dollars

Revenues 43 170 31822

Cost of Operations

Staff 14272 11332
Other direct costs 2 13762 8125
28 034 19 457
Operating Profit 15136 12 365
Expenses
Operating and administrative 9000 7635
Depreciation 975 627
Capital and other taxes 239 237
10214 8499
Income before other items 4922 3866
Other ltems
interest income 47 7
interest expense (13) -
34 7
Net Income 4956 3873

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS
For the year ended March 31
2013 2012
thousands of dollars

Retained earnings, beginning of year 19 508 15635
Net income 4 956 3873
Retained earnings, end of year 24 464 19508

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



Appendix 11.4
2015/16 & 2016/17 General Rate Application Corporate Overview MFR 6

MANITOBA HYDRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at March 31

Notes 2013 2012
thousands of dolfars
Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
In service 4 8846 7259
Less accumulated depreciation 4 1678 904
7 168 6 355
Current Assets
Cash 6 4090 6209
Cash - restricted 6 4 460 1674
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 7 15644 10131
Prepaid expenses 3 855 524
28 049 18 538
Other Assets
Intangible assets 5 654 641
35871 25534
Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payabie 7 5122 2 580
Deferred revenue 9 3 857 967
8979 3547
Long-Term Deferred Revenue 9 1267 1318
Shareholder’s Equity
Share capital 11 1161 1161
Retained earnings 24 464 19508
25625 20669
35871 25534

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Approv behalf of the Board:
ég&«/ //&w«wr L peects

William Fraser, FCA James Husiak, CA
Chair of the Board Chair of the Audit Committee
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MANITOBA HYDRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended March 31

2013 2012
thousands of doflars

Operating Activities
Cash receipts from customers 40 496 32950
Cash paid to suppliers and employees {38 061) (27 092)
Interest received 47 7
Interest paid (13) -
Cash provided by operating activities 2469 5865
Investing Activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment (1587) (1460)
Additions to intangible assets (215} (442}
Cash used for investing activities {1802) (1902)
Net increase in cash 667 3963
Cash, beginning of year 7 883 3920
Cash, end of year 8550 7 883

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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ANITOBA HYDRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Manitoba Hydro International Ltd. (MHI), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Manitoba Hydro-
Electric Board (Manitoba Hydro), was incorporated in September 1998 and commenced
operations April 1, 1998. As a wholly owned subsidiary of Manitoba Hydro, MHI is not subject
to income taxes under Section 149(d) of the Income Tax Act {Canada), however MHI’s foreign
operations may be subject to income taxes in those jurisdictions.

MHI currently has four business segments, International Utility Services, Manitoba HVDC
Research Centre, W.I.R.E. Services and Telecom Services. International Utility Services provides
professional consuiting, training and electricity infrastructure management services primarily to
developing markets. The Manitoba HVDC Research Centre provides technology products,
research and development and engineering services to the electrical power system industry.
W.LR.E. Services provides aerial LiDAR data collection and analysis to determine transmission
line thermal ratings. Telecom Services provides state of the art broadband telecommunication
solutions for telecom carriers, internet service providers and large commercial customers.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of MHI and its Nigerian and United
Arab Emirates subsidiaries. For purposes of consolidation, all significant intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of Presentation
These consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with Part Il of the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) Accounting Handbook — Canadian
Accounting Standards for Private Enterprises, which sets out generally accepted
accounting principles for non-publicly accountable enterprises in Canada (“GAAP”) and
include the significant accounting policies described hereafter.

b) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the following years to depreciate the assets over their
estimated useful lives:

Leasehold improvements 20 years
Furniture and fixtures 20 years
Office, research, computer and telecom equipment 5 years
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NITOBA HYBRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

d)

f)

g)

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include computer software. They are recorded at cost and are
amortized over their useful lives on a straight-line basis. The expected useful life is as
follows:

Computer software 5 years

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when services are provided or goods are shipped to the customer.
Revenue from maintenance and lease contracts is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the term of the contract.

The company recognizes revenue from fixed priced contracts under the percentage-of-
completion method. The percentage of completion is determined by comparing the costs
incurred as at the consolidated balance sheet date to the total estimated costs, which
included costs incurred plus anticipated costs for completing a contract.

Foreign Exchange

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars
at rates of exchange prevailing at the consolidated balance sheet date. Revenues and
expenses are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date of the transaction.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are included in income.

MHI’s integrated foreign subsidiaries, located in Nigeria and the United Arab Emirates,
are accounted for under the temporal method. Under this method, monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the exchange rate in effect at the consolidated balance sheet
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical rates. Revenues and
expenses are translated at average rates for the period. Exchange gains or losses arising
from the translation are included in operations.

Research and Development Expenses

Research expenses are charged to income in the year they are incurred. Development
costs are charged to operations in the period of the expenditure unless a development
project meets the criteria under GAAP for deferral and amortization.

Other Direct Costs
Other direct costs include transportation, accommodations, rents, project equipment,
logistics, project bad debt expense, and other.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

h) Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements. Actual amounts could differ from
those estimates. Key areas of estimation requiring management to make subjective
judgements of matters that are inherently uncertain include the estimates for
uncollectible accounts, provision for the useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangibles. Significant changes in assumptions, including those with respect to
future business plans and cash flows, could change the recorded amounts by a material
amount.

NOTE 3 OPERATING LINE OF CREDIT

Manitoba Hydro provides MHI with a $1 million revolving line of credit to be used to fund its
operations. The line of credit is payable on demand and bears interest at the average one-
month Bankers’ Acceptance rate. The effective rate for the fiscal year 2013 was nil (2012- nil).
The amount outstanding on this operating line of credit as at March 31, 2013 is nil (2012 - nil).

NOTE 4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2013
In Accumulated Net
service  depreciation book value

thousands of dollars
Leasehold improvements 3561 524 3037
Furniture and fixtures 704 113 591
Office, research, computer and telecom equipment 4581 1041 3540
8846 1678 7168
2012
In Accumulated Net
service  depreciation book value

thousands of dollars
Leasehold improvements 3540 347 3193
Furniture and fixtures 688 78 610
Office, research, computer and telecom equipment 3031 479 2552
7259 904 6 355
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MANITOBA HYDRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

Included in the cost above is $606 thousand (2012 - $587 thousand) of computer equipment
costs which have not been amortized as these assets were not placed in use as of year end.

NOTE 5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2013
In Accumulated Net
service amortization book value
thousands of doflars
Computer software 1067 413 654
1067 413 654
2012
In Accumulated Net
service amortization book value
thousands of dollars
Computer software 852 211 641
852 211 641

The additions to intangible assets for the year totaled $215 thousand (2012 - $442 thousand).
In total, intangible assets of $202 thousand {2012 - $123 thousand) were amortized to
operations during the period.
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PEMANITOBA HYBRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 6 CASH
2013 2012
thousands of doflars
Cash - Canadian bank accounts 3916 6197
Cash - Overseas bank accounts 174 12
4090 6209
Cash - Restricted 4 460 1674
8550 7 883

Cash in overseas bank accounts includes funds deposited in foreign currencies in countries
other than Canada. Restricted cash relates to deposits held for letters of guarantees for
customer contracts. Cash balances earn interest at various rates based on monthly average
balances. The effective interest rate for 2013 averaged 0.7% (2012 — 0.5%).

NOTE 7 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the normal course of business, MHI provided $5 264 thousand (2012 - $1 965 thousand)
in services to Manitoba Hydro. During the year, Manitoba Hydro provided staffing to MHI at a
cost recovery of $2 336 thousand (2012 - $1,771 thousand). MHI paid $475 thousand (2012 -
$464 thousand) of expenses pertaining to the rental of fibre strands from Manitoba Hydro. MHI
paid nil (2012 - nil) interest on its operating line of credit to Manitoba Hydro. Included in
accounts payable is $1 505 thousand (2012 - $362 thousand) owing to Manitoba Hydro.
Included in accounts receivable is $740 thousand (2012 - $753 thousand) owing from Manitoba
Hydro. Related party transactions are recorded at the exchange amount.

NOTE 8 LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at March 31, 2013, future minimum annual lease payments committed under operating
leases over the next five years are as follows:

Years 1-2 $554 thousand per year
Years 3-5 $592 thousand per year
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NITOBA HYDRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE9 DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue pertains to the deferral of revenue from advance payments from customers.

The associated revenue is recognized when the services are provided.

2013 2012
thousands of dollars
Short-Term
Software maintenance contracts 645 794
Dark fibre lease payment 76 76
Annual fibre iease contracts 99 97
Advance payments from international contracts 3 037 -
3 857 967
Long-Term
Software maintenance contracts 394 369
Dark fibre lease payment 873 949
' 1267 1318
Total 5124 2285

NOTE 10 FINANCIAL RISKS

MHI is exposed to interest rate, foreign exchange, credit and liquidity risks. Risk management
policies, processes and systems have been established to identify and analyze financial risks
faced by MHI, to set risk tolerance limits, to establish controls and to monitor risk and
adherence to policies. The risk management plan is designed to ensure MHI's risks and

exposures are in line with MHI’s business objectives and risk tolerances. The nature

of the

financial risks and MHI’s strategy for managing these risks has not changed significantly from

the prior year.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is associated with variable interest rates paid to the parent company, the
Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board. The amount due to parent was nil at March 31, 2013 (2012 -

nil).
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MANITOBA HYDRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.
NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

Foreign Exchange Risk

Financial risk to MHI's operations arises from fluctuations in exchange rates and the volatility in
these rates. MHI does not use derivative instruments to reduce its exposure to foreign currency
risk. While MHI generates sales in a variety of countries, the sales contracts are based in
Canadian dollars, U.S. dollars, Saudi Arabia Riyals, or Euros in order to reduce financial risk of
foreign exchange.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counterparty will fail to perform its obligations. As at
March 31, 2013, MHI is exposed to credit risk from customers in geographic areas primarily in
Canada, Africa, Saudi Arabia, the United States, and Eurcope. MHI mitigates credit risk through
the establishment of working relationships with customers and government agencies, and
diversification to eliminate significant credit risk concentration.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that MHI will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
come due. To meet forecasted cash requirements, MHI uses cash generated from operations
and has access to an operating line of credit from Manitoba Hydro. All accounts payable are
due within 30 days of year end. See Note 8 for details of other contractual obligations and their
maturities.

NOTE 11 SHARE CAPITAL

Unlimited number of common shares authorized and one common share issued. Shares in the
capital of MHI cannot be sold, assigned, transferred or otherwise disposed of unless Manitoba
Hydro will, after the disposition, continue to own directly or indirectly all of MHI's shares.

NOTE 12 PENSION PLAN

MHI has a defined contribution pension plan for its employees. MHI's contribution and expense
for the year amounted to $200 thousand (2012 - $168 thousand) which is included in operating

and administrative expenses. MHI does not carry any pension obligation on its financial
statements for its defined contribution plan.

10
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TESHMONT LP HOLDINGS LTD.

STATEMENT OF INCOME (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended Mairch 31

2013 2012
thousands of dollars
Revenue
Partnership income 436 645
Interest income 15 13
451 658
Expenses 12 10
Net Income 439 648

STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS (UN AUDITED)
For the year ended March 31

Notes 2013 2012
thousands of dollars
Retained earnings as previously reported 5072 3952
Adoption of new accounting standards by
Teshmont LP 3 - 472
Retained earnings, beginning of year 5072 4424
Net income as restated 3 439 648

Retained earnings, end of year 5511 5072
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TESHMONT LP HOLDINGS LTD.
BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)

As at March 31
Notes 2013 2012
thousands of dollars
Assets
Current Assets
Cash 18 10
Term investments 4 2 256 1 662
2274 1672
Other Assets
Investment in partnership 5 3237 3400
5511 5072
Shareholder's Equity
Share capital - .
Retained eamings 5511 5072
5511 5072
5511 5072

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

illiam Fraser, FCA Tames Husiak, CA
Chair of the Board Chair of the Audit Committee
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TESHMONT LP HOLDINGS LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31

2013 2012
thousands of dollars

Operating Activities

Proceeds from partnership income 599 400
Interest received 15 13
Cash paid to suppliers (12) . {10)
Cash provided by operating activities 602 403
Investing Activities

Term investments (594) (403)
Cash used for investing activities (594) (403)
Net increase in cash 8 -
Cash, beginning of year 10 10
Cash, end of year 18 10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TESHMONT LP HOLDINGS LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Teshmont LP Holdings Ltd. (Teshmont Holdings) was established February 14, 2003 as a holding
company of Manitoba Hydro to acquire a 40% ownership of Teshmont Consultants Limited
Partnership (Teshmont LP), which carries on a high voltage engineering and consulting practice.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(®)

(©

(d)

Basis of Presentation

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Part IT of the Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants (*CICA”) Accounting Handbook - Canadian Accounting Standards
for Private Enterprises, which sets out generally accepted accounting principles for non-
publicly accountable enterprises in Canada ("GAAP”) and include the significant accounting
palicies described hereafter.

Revenue Recognition
The investment in Teshmont LP is accounted for by the equity method.
Financial Instruments

All financial instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition as of the trade date.
Measurement in subsequent periods depends on the classification of the instrument. Financial
instruments are classified into one of the following categories: held-to-maturity investments,
loans and receivables, held-for-trading, available-for-sale, or other financial liabilities.

Financial Instruments classified as other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost
using the effective method of amortization. Held-for-trading financial instruments are
measured at fair value.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates, but differences are not
expected to be material.
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TESHMONT LP HOLDINGS LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 3 ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BY TESHMONT LP

During the year ended September 30, 2012, Teshmont LP adopted Part II of the CICA Handbook —
Accounting Standards for Private Enterprises. Teshmont LP has elected to adopt the exemption
available under Section 1500, First-time Adoption, to measure its land and buildings at fair value to
prepare its opening balance sheet as at October 1, 2010. The impact of this revaluation was to
increase Teshmont LP’s Partners’ Equity by $1 180 thousand at October 1, 2010 and to reduce
expenses by $7 thousand for its year ended September 30, 2011,

Teshmont Holdings has accounted for these changes as a $472 thousand increase to opening retained
eamings and the investment in the partnership as at April 1, 2011 and as an increase in net income of
$3 thousand for the 2011-12 fiscal year.

NOTE 4 TERM INVESTMENTS

Term investments include surplus cash of $2 256 thousand (2012 - $1 662 thousand) Manitoba Hydro
has invested on behalf of Teshmont Holdings. The interest earned and paid on this investment will be
based on the average interest rate earned by Manitoba Hydro on their trust investments over the same
period, or the average of the overnight investment rates as quoted by the Province of Manitoba over
the term of the investment.

NOTE 5 INVESTMENT IN PARTNERSHIP

Teshmont Holdings investment in Teshmont LP is accounted for by the equity method where
partnership income increases the investment and profit distributions decrease the investment.

2013 2012

thousands of dollars
Opening Investment - restated 3400 2683
Parternship Income 436 645
Gain on Revaluation of Land and Buildings - 472
Distributions Received (599) (400)
Ending Investment 3237 3400
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TESHMONT LP HOLDINGS LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 6 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Where appropriate, comparative figures for 2012 have been reclassified in order to conform to the
presentation adopted in 2013.
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Financial Statements

Minell Pipelines Ltd.
March 31, 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholder of
Minell Pipelines Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Minell Pipelines Ltd.,
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2013, and the statements of
income (loss), retained earnings and cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audif evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

Ell ERNST & YOUNG e T T e Vo o e
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Minell Pipelines Ltd. as at March 31, 2013, and the results

of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. '

| &L»urx‘; \d }M LLP
Winnipeg, Canada, f

June 26, 2013. Chartered Accountants

E’!ERNST& YOUNG A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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For the year ended March 31

Appendix 11.4
Corporate Overview MFR 6

Notes 2013 2012
thousands of dollars

Revenues
Rental of gas transmission facilities 8 198 198
Expenses
Operating and administrative 8 48 18
Finance expense 4 17 18
Depreciation and amortization 39 39
Capital and other taxes 130 122

234 197
Net Income (Loss) (30) 1
Retained eamings, beginning of year 129 128
Retained earnings, end of year 93 129

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MINELL PIPELINES LTD.
BALANCE SHEET
As at March 31
Notes 2013 2012
thousands of doliars
Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

In service 5 1833 1 833
Less accurmulated depreciation ' 5 863 823
970 1010
Construction in progress 5 243 150
1213 1 160
Current Assets
Prepaid expenses 2 2
Other Assets
Regulated assets 6 320 340
1535 1502

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

Cwurrent Liabilities
Due to parent 7 1117 1 046
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 24 25
1141 1071
Contributions in Aid of Construction 16 17
Shareholder's Equity
Share capital 10 285 285
Retained eamings 93 129
378 414
1535 1502

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

Wiiliam Fraser, FCA James Husiak, CA
Chair of the Board Chair of the Audit Committee
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MINELL PIPELINES LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended March 31

2013 2012
thousands of dollars

Operating Activities

Cash receipts from customers 198 198
Cash paid to suppliers (159) (116)
Interest paid an (18)
Cash provided by operating activities 22 64
Financing Activities

Advance from parent company 71 1
Cash provided by financing activities 71 1
Investing Activities

Additions to capital assets, net of contributions 93) (65)
Cash used for investing activities (93) (65)

Net change in cash - -

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year - -

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MINELL PIPELINES LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Minell Pipelines Ltd. (Minell) operates a pipeline transmission system extending from
Moosomin, Saskatchewan to Russell, Manitoba. This transmission system is
approximately 70 kilometers in length and is used solely for the transportation of natural
gas on behalf of Centra Gas Manitoba Inc. (Centra). Minell is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board and is regulated by the National Energy Board

(NEB).

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation - The financial statements were prepared in accordance with
Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as set forth in Part V of the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) Accounting Handbook, “Pre-
Changeover Accounting Standards” and include the significant accounting policies
described hereafter.

Rate Regulated Accounting - The rental charged for gas transmission facilities is
subject to regulation by the NEB. The rate-setting process ensures that rates charged to
customers recover all costs incurred in providing service. As permitted under Canadian
GAAP, Minell applies standards issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) in the United States as another source of GAAP, FASB Accounting Standards
Codification Section 980 — Regulated Operations, represents the standard Minell applies
for rate-regulated accounting. These accounting policies differ from enterprises that do
not operate in a rate-regulated environment. Such accounting policies allow for the
deferral of certain costs or credits which will be recovered or refunded in future rates.
These costs or credits would otherwise be included in the determination of net income in
the year that the cost or credit is incurred. Minell refers to such deferred costs or credits
as regulated assets (Note 6) or liabilities which are comprised of the following:

* Deferred taxes - As a result of the change in ownership in 1999, Minell became
non-taxable and in so doing, incurred a non-recurring tax expense. This non-
recurring tax expense has been deferred and is being amortized over a period of
30 years.

Minell’s other significant accounting policies are as follows:

a) Property, Plant and Equipment
Natural gas transmission systems and buildings and equipment are recorded at
cost, which includes interest and overhead amounts capitalized during the
construction period. Once the transfer to in-service property, plant and equipment
is made, finance expense allocated to construction ceases and depreciation and
finance expense charged to operations commences.
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MINELL PIPELINES LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis at rates varying from 2.0% to
2.5% based on the estimated useful lives of the assets.

b) Contributions in Aid of Construction
Contributions in aid of construction are non-refundable contributions from
customers in support of specific transmission facilities. These amounts are
amortized to income at rates that correspond with the depreciation rates of the
related assets.

c) Revenue
Revenue for the use of transmission facilities is from a related party and is
recognized on a monthly basis.

d) Financial Instruments
All financial instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition as of the
trade date. Measurement in subsequent periods depends on the classification of
the instrument. Financial instruments classified as other financial liabilities are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method of amortization.

e) Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income
(OCI). As Minell has no items related to OCI, comprehensive income for the year
is equivalent to net income.

) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements. Actual resuits could differ from those estimates, but
differences are not expected to be material.

NOTE 3 ACCOUNTING CHANGES
Future Accounting Changes

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

In February 2008, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) announced that
publicly accountable enterprises would be required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian
GAAP for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011, In October 2009, the Public
Sector Accounting Board confirmed that government business enterprises such as Minell
would be required to follow IFRS for periods beginning January 1, 2011.

Although IFRS and Canadian GAAP are premised on a similar conceptual framework,
there are a number of differences with respect to recognition, measurement and

disclosure. The areas with the highest potential to impact Minell include property, plant

5
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MINELL PIPELINES LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

and equipment, regulatory assets and liabilities and the transitional requirements upon the
adoption of IFRS under the provisions of IFRS 1, First-Time Adoption of IFRS.

In May 2010, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued the omnibus
Improvements to IFRS, which includes an amendment to IFRS 1 for entities with rate-
regulated activities. The amendment applies to first-time adopters by offering an optional
exemption to use the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets as deemed cost of those assets on the transition date. This exemption eliminates the
requirement to retrospectively adjust opening property, plant and equipment and/or
intangible asset balances for costs that would otherwise not qualify for capitalization
under IFRS. Minell intends to apply this exemption.

In September 2010, the AcSB implemented changes to Part I of the CICA Handbook -
Accounting; allowing qualifying entities with rate-regulated activities to be permitted, but
not required, to defer their adoption of Part 1 IFRS for one year. In March 2012,
September 2012 and February 2013, the AcSB announced additional optional one-year
deferrals of IFRS for qualifying entities with rate-regulated activities. Minell meets the
AcSB criteria for deferral and intends to adopt Part I IFRS for its 2015-16 fiscal year
with comparative information presented for the 2014-135 fiscal year.

On April 25, 2013, the IASB issued the Exposure Draft, “Regulatory Deferral Accounts”.
The Exposure Draft proposes an interim standard intended to allow entities that are first—
time adopters of IFRS and that currently recognize regulatory deferral accounts (i.e.
regulatory assets and liabilities) in accordance with their existing GAAP, to continue to
do so upon transition. Under the proposed interim standard, entities will be able to avoid
making major changes in accounting for regulatory assets and liabilities on transition to
IFRS until the IASB can provide more guidance through its Rate-regulated Activities
project. Comments on the Exposure Draft are due in September of 2013 and the IASB is
not expected to make a decision on the proposed interim standard until December of
2013.

At this time, it is uncertain as to the final position the JASB will take as part of its Rate-
regulated Activities project. Tn addition, the IASB has a number of on-going projects on
its agenda which may result in changes to existing IFRS prior to the commencement of
Minell’s 2015-16 fiscal year. Minell continues to monitor and evaluate the impacts of
current and prospective IFRS on its accounting policies, financial position and business
activities,
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NOTE 4 FINANCE EXPENSE

2013 2012

thousands of dollars

Interest on amount due to parent 21 20
Interest capitalized ) (2)
17 18
NOTE 5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2013 2012
thousands of dollars
In service
Land, buildings and equipment 94 94
Gas transmission 1739 1 739
1833 1 833
Accumulated depreciation 863 823
970 1 010
Construction in progress 243 150
1213 1160
NOTE 6 REGULATED ASSETS
2013 2012

Deferred taxes

thousands of dollars

320 340

If Minell was not subject to rate regulation, the costs associated with the regulated assets
would be charged to operations in the year that they were incurred and the net income for
2013 would have increased by $20 thousand (2012 — net income increased by
$20 thousand).

In total, regulated assets of $20 thousand (2012 - $20 thousand) were amortized to
operations during the year.
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MINELL PIPELINES LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 7 DUE TO PARENT

2013 2012
thousands of dollars
Amount due to parent 1117 1 046

The amount due to the parent company bears interest at the three-month T-Bill rate plus a
1% Provincial Guarantee Fee on the outstanding balance and has no fixed terms of
repayment. The effective rate for the year was 1.0% (2012 — 0.9%)

NOTE 8 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Rental of gas transmission facilities is to Centra, a company under common control.

In addition to related party transactions disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
operating and administrative expense includes $48 thousand (2012 - $18 thousand) for

administrative and other services performed by Centra. Related party transactions are
recorded at the exchange amount.

NOTE 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of Minell’s financial instruments at March 31 are as

follows:
2013 2012
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
thousands of dollars
Other Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 24 24 25 25
Due to parent 1117 1117 1 046 1046

Minell is exposed to interest rate risk associated with amounts due to the parent company.
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NOTE 10 SHARE CAPITAL

2013 2012
thousands of dollars
Share capital
Authorized
Unlimited number of shares of one class
Issued
285 000 shares 285 285

NOTE 11 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Minell meets its capital requirements through cash provided by operating activities and
advances from its parent company, the Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board.
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MANITOBA HYDRO UTILITY SERVICES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS (UNAUDITED)

For the year ended March 31

2013 2012
thousands of dollars
Revenues
Manitoba Hydro meter reading 3916 3940
Line locating 23 26
Other contracted services 3 3
Manitoba Hydro contracted services 562 1 340
Interactive voice response system 117 122
4621 3431
Expenses
Operating and administrative
Equipment maintenance 78 76
Wages and benefits 3922 4321
Other operating and administrative 537 531
4 537 4928
Depreciation and amortization 64 74
Capital and other taxes 74 78
4 675 5080
(Loss) Income before other items £5)) 351
Other items
Interest income 14 9
14 9
Net (Loss) Income (40) 360
Retained earnings, beginning of year 1761 1401
Retained earnings, end of year 1721 1761

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MANITOBA HYDRO UTILITY SERVICES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)
As at March 31

Notes 2013 2012
thousands of dollars

Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost 3 1032 1029
Less accumulated amortization 3 935 871
97 158

Current Assets

Cash 63 530

Term investment 6 1325 1325

Accounts receivable 4 789 434

Prepaid expenses 17 17
2194 2 306
2291 2464

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 6&9 570 703

Shareholder's Equity

Share capital 7 - -

Retained earnings 1721 1761
1721 1761
2291 2 464

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

L G v L & e

William Fraser, FCA < James Husiak, CA
Chair of the Board Chair of the Audit Committee




Appendix 11.4
2015/16 & 2016/17 General Rate Application Corporate Overview MFR 6

MANITOBA HYDRO UTILITY SERVICES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31

2013 2012

thousands of dollars
Operating Activities
Cash receipts from customers 4266 544
Cash paid to suppliers and ermployees 4749 @921
Interest received 14 9
Cash (used for) provided by operating activities ded 542
Investing Activities
Term investment - (450)
Additions to property, plant and equipment, net of disposals (K)] (15)
Cash used for investing activities 3 (465)
Net (cdecrease) increase in cash 467 71
Cash, beginning of year 530 453
Cash, end of year 63 330

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Manitoba Hydro Utility Services Limited (MHUS) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board (Manitoba Hydro) and commenced operations on January 2,
1998. MHUS provides meter reading, interactive voice response systems and contracted
services primarily to Manitoba Hydro and Centra Gas Manitoba Inc., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Manitoba Hydro.

As a wholly-owned subsidiary of Manitoba Hydro, MHUS is not subject to income taxes
under section 149(d) of the Income Tax Act (Canada).

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

d)

Basis of Presentation

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Part 1I of the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) Accounting Handbook - Canadian
Accounting Standards for Private Enterprises, which sets out generally accepted
accounting principles for non-publicly accountable enterprises in Canada (“GAAP™)
and include the significant accounting policies described hereafter.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method. The following rates are designed to depreciate the assets over
their estimated useful lives:

Furniture 10.0%
Office equipment 20.0%
Computer systems 10.0%
Computer hardware 20.0%
Meter reading devices | 20.0%
Line locating equipment 20.0%
Revenue

Revenue is recognized as services are provided. Revenue from related parties is
recorded at the exchange amount.

Financial Instruments -

All financial instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition as of the
trade date. Measurement in subsequent periods depends on the classification of the
instrument. Financial instruments are classified into one of the following five
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

categories: held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, held-for-trading,
available-for-sale, or other financial liabilities.

Financial instruments classified as loans and receivables and other financial liabilities
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method of amortization.
Held-for-trading financial instruments are measured at fair value.

Employee Future Benefits

MHUS full time employees are eligible for pension benefits under the Civil Service
Superannuation Board (CSSB) defined benefit plan that provides pension benefits
based on years of service.

MHUS is considered a matching employer under the Civil Service Superannuation
Act (Act). Under the provisions of the Act, MHUS is required to match employee
contributions at a prescribed contribution rate into the Civil Service Superannuation
Fund (CSSF) pool of asscts. MHUS does not carry any pension obligation value on
its financial statements.

Pension expenses for MHUS employees are recognized at the time contributions are
made to the Civil Service Superannuation Fund (CSSF), which maintains the funds
and obligations relating to these employees in its financial records.

- Other benefits earned by employees include vacation, banked sick leave and,

incentive compensation. Where applicable, the future costs of these benefits are based
on management’s best estimates.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates, but
differences are not expected to be material,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2013

Accumulated Net

Cost Amortization  book value

thousands of dollars

Furniture 30 21 9
Office equipment 12 12 -
Computer systems 85 85 -
Computer hardware 183 168 15
Line locating equipment 24 24 -
Meter reading devices 698 625 73
1032 935 97

2012

Accumulated Net

Cost Amortization  book value

thousands of dollars
Furniture 29 19 10
Office equipment 12 12 -
Computer systems 85 85 -
Computer hardware 180 151 29
Line locating equipment 24 24 -
Meter reading devices 699 580 119
1029 871 158
NOTE 4 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
2013 2012

thousands of doliars

Manitoba Hydro 783 425
Other 6 9
789 434

NOTE 5 LEASE COMMITMENTS

MHUS leases its premises from Manitoba Hydro. The lease requires payments of
approximately $12 thousand per year. In addition, MHUS is responsible for payment of
property taxes which approximate $2 thousand annually. The lease was renewed in December
2012 and will expire in November 2013 with a one year extension option.

6
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 6 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

MHUS identifies all financial transactions with Manitoba Hydro separately in its records at
the exchange amount. During the year, Manitoba Hydro provided $266 thousand (2012 -
$287 thousand) in services to MHUS. Amounts due to Manitoba Hydro in the amount of
$36 thousand (2012 - $42 thousand) are included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
MHUS paid $12 thousand (2012 - $12 thousand) rent to Manitoba Hydro. MHUS provided
$4 632 thousand (2012 - $5 437 thousand) in services to Manitoba Hydro. Amounts
receivable from Manitoba Hydro in the amount of $751 thousand (2012 - $402 thousand) are
included in accounts receivable. MHUS has made a term investment of surplus cash of
$1325 thousand (2012 - $1 325 thousand) which Manitoba Hydro has invested on its behalf.
The interest earned and paid on this investment will be based on the average interest rate
earned by Manitoba Hydro on their trust investments over the same period, or the average of
the overnight investment rates as quoted by the Province of Manitoba over the term of the
investment.

NOTE 7 SHARE CAPITAL

An unlimited number of Class A and Class B shares authorized and ten (10) Class A shares
issued. Class B shares are redeemable and retractable and are not entitled to dividends.

NOTE 8 FINANCIAL RISKS

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a third party to a financial instrument might fail to meet its
obligations under the terms of the financial instrument. MOUS’s financial asset that is
exposed to credit risk is accounts receivable. This risk is minimal as it mainly relates to
accounts receivable arising from services provided to Manitoba Hydro.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in the market interest rates. MHUS is exposed to interest rate risk associated
with debt financing provided by Manitoba Hydro through variable-rate credit facilities. As at
March 31, 2013 the amount of financing outstanding is nil (2012 - nil).

NOTE 9 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities as at March 31, 2013 are government
remittances payable of $19 420 (2012 - $20 729) relating to Manitoba payroll tax and
Manitoba Workers® Compensation Board insurance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Partners of
Keeyask Hydropower Limited Partnership

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Keeyask
Hydropower Limited Partnership, which comprise of the balance sheet as at
March 31, 2013, and the statement of partners’ capital and cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

i’l ERNST& YOUNG A member {irm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Keeyask Hydropower Limited Partnership as at March 31,

2013, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises.

W ¢ }0&7 AP
Winnipeg, Canada,

July 25, 2013. Chartered Accountants

i” ERNST& YOUNG A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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KEEYASK HYDROPOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
BALANCE SHEET
As at March 31
Notes 2013 2012
dollars
Assets

Current Assets

Cash 10 000 10 000
10 000 10 000

Equity

Partners' capital 3 10 000 10 000
10 000 10 000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

W sl
KenR. F. Adams;P-Eng.

Chair of the general partner of KHLP
(5900345 Manitoba Ltd.)
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KEEYASK HYDROPOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
STATEMENT OF PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
For the year ended March 31

Units as at Capital as at Units as at Capital as at

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
Class 2013 2013 2012 2012
dollars dollars
Manitoba Hydro M 7 499 8249 7499 8249
General Partner M 1 1 1 1
(5900345 Manitoba 1td.) ’ '

Cree Nation Partners Limited Partnership K 1050 1050 1050 1050
E 450 - 450 -

FLCN Keeyask Investments Inc. K 350 350 350 350
E 150 - 150 -

York Factory First Nation Limited Partnership K 350 350 350 350
E 150 - 150 -

10 000 10 000 10 000 10 000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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KEEYASK HYDROPOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended March 31

2013 2012
dollars

Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of units of KHLP - -
Cash provided by financing activities - -
Net increase in cash a -
Cash, beginning of year 10 000 10 000
Cash, end of year 10 000 10 000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Appendix 11.4
2015/16 & 2016/17 General Rate Application Corporate Overview MFR 6

KEEYASK HYDROPOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Keeyask Hydropower Limited Partnership (KHLP or the Partnership) was formed on July 30, 2009
under the laws of Manitoba to carry on the business of developing, owning and operating the Keeyask
hydroelectric generating station (the Project) and related works excluding the transmission facilities but
including the powerhouse and spillway and all dams, dikes, channels, excavations and roads to be
located in the vicinity of Gull Rapids, upstream of the point at which the Nelson River flows into
Stephens Lake.

An agreement was reached between Manitoba Hydro and Tataskweyak Cree Nation (TCN) and War
Lake First Nation (War Lake) operating as Cree Nation Partners (CNP), York Factory First Nation
(York Factory) and Fox Lake Cree Nation (Fox Lake) on the development of the Project pursuant to the
Joint Keeyask Development Agreement (the JKDA) signed on May 29, 2009.

Manitoba Hydro, Cree Nation Partners Limited Partnership (CNPLP) (owned beneficially by TCN and
War Lake through CNP), FLCN Keeyask Investments Inc. (FLCNKII) (owned beneficially by Fox
Lake) and York Factory First Nation Limited Partnership (YFFNLP) (owned beneficially by York
Factory) are limited partners of KHLP. 5900345 Manitoba Ltd. (the General Partner), which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Manitoba Hydro, also owns a nominal interest in KHLP.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Part II of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) Accounting Handbook — Canadian Accounting Standards for Private

Enterprises, which sets out generally accepted accounting principles for non-publicly accountable
enterprises in Canada (“GAAP”).
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KEEYASK HYDROPOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 3 PARTNERS’ CAPITAL

Authorized Unlimited number of limited partnership units (Class E, K and M)

dollars

Issued Manitoba Hydro 7,499 Class M Units 74.99% 8,249
General Partner 1 Class M Unit 0.01% 1

CNPLP 1,050 Class K Units 10.50% 1,050

450 Class E Units 4.50% -

FLCNKII 350 Class K Units 3.50% 350

150 Class E Units 1.50% -

YFFNLP 350 Class K Units 3.50% 350

150 Class E Units 1.50% -

Total 10,000 Class M, K and E Units 100.00% 10,000

The units have no preference, exchange, pre-emptive or redemption rights.
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March 31, 2013
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5022649 MANITOBA LTD.
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

2013 2012
thousands of dollars

Partnership Loss )

Retained earnings, beginning of year -

Retained earnings, end of year 4 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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5022649 MANITOBA LTD.

BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)
As at March 31

Notes 2013 2012
thousands of doliars

Assets

-Current Assets

Cash 4 7

Other Assets

Investment in Partnership 3 29 30

33 37

Shareholders' Equity

Share capital 4 37 37

Retained earnings {4) -
33 37

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

Approved on behalf of the Board:

i hbecr e (0]

Ken R.F. Adams, P.Eng, Darren B. Rainkie, CA
Chair of the general partner of WPLP Treasurer and Chair of the
(5022649 Manitoba Ltd.) Audit Committee
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5022649 MANITOBA LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

2013

Appendix 11.4
Corporate Overview MFR 6

2012

thousands of dollars

Financing Activities

Proceeds from common share issue - 10
Cash provided by financing activities - 10
Investing Activities

Investment in partnership 3 (4)
Cash used for investing activities 3) €))]
Net (decrease) increase in cash 3 6
Cash, beginning of year 7 1
Cash, end of year 4 7

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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5022649 MANITOBA LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION
5022649 Manitoba Ltd. was incorporated on November 30, 2004 and is a wholly owned subsidiary of

Manitoba Hydro. This company is the General Partner of the Wuskwatim Power Limited Partnership
(Partnership) and has acquired .01% ownership of the Partnership.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of Presentation
These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Part 11 of the Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants (“CICA™) Accounting Handbook - Canadian Accounting Standards
for Private Enterprises, which sets out generally accepted accounting principles for non-
publicly accountable enterprises in Canada (“GAAP”} and include the significant accounting
policies described hereafter.

(b) Revenue Recognition

The investment in the Partnership is accounted for by the equity method.

NOTE 3 INVESTMENT IN PARTNERSHIP

5022649 Manitoba Ltd.’s investment in the Partnership is accounted for using the equity method
where coniributions to the Partnership increase the investment and the General Partner’s share of the
Partnership loss decreases the investment.

2013 2012
thousands of dollars
Investment in Partnership, beginning of year 30 26
Contributions to Partnership 3 4
Partnership loss 4) -
Investment in Partnership, end of year 29 30

NOTE 4 SHARE CAPITAL

An unlimited number of common shares are authorized and 3 700 common shares have been issued.
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Unaudited Financial Statements of

3900345 MANITOBA LTD.

March 31, 2013



Appendix 11.4

2015/16 & 2016/17 General Rate Application Corporate Overview MFR 6

5900345 MANITOBA LTD.
BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)
As at March 31
Notes 2013 2012
dollars
Assets
Current Assets
Cash 1000 1000
Other Assets
Investment in Keeyask Hydropower Limited Partnership 1 1
1001 1001
Shareholder's Equity
Share Capital 2 1001 1 001
1001 1 001

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

Y POkl — L

. F. Adams, P.Eng,
Chairman of the general partner of KHLP
(5900345 Manitoba Ltd.)
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5900345 MANITOBA LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31

Appendix 11.4
Corporate Overview MFR 6

2013 2012

Financing Activities
Proceeds from common share issue

doliars

Cash (used for) provided by financing activities

Investing Activities
Investment in Partnership

Cash (used for) provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash

Cash, beginning of year

1000 1 000

Cash, end of year

1000 1000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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5900345 MANITOBA LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

5900345 Manitoba Ltd. was incorporated on June 17, 2009 and is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Manitoba Hydro. This company is the General Partner of the Keeyask Hydropower Limited Partnership
and has acquired .01% ownership of the Partnership.

NOTE 2 SHARE CAPITAL

An unlimited number of common shares authorized and 1001 common shares issued.
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Unaudited Financial Statements of

4985371 MANITOBA LTD.

March 31, 2013
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4985371 MANITOBA LTD.
BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)

As at March 31
Note 2013 2012
dollars
Assets
Cash 1 1
1 1
Shareholder's Equity
Share Capital 2 1 |
1 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

illiam FraserfCA Jefnes Husiak, CA
Chair of the Board Chair of the Audit Committee
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4985371 MANITOBA LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2013

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

4985371 Manitoba Ltd was established September 14, 2004 to hold legal title of the property
at 360 Portage Avenue. As a bare trustee, 4985371 Manitoba Ltd holds title to the property
without any further duty to perform, except convey title to the beneficiary, Manitoba Hydro,
upon demand.

NOTE 2 SHARE CAPITAL

An unlimited number of Class A common shares authorized and one Class A common share
1ssued.
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Financial Statements

Centra Gas Manitoba Inc.
March 3_1, 2014
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Building a better
working world
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholder of
Centra Gas Manitoba Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Centra Gas
Manitoba Inc., which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2014 and
the statements of income (loss), retained earnings and cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's.internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Centra Gas Manitoba Inc. as at March 31, 2014 and

the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

é)w.ot ¥ }0&7 LLF
Winnipeg, Canada,

June 25, 2014. Chartered Accountants

A member firrm of Ernst & Young Giobat Limited
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.
STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended March 31

Notes 2014 2013
millions of dollars

Revenues
Commodity 252 182
Distribution 161 146
413 328
Cost of gas sold 252 182
161 146
Other income 2 1
163 147

Expenses
Operating and administrative “4 67 64
Finance expense 48&5 16 18
Depreciation and amortization 6 . 28 .27
Capital and other taxes 20 18
Corporate allocation 7 12 12
143 139
Net Income 20 8

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS
For the year ended March 31
2014 2013
millions of dollars

Retained earnings, beginning of year 42 34
Net income 20 8
Retained earnings, end of year 62 42

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.
BALANCE SHEET
As at March 31

Notes 2014 2013
millions of dollars
Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
In service 8 684 661
Less accumulated depreciation 8 240 232
444 429
Construction in progress 8 4 2
448 431
Current Assets
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 109 76
Gas in storage - 21
109 97
Other Assets
Regulated assets 9 124 78
Intangible assets <10 8 8
132 86
689 614

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

Long-Term Debt 11 270 295

Current Liabilities

Due to parent 12 34 26

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 107 52

Current portion of long-term debt 11 35 -
176 78

Other Liabilities

Regulated liabilities 9 6 24

Refundable advances from customers 12 21

18 45

Contributions in Aid of Construction 42 33

Shareholder's Equity

Share capital 15 121 121

Retained earnings 62 42
183 163
689 614

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

% behalf of the Board:

“William Fraser, FCA Jdmes Husiak, CA
Chair of the Board Chair of the Audit Committee
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended March 31

2014 2013
millions of dollars

Operating Activities

Cash receipts from customers 318 294
Cash paid to suppliers (271) (239)
Interest paid (18) (20)
Cash provided by operating activities 29 35

Financing Activities

Long-term repayments to parent : - (63)
Long-term advances from parent 10 60
Short-term advances from parent 8 12
Cash provided by financing activities « 18 9

Investing Activities

Property, plant and equipment, net of contributions (35) (34)
Other (12) (10)
Cash used for investing activities (47) (44)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year - -

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Centra Gas Manitoba Inc. (Centra) distributes natural gas to more than 272 000 residential,
commercial and industrial customers throughout Manitoba. Centra delivers natural gas to its
customers through a network of transmission pipelines and distribution mains totaling
approximately 9 800 kilometers in length. Centra is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board (Manitoba Hydro) and is regulated by the Public Utilities
Board of Manitoba (PUB).

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation — The financial statements were prepared in accordance with
Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as set forth in Part V of the
Chartered Professional Accountants (CPA) Canada Handbook - Accounting - Pre-
Changeover Accounting Standards and include the significant accounting policies described
hereafter.

Rate-Regulated Accounting - The prices charged for the sale of natural gas within
Manitoba are subject to review and approval by the Public Utilities Board of Manitoba (PUB).
The rate-setting process is designed such that rates charged to natural gas customers
recover all costs incurred in providing gas service to customers. As permitted under
Canadian GAAP, Centra applies standards issued by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) in the United States as another source of Canadian GAAP. FASB Accounting
Standards Codification Section 980 — Regulated Operations, represents the standard Centra
applies for rate-regulated accounting. These accounting policies differ from enterprises that
do not operate in a rate-regulated environment. Such accounting policies allow for the
deferral of certain costs or credits which will be recovered or refunded in future rates. These
costs or credits would otherwise have been included in the determination of net income in
the year that the cost or credit is incurred. Centra refers to such deferred costs or credits as
regulated assets or regulated liabilities (Note 9) which are generally comprised of the
following:

e Power Smart programs - The costs of Centra’s energy conservation programs,
referred to as Power Smart, are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over
a period of 10 years.

o Deferred taxes - As a result of its acquisition by Manitoba Hydro in 1999, Centra
became non-taxable and, in so doing, incurred a non-recurring tax expense. This
non-recurring tax expense has been deferred and is being amortized over a period of
30 years.

o Site restoration costs - Site restoration costs incurred are deferred and amortized on
a straight-line basis over a period of 15 years.

e Regulatory costs - Costs associated with regulatory hearings are deferred and
amortized on a straight-line basis over periods up to 5 years.
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

e Purchased gas variance accounts - Accounts are maintained to recover/refund
differences between the actual cost of gas and the cost of gas-.incorporated into rates
charged to customers as approved by the PUB. The difference between the recorded
cost of natural gas and the actual cost of natural gas is recovered or refunded in
future rates.

¢ Demand side management (DSM) deferral — In Board Order 85/13, the PUB directed
that the differences between actual and planned spending on gas DSM for the 2013-
14 fiscal year be recorded in a regulatory deferral account. The cumulative difference
for 2013-2014 has been recorded as a regulated liability with an offsetting balance
recorded as a regulated asset. The disposition of this regulatory deferral will be
determined at a future PUB proceeding.

Centra’s other significant accounting policies are as follows:

a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost which includes direct labour,
materials, contracted services, a proportionate share of overhead costs and interest
applied at the average cost of debt. Interest is allocated to construction until a capital
project becomes operational or a decision is made to abandon, cancel or indefinitely
defer construction. Once the transfer to in-service property, plant and equipment is
made, interest allocated to construction ceases and depreciation and interest charged
to operations commences.

b) Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line remaining-life basis. The range of
estimated service lives of each major asset category is as follows:

Distribution - 5 - 65years
General plant 10 - 45 years

Provision for removal costs of major property, plant and equipment is charged to
depreciation expense on a straight-line basis over the remaining service lives of the
related assets. Retirements of these assets, including costs of removal, are charged
to accumulated depreciation with no gains or losses reflected in operations. The
estimated service lives and removal costs of the assets are based upon depreciation
studies conducted periodically by Centra.

c) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets include computer application development costs and land
easements. Intangible assets are recorded at cost. The cost of computer application
development includes direct labour, materials, contracted services, a proportionate
share of overhead costs and interest applied at the average cost of debt. Intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortized over their useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The expected useful lives are as follows:

Computer application development 10 years
Land easements 75 years
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

The estimated service lives of intangible assets are based upon depreciation studies
conducted periodically by Centra.

d) Contributions in Aid of Construction
Contributions are required from customers whenever the costs of extending service
exceed specified construction allowances. Contributions are amortized on a straight-
line basis over the estimated service lives of the related assets.

e) Gas in Storage
Gas in storage is valued at average cost.

) Revenues :
Gas sales are recognized upon delivery to the customer and include an estimate of
gas deliveries not yet billed at period-end.

g) Cost of Gas Sold
Cost of natural gas sold is recorded at the same rates charged to customers.

h) Financial Instruments

All financial instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition as of the

- trade date. Measurement in subsequent periods depends on the classification of the
instrument. Financial instruments are classified into one of the following five
categories: held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, held-for-trading,
available-for-sale, or other financial liabilities. Financial instruments classified as loans
and receivables and other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method of amortization. Held-for-trading financial instruments are
measured at fair value and all gains and losses are included in income in the period in
which they arise.

i) Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income
(OCI). As Centra has no items related to OCI, comprehensive income for the year is
equivalent to net income.

i) Foreign Currency Translation
Current monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into Canadian currency at the exchange rate prevailing as at the balance
sheet date. Gains or losses related to natural gas storage purchases which arise from
the date of receipt to date of payment are included as inventoried cost. All other
exchange gains and losses on the translation of current monetary assets and
liabilities are credited or charged to finance expense in the current period.

k) Derivatives
Centra does not engage in derivative trading or speculative activities. Centra
mitigates natural gas price volatility to customers through the use of natural gas price
swaps. Fixed price swaps are carried at fair value on the balance sheet with gains
and losses recorded in income.
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

) Debt Discounts and Premiums
Debt discounts and premiums are amortized to finance expense using the effective
interest method.

m)  Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates, but
differences are not expected to be material.

NOTE 3 ACCOUNTING CHANGES
Future Accounting Changes

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

In February 2008; the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) announced that
publicly accountable enterprises would be required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian
GAAP for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011. In October 2009, the Public
Sector Accounting Board confirmed that government business enterprises such as Centra
would be required to follow IFRS for periods beginning January 1, 2011.

Although IFRS and Canadian GAAP are premised on a similar conceptual framework, there
are a number of differences with respect to recognition, measurement and disclosure. The
areas with the highest potential to impact Centra include property, plant and equipment,
regulatory assets and liabilities and the transitional requirements upon the adoption of IFRS
under the provisions of IFRS 1, First-Time Adoption of IFRS.

In May 2010, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued the omnibus
Improvements to IFRS, which includes an amendment to IFRS 1 for entities with rate-
regulated activities. The amendment applies to first-time adopters by offering an optional
exemption to use the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets as deemed cost of those assets on the transition date. This exemption eliminates the
requirement to retrospectively adjust opening property, plant and equipment and/or
intangible asset balances for costs that would otherwise not qualify for capitalization under
IFRS. Centra intends to apply this exemption. '

In September 2010, the AcSB implemented changes to Part | of the CPA Canada Handbook
— International Financial Reporting Standards allowing qualifying entities with rate-regulated
activities to be permitted, but not required, to defer their adoption of IFRS for one year. In
March 2012, September 2012 and February 2013, the AcSB announced additional optional
one-year deferrals of IFRS for qualifying entities with rate-regulated activities. Centra meets
the AcSB criteria for the deferral and intends to adopt IFRS for its 2015-16 fiscal year with
comparative information presented for the 2014-15 fiscal year.

On January 30, 2014, the IASB issued the interim standard IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral
Accounts for rate-regulated activities effective January 1, 2016 with earlier adoption
permitted. Centra will early adopt the interim standard upon transition to IFRS effective
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

April 1, 2015 and will continue to recognize regulatory deferral accounts for its financial
reporting.

At this time, it is uncertain as to the final position the IASB will take as part of its Rate-
Regulated Activities project. In addition, the IASB has a number of on-going projects on its
agenda which may result in modifications to existing IFRS prior to the commencement of
Centra’s 2015-16 fiscal year. Centra continues to monitor and evaluate the impacts of
current and prospective IFRS on its accounting policies, financial position and business
activities. '

NOTE 4 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Centra has related party transactions with its parent which are recorded at the exchange
amount. The following transactions are in addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements:

2014 2013

millions of dollars

Expense
Net operating and administrative costs 67 64
Interest on advances from parent 16 18
~NOTE 5 FINANCE EXPENSE

2014 2013

millions of dollars

Interest on debt 19 21
Interest capitalized (3) (3)

16 18

Included in interest on debt is $3 million (2013 - $3 million) in respect of the Provincial Debt
Guarantee Fee. The fee during the year was 1.0% of the total outstanding debt guaranteed
by the Province of Manitoba (2013 — 1.0%).
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 6 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
2014 2013
millions of dollars
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 17 18
Amortization of regulated assets 8 7
Amortization of intangible assets 3 2
28 27
NOTE 7 CORPORATE ALLOCATION

Financing costs related to the acquisition of Centra are allocated between gas and electricity
operations in accordance with the synergies and benefits derived by each segment of the
business at the time of acquisition.

NOTE 8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2014 2013
Accumulated Construction Accumulated Construction
In service depreciation in progress In service depreciation in progress
millions of dollars millions of dollars
Distribution 672 232 4 648 223 2
General plant 12 8 - 13 9 -
684 240 4 661 232 2
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 9 REGULATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

2014 2013
millions of dollars

Regulated assets

Power Smart programs 54 46
Purchased gas variance accounts 39 -
Deferred taxes 27 29
Site restoration costs 3 2
Regulatory costs 1 1

124 78

Regulated liabilities

DSM deferral 6 -
Purchased gas variance accounts - 24
' 6 24

If Centra was not subject to rate regulation, the costs associated with the regulated assets
would be charged to operations in the period that they were incurred and the net income for
2014 would have decreased by $1 million (2013 — net income decreased by $1 million).

In total, regulated assets of $12 million (2013 - $11 million) were amortized to operations
during the period.

Centra passes costs related to the purchase and transportation of natural gas onto its
customers without markup. If Centra was not subject to rate regulation, the purchased gas
variance accounts would not be maintained and the actual cost of gas would be expensed in
the period incurred. For fiscal year 2014, if actual gas costs were expensed and sales rates
were not adjusted accordingly, net income would have decreased by $63 million (2013 —
decreased by $6 million).

NOTE 10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2014 2013
Accumulated Accumulated
Cost amortization Net Cost amortization Net
millions of dollars millions of dollars
Computer application development 8 4 8 4 4
Land easements 5 1 4 5 1 4
13 8 13 5 8

10
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

The additions to intangible assets for the year were $1 million (2013 - $1 million). In total,
intangible assets of $1 million (2013 - $1 million) were amortized to operations during the
period.

NOTE 11 LONG-TERM DEBT

2014 2013

millions of dollars
Long-term advances from parent 305 295
Less: Current portion of long-term debt 35 -
270 295

Debt principal amounts and related yields are summarized by fiscal years in which advances
are required to be repaid in the following table:

2014 2013
Total principal Weighted Total principal
amount of average amount of
repayment yield rate repayment
milflions of dollars millions of dollars

2015 35 1.62% 35
2019-2023 20 3.18% 20
2024-2028 10 3.40% -
2029-2033 60 5.57% 60
2034-2038 130 4.40% 130
2039-2043 50 4.43% 50

- 305 4.56% 295

NOTE 12 DUE TO PARENT

Centra’s shori-term funding is provided by Manitoba Hydro with interest calculated at the
three-month T-Bill rate plus 1% Provincial Guarantee Fee on the outstanding balance. The
effective rate for fiscal year 2014 was 0.95% (2013 — 0.95%). There are no fixed repayment
terms.

i
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of Centra’s financial instruments at March 31 were as

follows:
2014 2013
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Financial instruments value value value value

millions of dollars
Loans and Receivables
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 109 109 76 76

Other Financial Liabilities

Long-term debt 305 334 205 337
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 107 107 52 52
Due to parent p 34 34 26 26

The fair value measurement of financial instruments is classified in accordance with a
hierarchy of three ievels, based on the type of inputs used in making these measurements:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable in active markets for
the asset or liability; and

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data.

Financial instrument measurements are Level 1 measurements with the exception of long-
term debt which is a Level 2 measurement. Fair value measurement of Centra’s long-term
debt is based on market yields at close of business on the balance sheet date for similar
instruments available in capital markets. The carrying values of all other financial assets and
liabilities approximate fair value.

Financial Risks

During the normal course of business, Centra is exposed to a number of financial risks
inciuding credit and liquidity risks, and market risk resulting from fluctuations in interest rates
and commodity prices. Risk management policies, processes and systems have been
established to identify and analyze financial risks faced by Centra, to set risk tolerance
limits, establish controls and to monitor risk and adherence to policies. An integrated risk
management plan has been developed, and reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Centra
Gas Board, to ensure the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the
risks faced by Centra. The nature of the financial risks and Centra’s strategy for managing
these risks has not changed significantly from the prior year.

a) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to
the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Exposure to credit risk related to

12
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

b)

accounts receivable arising from natural gas sales is minimized due to a large and
diversified customer base.

The value of Centra’s aged accounts receivable for customers and related bad debt

provisions are presented in the following table:

2014 2013

millions of dollars

Under 30 days 103 71
31 to 60 days 4 4
Over 60 days 4 3
111 78
Provision at end of year (2) (2)
Total accounts receivable 109 76

The provision for bad and doubtful accounts is reviewed annually, based on an estimate
of aged receivables that are considered uncollectible. There was no significant change
to the allowance for doubtful accounts from last year.

To mitigate credit risk related to the use of derivative instruments, Centra adheres to well
established credit exposure limits with institutions that possess a minimum credit rating
of ‘A’ from recognized bond rating agencies or provide a parental guarantee from an ‘A’
rated parent company. The maximum exposure to credit risk related to Centra’s
derivative counterparties is equal to the positive fair value of its financial derivatives.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that Centra will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they come due. To meet forecasted cash requirements, Centra uses cash generated
from operations, as well as short-term funding and long-term advances from Manitoba

Hydro.

13
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The following is an analysis of the contractual undiscounted cash flows payable under
financial liabilities and derivative liabilities as at the balance sheet date:

Carrying

Value 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

and
thereafter

millions of dollars
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilites 107 107 - - - - -
Due to parent , 34 34 - - - - -
Long-term debt* 306 48 12 12 12 12 458

Derivative financial liabilities
Fixed price swap contracts - - - - - - -

189 12 12 12 12 458

*including current portion and interest payments

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Centra is exposed to interest rate risk
and commodity price risk associated with the price of natural gas.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Centra is exposed to interest
rate risk associated with amounts due to the parent company, floating rate long-
term debt, fixed rate long-term debt maturing within 12 months, and the
purchased gas variance accounts, offset by the change in interest capitalization.
At March 31, 2014, an increase or decrease of 1% in the interest rate would
reduce or increase net income, respectively, by $0.2 million (2013 - $0.7 million).

Commodity Price Risk

Centra is exposed to natural gas price risk through its purchase of gas for
delivery to customers throughout Manitoba. Centra mitigates commodity price
risk for its fixed rate service with the use of natural gas price swaps. Centra does
not use derivative contracts for trading or speculative purposes.

Centra has entered into natural gas price swaps until July 2016 to purchase
87 450 gigajoules (GJ) of natural gas at a weighted average fixed price of
$5.15/GJ. The weighted average forward price of the swaps per AECO at March
31, 2014 was $4.37/GJ. These contracts are reported as derivatives and carried
at fair value on the balance sheet. The unrealized fair value losses of these
natural gas derivative contracts at March 31 are nil (2013 - nil). -

14
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CENTRA GAS MANITOBA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 14 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Centra has energy purchase commitments of $182 million (2013 — $136 million) that relate
to future purchases of natural gas (including transportation and storage contracts), which
expire in 2020.

Centra has various legal and operational matters pending. It is not possible at this time to
predict with any certainty the outcome of these matters. Management believes that any
settlements related to these matters will not have a material effect on Centra’s financial
position or results of operations.

NOTE 15 SHARE CAPITAL

2014 2013
millions of dollars

Share capital
Authorized
Unlimited number of common shares
Issued
1505 common shares 121 121
121 121

NOTE 16 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Centra manages its capital structure to ensure sufficient retained earnings to enable it to
absorb the financial effects of adverse circumstances. Centra’s capital requirements are met
through cash generated from operations as well as short-term funding and long-term
advances from its parent company, the Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board.

NOTE 17 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Where appropriate, comparative figures for 2013 have been reclassified in order to conform
to the presentation adopted in 2014.

15
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Partners of
Wuskwatim Power Limited Partnership

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Wuskwatim
Power Limited Partnership, which comprise the balance sheet as at
March 31, 2014, and the statements of loss, partners' capital and cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for
private enterprises and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

A member firm of £rnat § Young Globat Limitad
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respecits,
the financial position of Wuskwatim Power Limited Partnership as at
March 31, 2014, and the results of operations and its cash flows for the year

then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for private
enterprises.

é)m.ax‘: v ?4‘&/&7 AL
Winnipeg, Canada,

July 23, 2014. Chartered Accountants
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENT OF LOSS
For the year ended March 31

Appendix 11.4
Corporate Overview MFR 6

Notes 2014 2013

millions of dollars

Revenue 47 25

Expenses

Operating and administrative 1 5
Finance expense 3 71 41
Depreciation 20 12
Amortization 7 4
Water rentals 4 5 3
114 65

Net Loss (67) (40)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

BALANCE SHEET
As at March 31

Notes 2014 2013

millions of dollars
Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

In service 5 1336 1325
Less accumulated depreciation 5 31 12
1 305 1313
Construction in progress 5 2 1
1307 1314
Intangible Assets
In service 6 305 303
Less accumulated amortization 6 11 4
294 299
Current Assets
Term investment 7 3 1
Accounts receivable 8 7 4
Prepaids 9 - 4
10 9
1611 1622
Liabilities and Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 22 31
Interest payable 10 17 16
39 47
Long-Term Debt 11 1 350 1288
Total Liabilities 1389 1335
Partners' Capital 12 222 287
1611 1622

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

%/’7%/9%7 7/ C ﬂ/\_/

Lorne Midford, P.Eng. Darren B. Rainkie, CA
Chair of the general partner of WPLP Treasurer and Chair of the Audit Committee
(5022649 Manitoba Ltd.)
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENT OF PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
For the year ended March 31

March 31 March 31

2013 Contributions Net Loss 2014
millions of dollars

General Partner = = = -
(5022649 Manitoba Ltd.)

Manitoba Hydro 192 2 (45) 149
Taskinigahp Power Corporation 95 - (22) 73
287 2 (67) 222

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended March 31

Appendix 11.4
Corporate Overview MFR 6

2014 2013

Operating Activities

millions of dollars

Cash receipts from customers 45 20
Cash paid to suppliers (16) (5)
Interest paid (70) (25)
Cash used for operating activities (41) (10)
Financing Activities

Proceeds from issue of units of WPLP 2 24

Proceeds from long-term debt 63 87

Cash provided by financing activities 65 111

Investing Activities

Additions to property, plant and equipment (22) (87)
Additions to intangible assets 1 (14)
Term investment (3) -

Cash used for investing activities (24) (101)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Wuskwatim Power Limited Partnership (WPLP or the Partnership) was formed on December 9,
2004 under the laws of Manitoba to carry on the business of developing, owning and operating
the Wuskwatim hydro-electric generating station (the Project) and related works excluding the
transmission facilities but including all dams, dikes, channels, excavations and roads to be
located at Taskinigup Falls near Wuskwatim Lake.

An agreement was reached between Manitoba Hydro and Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation (NCN)
on the development of the Project pursuant to a Project Development Agreement (the PDA) and
the execution of the PDA was carried out on June 26, 2006. Initial Closing, as defined under the
PDA, occurred on June 28 and 29, 2006. The parties to the PDA executed as a supplementary
agreement to the PDA the Wuskwatim Project Development Supplementary Agreement on
March 15, 2011. Manitoba Hydro and Taskinigahp Power Corporation (TPC) (owned beneficially
by NCN) are limited partners of WPLP. The General Partner, which is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Manitoba Hydro, also owns a nominal interest in WPLP. TPC became a limited partner on
June 28, 2006.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of Presentation
These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Part Il of the Chartered
Professional Accountants (CPA) Canada Handbook - Accounting — Canadian Accounting
Standards for Private Enterprises, which sets out generally accepted accounting
principles for non-publicly accountable enterprises in Canada (“GAAP”) and include the
significant accounting policies described hereafter.

b) Revenue
Manitoba Hydro purchases all the power from the Partnership under a Power Purchase
Agreement. Revenue is billed when energy is generated and billed on a monthly basis.

c) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost and interest applied at WPLP’s average
cost of debt. Finance expense is allocated to construction until a capital project becomes
operational or a decision is made to abandon, cancel or indefinitely defer construction.
Once the transfer to in-service property, plant and equipment is made, finance expense
allocated to construction will cease, and depreciation and finance expense charged to
operations will commence. '

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the following years to
depreciate the assets over their estimated useful lives:

Generating station 20-125 vyears
Staff house 20-65 years
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

d) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets include contributions made to Manitoba Hydro for transmission lines.
Intangible assets are recorded at cost and interest applied at WPLP’s average cost of
debt associated with the Interconnection Credit Facility. Once the associated
transmission asset is in-service, finance expense allocated to the intangible asset will
cease, and amortization and finance expense charged to operations will commence.

Amortization is provided using the straight-line method over the following years to
amortize the assets over their estimated useful lives:

Transmission line 10-85 years

e) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the financial
statements. Actual results may differ from those estimates, but differences are not
expected to be material.

NOTE 3 FINANCE EXPENSE
2014 2013
millions of dollars
Interest on debt 71 66
Interest capitalized - (25)

71 41

Included in interest on debt is the Provincial Debt Guarantee Fee of 1.0% on the Non-Revolving
Credit Facility, the Revolving Credit Facility and the Interconnection Credit Facility.

NOTE 4 WATER RENTALS

Water rentals are paid to the Province of Manitoba for the use of water resources in the
operation of the Partnership’s hydro-electric generating stations.
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2014 2013
Accumulated Construction Accumulated Construction
In service  depreciation in progress In senice depreciation in progress

millions of dollars

Generating station 1336 31 - 1325 12 -
Staff house - - 2 - - 1
1336 31 2 1325 12 1

For the year ended March 31, 2014, nil (2013 - $19 million) in interest charges have been
allocated to the generating station.

Manitoba Hydro is building the staff house in accordance with the Construction Agreement.
Depreciation on the staff house will commence when it is in service and will be calculated on a
straight-line remaining life basis. '

NOTE 6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2014 2013
Accumulated Work in Accumulated Work in
In service amortization progress In senice amortization progress
millions of dollars
Transmission line 305 1 - 303 4 -

The intangible asset represents amounts accrued or paid to Manitoba Hydro to develop the
transmission facilities required to connect the Wuskwatim generating station to Manitoba Hydro’s
transmission system as specified in the Interconnection and Operating Agreement (IOA).
Ownership of these facilities remain with Manitoba Hydro. For the year ended March 31, 2014,
nil (2013 - $6 million) in interest charges have been allocated to this asset.

NOTE 7 TERM INVESTMENT

This balance represents an investment of $3 million (2013 - $1 million) in surplus cash plus
accrued interest that Manitoba Hydro has invested on behalf of the Partnership. This investment
is redeemable within two business days on demand and interest earned is based on the average
interest rate earned by Manitoba Hydro on its trust investments over the same period, or the
average of the overnight investment rates as quoted by the Province of Manitoba over the term
of the investment. The effective interest rate as at March 31, 2014 was 1.0% (2013 - 1.0%).
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 8 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consist of revenue receivable, the balance of the transmission line over
contribution from Manitoba Hydro and amounts recoverable from the federal government for
Goods and Services Tax (GST) paid. These amounts will be settled in approximately the
following month.

NOTE 9 PREPAIDS

This balance represents the excess of scheduled contributions over actual expenditures of nil
(2013 - $4 million) by WPLP to Manitoba Hydro for the construction of the transmission facilities.
Contributions for the transmission facilities are based on the |IOA, which differs from actual
expenditures.

NOTE 10 INTEREST PAYABLE

Interest payable represents interest owing on the credit facilities and is comprised of the
following:

2014 2013
millions of dollars

Non-Revolving Credit Facility 13 12
Interconnection Credit Facility 4 4
17 16

NOTE 11 LONG-TERM DEBT

Manitoba Hydro will provide all debt financing for WPLP through various credit facilities. The debt
incurred by WPLP through these credit facilities matures 50 years after the in-service date of the
first generator in the Project and bears interest at rates specified in the Project Financing
Agreement. This debt is secured by the assets owned beneficially by WPLP up to a maximum of
$1.3 billion as per the Demand Debenture executed on June 28, 2006 by the General Partner.
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

Long-term debt is comprised of the following:

2014 2013

millions of dollars

Non-Revolving Credit Facility 1032 971
Revolving Credit Facility 15 13
Interconnection Credit Facility 303 304

1 350 1288

The Non-Revolving and Revolving Credit Facilities consist of Manitoba Hydro advances received
by WPLP to fund a portion of the total capital cost and on-going operating costs related to the
Wuskwatim generating station. Non-revolving advances are limited to an amount that cannot
exceed 75% of the total capital cost less any advances received through revolving advances,
except for the first ten years following the final closing date when the amount may increase to
85% of the total capital cost less any advances made under the Revolving Credit Facility. The
interest rates on the Non-Revolving and Revolving Credit Facility advances are based on
Manitoba Hydro's short-term borrowing cost or the one-month Bankers’ Acceptance rate plus a
1% Provincial Guarantee Fee which was equal to 2.2% as at March 31, 2014 (2013 — 2.2%). The
effective interest rate for the year was 5.4% (2013 — 5.2 %) for the Non-Revolving Credit Facility
and 2.1% (2013 — 2.1%) for the Revolving Credit Facility.

Once the principal amount of the advances under the Non-Revolving Credit Facility exceed
$200 million, the interest rate is converted to a fixed rate equal to the Canadian Thirty Year Rate,
which includes a 1% Provincial Guarantee Fee, in effect on the conversion date. The first
conversion date was February 13, 2008, at which time the Canadian Thirty Year Rate was 5.9%.
The second conversion date was July 14, 2009, at which time the Canadian Thirty Year Rate
was 5.9%. The third conversion date was June 11, 2010, at which time the Canadian Thirty Year
Rate was 5.7%. The fourth conversion date was May 13, 2011, at which time the Canadian
Thirty Year Rate was 5.4%. The fifth conversion date was August 14, 2013, at which time the
Canadian Thirty Year Rate was 5.1%.

The Interconnection Credit Facility consists of Manitoba Hydro advances received by the
Partnership to fund the total capital cost to construct and install transmission facilities and
interconnection system upgrades pursuant to the IOA with Manitoba Hydro. The interest rate on
the Consolidated Interconnection Credit Facility is a fixed rate based on the weighted average of
all Canadian Thirty Year Rates established for the Interconnection Credit Facility on June 29,
2012 and includes a 1.0% Provincial Guarantee Fee. The effective interest rate for the
Interconnection Credit Facility for the year was 5.6% (2013 — 5.5%).
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

Principal payments on these loans are as follows:

Total
millions of dollars
2015 -
2016 -
2017 -
2018 -
2019 -
2020-2063 1350
1350
NOTE 12 PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
Authorized:  Unlimited number of limited partnership units at $1 000 each.
Issued: 328 666.667 limited partnership units at $1 000 each.
As at March 31, limited partnership units issued were as follows:
2014 2013
units
General Partner (5022649 Manitoba Ltd.) 32.867 32.675
Manitoba Hydro 220 173.800 218 889.825
Taskinigahp Power Corporation 108 460.000 107 827.500
328 666.667 326 750.000

During the year ended March 31, 2014, WPLP issued 1 916.667 limited partnership units. These
units have no preference, exchange, pre-emptive or redemption rights.

NOTE 13 FINANCIAL RISKS

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a third party to a financial instrument might fail to meet its obligations
under the terms of the financial instrument. The Partnership’s financial asset that is exposed to
credit risk is accounts receivable. This risk is minimal as it mainly relates to accounts receivable
arising from the sale of power to Manitoba Hydro.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. The Partnership is exposed to interest rate risk associated with
debt financing provided by Manitoba Hydro through variable-rate credit facilities.

10
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Partnership will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they come due. To meet forecasted cash requirements, the Partnership uses cash generated
from operations and credit facilities provided by Manitoba Hydro (Note 11).

NOTE 14 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

WPLP separately identifies within its records all transactions with Manitoba Hydro at the
exchange amount as determined by various agreements. As at March 31, the following balances
and transactions relate to Manitoba Hydro:
2014 2013
millions of dollars

Revenue 47 25
Expenses

Operating and administrative 11 ' 5

Finance expense (Note 3) 7 41

Water rentals (Note 4) 5 3
Term Investment (Note 7) 3 1
Accounts receivable (Note 8) 7 4
Accounts payable 22 31
Interest payable (Note 10) 17 16
Long-term debt (Note 11) 1350 1288

Amounts paid to Manitoba Hydro include $22 million (2013 - $87 million) relating to the
generating station, nil (2013 - $14 million) related to the transmission line, and $2 million (2013 -
$4 million) in GST that was recovered from the Canada Revenue Agency with the exception of
the accounts receivable noted above. Amounts received from Manitoba Hydro includes $2 million
(2013 - $16 million) in equity contributions from both Manitoba Hydro and its wholly owned
subsidiary, the General Partner.

WPLP has also entered into various agreements with Manitoba Hydro to provide services to the
Partnership as follows:

a) the Construction Agreement, whereby Manitoba Hydro will construct the Wuskwatim
generating station and related works;

b) the Project Financing Agreement, whereby Manitoba Hydro will provide debt financing to
WPLP;

c) the Management Agreement, whereby Manitoba Hydro will provide administrative and
management functions to WPLP;

1"
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

d) the Maintenance and Operations Agreement, whereby Manitoba Hydro will provide all
maintenance and on-site operations for the Wuskwatim generating station;

e) the IOA, whereby Manitoba Hydro will connect the Wuskwatim generating station to Manitoba
Hydro’s integrated power system:;

f) the Systems Operation and Dispatch Agreement, whereby Manitoba Hydro will operate and
dispatch the Wuskwatim generating station in an integrated fashion with Manitoba Hydro's
integrated power system; and

g) the Power Purchase Agreement, whereby Manitoba Hydro will purchase from WPLP all of
the power generated by the Wuskwatim generating station. WPLP is economically dependent
on Manitoba Hydro as the sole purchaser of the power from Wuskwatim.

Amounts paid to Manitoba Hydro under the Management Agreement for the year ended March
31, 2014 totaled $1 million (2013 - $3 million).

NOTE 156 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Under the terms of the Wuskwatim PDA, WPLP maintains a 75:25 debt/equity ratio except for
the first ten years following the final closing date when the amount may increase to 85% of the
total capital cost less any advances made under the Revolving Credit Facility. Long-term debt
financing is provided by Manitoba Hydro on an as-required basis. Manitoba Hydro also provides
a $50 million revolving credit facility and a separate credit facility to finance the contributions to
Manitoba Hydro for the construction of the transmission interconnection facilities necessary to
connect the Wuskwatim generating station to the Manitoba Hydro system. The outstanding
balance of this Interconnection Credit Facility is excluded from the calculation of the debt/equity
ratio.

WPL'P’s debt ratio as at March 31 was as follows:
2014 2013
millions of dollars

Long-term debt 1047 984
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and term investment (3) )
Net debt 1044 983
Partners' Capital 222 287
Debt ratio 82% 77%

12
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 16 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Where appropriate, comparative figures for 2013 have been reclassified in order to conform to
the presentation adopted in 2014.

13
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Financial Statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholder of
Manitoba Hydro International Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of
Manitoba Hydro International Ltd., which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at March 31, 2014, and the consolidated statements of income, retained
earnings and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for private enterprises, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

A raember firm of Ernst & Young Giobat Limited
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Manitoba Hydro International Ltd. as at
March 31, 2014, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year

then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for private
enterprises.

W ¥ }myz ALP
Winnipeg, Canada,

June 25, 2014. Chartered Accountants

A raember firm of Ernst & Young Giobat Limited



Appendix 11.4
2015/16 & 2016/17 General Rate Application Corporate Overview MFR 6

MANITOBA HYDRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended March 31

Notes 2014 2013
thousands of dollars

Revenues 51096 43170

Cost of Operations

Staff 16 996 14272
Other direct costs 2 15 149 13762
32145 28 034
Operating Profit 18 951 15136
Expenses
Operating and administrative 9699 9 000
Depreciation 1188 975
Capital and other taxes ‘ 279 239
11 166 10214
Income before other items 7785 4922
Other ltems
Interest income 75 47
Interest expense ' (1) (13)
74 34
Net Income 7 859 4956

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS
For the year ended March 31
2014 2013
thousands of dollars

Retained earnings, beginning of year 24 464 19508
Net income 7 859 4956
Retained earnings, end of year 32323 24 464

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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MANITOBA HYDRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at March 31

Notes 2014 2013
thousands of dollars
Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
In service 4 10 505 8 846
Less accumulated depreciation 4 2327 1678
8178 7168
Current Assets
Cash 6 5919 4090
Cash - restricted 6 4165 4460
Due from parent 8 1500 -
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 7 18 425 15 644
Prepaid expenses 1315 3855
“ 31324 28 049
Other Assets
Intangible assets 5 638 654
40 140 - 35871
Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 7 4001 5122
Deferred revenue 10 1463 3857
5464 8979
Long-Term Deferred Revenue 10 1192 1267
Shareholder’s Equity
Share capital 12 1161 1161
Retained earnings 32323 24 464
33484 25625
40 140 35871

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

" Approved on behalf of the Board:

/1/774/// 4 et

<William Fraser, FCA James Husiak, CA
Chair of the Board Chair of the Audit Committee
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MANITOBA HYDRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended March 31
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2014 2013
thousands of dollars

Operating Activities
Cash receipts from customers 45 846 40 496
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (40 704) (38 061)
Interest received 75 47
Interest paid (1) (13)
Cash provided by operating activities 5216 2 469
Investing Activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment (1 970) (1587)
Additions to intangible assets (212) (215)
Term investment {1 500) -
Cash used for investing activities (3 682) {1 802)
Net increase in cash 1534 667
Cash, beginning of year 8 550 7 883
Cash, end of year 10 084 8 550

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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MANITOBA HYDRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Manitoba Hydro International Ltd. (MHI), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Manitoba Hydro-
Electric Board (Manitoba Hydro), was incorporated in September 1998 and commenced
operations April 1, 1999. As a wholly owned subsidiary of Manitoba Hydro, MHI is not subject
to income taxes under Section 149(d) of the Income Tax Act (Canada), however MHI's foreign
operations may be subject to income taxes in those jurisdictions.

MHI currently has four business segments, International Utility Services, Manitoba HVDC
Research Centre, W.I.R.E. Services and Telecom Services. International Utility Services provides
professional consulting, training and electricity infrastructure management services primarily to
developing markets. The Manitoba HVDC Research Centre provides technology products,
research and development and engineering services to the electrical power system industry.
W.LR.E. Services provides aerial LiDAR data collection and analysis to determine transmission
line thermal ratings. Telecom Services provides state of the art broadband telecommunication
solutions for telecom carriers, internet service providers and large commercial customers.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of MHI and its Nigerian and United
Arab Emirates subsidiaries. For purposes of consolidation, all significant intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of Presentation
These consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with Part Il of the
Chartered Professional Accountants (CPA) Canada Handbook — Accounting — Canadian
Accounting Standards for Private Enterprises, which sets out generally accepted
accounting principles for non-publicly accountable enterprises in Canada (“GAAP”) and
include the significant accounting policies described hereafter.

b) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the following years to depreciate the assets over their
estimated useful lives:

Leasehold improvements 20 years
Furniture and fixtures 20 years
Office, research, computer and telecom equipment 5 years
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MANITOBA HYDRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

g)

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include computer software. They are recorded at cost and are
amortized over their useful lives on a straight-line basis. The expected useful life is as
follows:

Computer software 5 years

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when services are provided or goods are shipped to the customer.
Revenue from maintenance and lease contracts is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the term of the contract.

MHI recognizes revenue from fixed priced contracts under the percentage-of-completion
method. The percentage of completion is determined by comparing the costs incurred as
at the consolidated balance sheet date to the total estimated costs, which included costs
incurred plus anticipated costs for completing a contract.

Foreign Exchange

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars
at rates of exchange prevailing as at the consolidated balance sheet date. Revenues and
expenses are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date of the transaction.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are included in income.

MHTV’s integrated foreign subsidiaries, located in Nigeria and the United Arab Emirates,
are accounted for under the temporal method. Under this method, monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the exchange rate in effect as at the consolidated balance
sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical rates.
Revenues and expenses are translated at average rates for the period. Exchange gains or
losses arising from the translation are included in operations.

Research and Development Expenses

Research expenses are charged to income in the year they are incurred. Development
costs are charged to operations in the period of the expenditure unless a development
project meets the criteria under Canadian GAAP for deferral and amortization.

Other Direct Costs
Other direct costs include transportation, accommodations, rents, project equipment,
logistics, project bad debt expense, and other.
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h) Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements. Actual amounts could differ from
those estimates. Key areas of estimation requiring management to make subjective
judgements of matters that are inherently uncertain include the estimates for
uncollectible accounts, provision for the useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangibles. Significant changes in assumptions, including those with respect to
future business plans and cash flows, could change the recorded amounts by a material

amount.

NOTE 3 OPERATING LINE OF CREDIT

~Manitoba Hydro provides MHI with a $1 million revolving line of credit to be used to fund its
operations. The line of credit is payable on demand and bears interest at the average one-
month Bankers’ Acceptance rate. The effective rate for the fiscal year 2014 was nil (2013- nil).
The amount outstanding on this operating line of credit as at March 31, 2014 is nil (2013 - nil).

NOTE 4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2014
In Accumulated Net
service  depreciation book value
thousands of dollars
Leasehold improvements 3594 702 2892
Furniture and fixtures 714 149 565
Office, research, computer and telecom equipment 6 197 1476 4721
10505 2327 8178
2013
In Accumulated Net
service  depreciation book value
thousands of dollars
Leasehold improvements 3561 524 3037
Furniture and fixtures 704 113 591
Office, research, computer and telecom equipment 4581 1041 3540

8 846 1678 7168
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MANITOBA HYDRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

Included in the cost above is $1 254 thousand (2013 - $700 thousand) of property, plant and
equipment costs which have not been amortized as these assets were not placed in use as of

year end.
NOTE 5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2014
In Accumulated Net
service amortization book value
thousands of dollars
Computer software 1180 542 638
1180 542 638
2013
In Accumulated Net
service amortization book value
thousands of dollars
Computer software 1067 413 654
1067 413 654

The additions to intangible assets for the year totaled $212 thousand (2013 - $215 thousand).

In total, intangible assets of $228 thousand (2013 - $202 thousand) were amortized to
operations during the year.

NOTE 6 CASH

2014 2013
thousands of dollars

Cash - Canadian bank accounts 4980 3916
Cash - Overseas bank accounts . 939 174
5919 4090
Cash - Restricted 4165 4 460
: 10 084 8550
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MANITOBA HYDRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

Cash in overseas bank accounts includes funds deposited in foreign currencies in countries
other than Canada. Restricted cash relates to deposits held for letters of guarantees for
customer contracts. Cash balances earn interest at various rates based on monthly average
balances. The effective interest rate for 2014 averaged 0.8% (2013 — 0.7%).

NOTE 7 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the normal course of business, MHI provided $3 105 thousand (2013 - $5 264 thousand)
in services to Manitoba Hydro. During the year, Manitoba Hydro provided staffing to MHI at a
cost recovery of $2 302 thousand (2013 - $2 336 thousand). MHI paid $521 thousand (2013 -
$475 thousand) of expenses pertaining to the rental of fibre strands from Manitoba Hydro. MHI
paid nil (2013 - nil) interest on its operating line of credit to Manitoba Hydro. Included in
accounts payable is $572 thousand (2013 - $1 505 thousand) owing to Manitoba Hydro.
Included in accounts receivable and accrued revenue is $513 thousand (2013 - $740 thousand)
owing from Manitoba Hydro. Related party transactions are recorded at the exchange amount.

NOTE 8 DUE FROM PARENT

This balance represents an investment of $1 500 thousand (2013 - nil) in surplus cash that
Manitoba Hydro has invested on behalf of MHI. This investment is redeemable within two
business days on demand and interest earned is based on the average interest rate earned by
Manitoba Hydro on its trust investments over the same period, or the average of the overnight
investment rates as quoted by the Province of Manitoba over the term of the investment. The
effective interest rate as at March 31, 2014 was 1.0% (2013 - 1.0%).

NOTE9 LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at March 31, 2014, future minimum annual lease payments committed under operating
leases over the next five years are as follows:

Year 1 $554 thousand per year
Years 2-5 $592 thousand per year
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MANITOBA HYDRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 10 DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue pertains to the deferral of revenue from advance payments from customers.
The associated revenue is recognized when the services are provided.

2014 2013
thousands of dollars
Short-Term
Software maintenance contracts 621 645
Dark fibre lease payment 76 76
Annual fibre lease contracts 99 99
Advance payments from international contracts 667 3037
1463 3857
Long-Term
Software maintenance contracts * 395 394
Dark fibre lease payment 797 873
1192 1267
Total 2 655 5124

NOTE 11 FINANCIAL RISKS

MHI is exposed to interest rate, foreign exchange, credit and liquidity risks. Risk management
policies, processes and systems have been established to identify and analyze financial risks
faced by MHI, to set risk tolerance limits, to establish controls and to monitor risk and
adherence to policies. The risk management plan is designed to ensure MHI's risks and
exposures are in line with MHI’s business objectives and risk tolerances. The nature of the
financial risks and MHI's strategy for managing these risks has not changed significantly from
the prior year.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is associated with variable interest rates paid to the parent company, the
Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board. The amount due to parent was nil at March 31, 2014 (2013 -
nil).

Foreign Exchange Risk
Financial risk to MHI's operations arises from fluctuations in exchange rates and the volatility in
these rates. MHI does not use derivative instruments to reduce its exposure to foreign currency
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MANITOBA HYDRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

risk. While MHI generates sales in a variety of countries, the sales contracts are based in
Canadian dollars, U.S. dollars, Saudi Arabia Riyals, or Euros in order to reduce financial risk of
foreign exchange. For the year ended March 31, 2014, realized foreign exchange translation
gains of $667 thousand (2013- $119 thousand) are included in income.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counterparty will fail to perform its obligations. As at
March 31, 2014, MHI is exposed to credit risk from customers in geographic areas primarily in
Canada, Africa, Saudi Arabia, the United States, and Europe. MHI mitigates credit risk through
the establishment of working relationships with customers and government agencies, and
diversification to eliminate significant credit risk concentration.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that MHI will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
come due. To meet forecasted cash requirements, MHI uses cash generated from operations
and has access to an operating line of credit from Manitoba Hydro. All accounts payable are
due within 30 days of year end. See Note 9 for details of other contractual obligations and their
maturities.

NOTE 12 SHARE CAPITAL

Unlimited number of common shares authorized and one common share issued. Shares in the
capital of MHI cannot be sold, assigned, transferred or otherwise disposed of unless Manitoba
Hydro will, after the disposition, continue to own directly or indirectly all of MHI's shares.

NOTE 13 PENSION PLAN

MHI has a defined contribution pension plan for its employees. MHI’s contribution and expense
for the year amounted to $224 thousand (2013 - $200 thousand) which is included in operating
and administrative expenses. MH| does not carry any pension obligation on its consolidated
financial statements for its defined contribution plan.

10
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TESHMONT LP HOLDINGS LTD.

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31

2014 2013
thousands of dollars
Revenue
Partnership income : 98 436
Interest income 21 15
119 451
Expenses 19 12
Net Income ) 100 439
Retained earnings, beginning of year 5 511 5072
Retained earnings, end of year 5611 5 511

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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As at March 31
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Notes 2014 2013
thousands of dollars
Assets
Current Assets
Cash 9 18
Term investments : 3 2 267 2 256
2276 2274
Other Assets
Investment in partnership 4 3335 3237
5611 5511
Other Liabilities
Capital Tax - -
Shareholder's Equity
Share capital - -
Retained earnings 5611 5511
5 611 5511
5611 5511

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

7

/ V%
a7 /é </&"/’%

William Fraser, FCA Jarhes Husiak, CA
Chair of the Board Chair of the Audit Committee
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TESHMONT LP HOLDINGS LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31

2014 2013
thousands of dollars

Operating Activities

Proceeds from partnership income - 599
Interest received 21 15
Cash paid to suppliers (19) (12)
Cash provided by operating activities 2 602
Investing Activities

Term investments (11) (594)
Cash used for investing activities (11) (594)
Net increase (decrease) in cash (9) 8
Cash, beginning of year 18 10
Cash, end of year 9 18

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TESHMONT LP HOLDINGS LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Teshmont LP Holdings Ltd. (Teshmont Holdings) was established February 14, 2003 as a
holding company of Manitoba Hydro to acquire a 40% ownership of Teshmont Consultants
Limited Partnership (Teshmont LP), which carries on a high voltage engineering and
consulting practice.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of Presentation

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Part Il of the Chartered
Professional Accountants (CPA) Canada Handbook - Accounting — Canadian
Accounting Standards for Private Enterprises, which sets out generally accepted
accounting principles for non-publicly accountable enterprises in Canada (“GAAP”)
and include the significant accounting policies described hereafter.

Revenue Recognition
The investment in Teshmont LP is accounted for by the equity method.
Financial Instruments

All financial instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition as of the
trade date. Measurement in subsequent periods depends on the classification of the
instrument. Financial instruments are classified into one of the following categories:
held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, held-for-trading, available-for-
sale, or other financial liabilities.

Financial Instruments classified as other financial liabilities are measured at
amortized cost using the effective method of amortization. Held-for-trading financial
instruments are measured at fair value.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates, but
differences are not expected to be material.
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TESHMONT LP HOLDINGS LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 3 TERM INVESTMENTS

Term investments include surplus cash of $2 267 thousand (2012 - $2 256 thousand)
Manitoba Hydro has invested on behalf of Teshmont Holdings. The interest earned and paid
on this investment will be based on the average interest rate earned by Manitoba Hydro on
their trust investments over the same period, or the average of the overnight investment
rates as quoted by the Province of Manitoba over the term of the investment.

NOTE 4 INVESTMENT IN PARTNERSHIP

Teshmont Holdings investment in Teshmont LP is accounted for by the equity method
where partnership income increases the investment and profit distributions decrease the

investment.
2014 2013
thousands of dollars
Opening Investment 3237 3400
Parternship Income 98 436
Distributions Received - (599)
Ending Investment 3335 3237
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholder of
Minell Pipelines Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Minell Pipelines
Ltd., which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2014, and the
statements of income (loss), retained earnings and cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Giobat Limited
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Minell Pipelines Ltd. as at March 31, 2014, and the

results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Ermat + ?azw?/ AP
Winnipeg, Canada,

June 25, 2014. Chartered Accountants

A rnember firm: of Ernst & Young Gionat Limited
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MINELL PIPELINES LTD.

STATEMENT OF INCOME (LOSS) AND RETAINED EARNINGS
For the year ended March 31

Notes 2014 2013
thousands of dollars

Revenues
Rental of gas transmission facilities 198 198
Expenses
Operating and administrative 8 75 48
Finance expense 4 14 17
Depreciation and amortization 39 39
Capital and other taxes 138 130
266 234
Net Loss (68) (36)
Retained earnings, beginning of year 93 129
Retained earnings, end of year 25 93

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MINELL PIPELINES LTD.

BALANCE SHEET
As at March 31

Notes 2014 2013
thousands of dollars

Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

In service 5 1833 1833
Less accumulated depreciation 5 903 863
930 970
Construction in progress 5 848 243
1778 1213
Current Assets
Prepaid expenses 2 2
Other Assets
Regulated assets 6 300 320
2080 1535

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

Current Liabilities

Due to parent 7 1725 1117
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 30 24

1755 1141
Contributions in Aid of Construction 15 16

Shareholder's Equity

Share capital 10 285 285
Retained earnings 25 93
310 378

2080 1535

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Approved on behalf of the Board:

7 .
W Y ernee? Lpered

William Fraser, FCA Jan(es Husiak, CA
Chair of the Board Chair of the Audit Committee
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MINELL PIPELINES LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended March 31

2014 2013
thousands of dollars

Operating Activities

Cash receipts from customers 198 198
Cash paid to suppliers (187) (159)
Interest paid (14) (17)
Cash (used for) provided by operating activities (3) 22
Financing Activities

Advance from parent company 608 71

Cash provided by financing activities 608 71

Investing Activities

Additions to capital assets, net of contributions (605) (93)
Cash used for investing activities (605) . (93)

Net change in cash - -

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year - -

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MINELL PIPELINES LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Minell Pipelines Ltd. (Minell) operates a pipeline transmission system extending from
Moosomin, Saskatchewan to Russell, Manitoba. This transmission system is
approximately 70 kilometers in length and is used solely for the transportation of natural
gas on behalf of Centra Gas Manitoba Inc. (Centra). Minell is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board and is regulated by the National Energy Board
(NEB).

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation - The financial statements were prepared in accordance with
Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as set forth in Part V of the
Chartered Professional Accountants (CPA) Canada Handbook — Accounting - Pre-
Changeover Accounting Standards and include the significant accounting policies
described hereafter.

Rate Regulated Accounting - The rental charged for gas transmission facilities is
subject to regulation by the NEB. The rate-setting process ensures that rates charged to
customers recover all costs incurred in providing service. As permitted under Canadian
GAAP, Minell applies standards issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) in the United States as another source of GAAP. FASB Accounting Standards
Codification Section 980 — Regulated Operations, represents the standard Minell applies
for rate-regulated accounting. These accounting policies differ from enterprises that do
not operate in a rate-regulated environment. Such accounting policies allow for the
deferral of certain costs or credits which will be recovered or refunded in future rates.
These costs or credits would otherwise have been included in the determination of net
income in the year that the cost or credit is incurred. Minell refers to such deferred costs
or credits as regulated assets (Note 6) or liabilities which are comprised of the following:

o Deferred taxes - As a result of the change in ownership in 1999, Minell became
non-taxable and in so doing, incurred a non-recurring tax expense. This non-
recurring tax expense has been deferred and is being amortized over a period of
30 years.

Minell's other significant accounting policies are as follows:

a) Property, Plant and Equipment
Natural gas transmission systems and buildings and equipment are recorded at
cost, which includes interest and overhead amounts capitalized during the
construction period. Once the transfer to in-service property, plant and equipment
is made, finance expense allocated to construction ceases and depreciation and
finance expense charged to operations commences.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis at rates varying from 2.0% to
2.5% based on the estimated useful lives of the assets.
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MINELL PIPELINES LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

b) Contributions in Aid of Construction
Contributions in aid of construction are non- refundable contributions from
customers in support of specific transmission facilities. These amounts are
amortized to income at rates that correspond with the depreciation rates of the
related assets.

C) Revenue
Revenue for the use of transmission facilities is from a related party and is
recognized on a monthly basis.

d) Financial Instruments
All financial instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition as of the
trade date. Measurement in subsequent periods depends on the classification of
the instrument. Financial instruments classified as other financial liabilities are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method of amortization.

e) Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income
(OCl). As Minell has no items related to OCI, comprehensive income for the year
is equivalent to net income.

f) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements. Actual results could differ from
those estimates, but differences are not expected to be material.

NOTE 3 ACCOUNTING CHANGES
Future Accounting Changes

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

In February 2008, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) announced that
publicly accountable enterprises would be required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian
GAAP for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011. In October 2009, the Public
Sector Accounting Board confirmed that government business enterprises such as
Minell would be required to follow IFRS for periods beginning January 1, 2011.

Although IFRS and Canadian GAAP are premised on a similar conceptual framework,
there are a number of differences with respect to recognition, measurement and
disclosure. The areas with the highest potential to impact Minell include property, plant
and equipment, regulatory assets and liabilities and the transitional requirements upon
the adoption of IFRS under the provisions of IFRS 1, First-Time Adoption of IFRS.

In May 2010, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued the omnibus
Improvements to IFRS, which includes an amendment to IFRS 1 for entities with rate-
regulated activities. The amendment applies to first-time adopters by offering an optional
exemption to use the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible

5
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MINELL PIPELINES LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

assets as deemed cost of those assets on the transition date. This exemption eliminates
the requirement to retrospectively adjust opening property, plant and equipment and/or
intangible asset balances for costs that would otherwise not qualify for capitalization
under IFRS. Minell intends to apply this exemption.

In September 2010, the AcSB implemented changes to Part | of the CPA Canada
Handbook —International Financial Reporting Standards allowing qualifying entities with
rate-regulated activities to be permitted, but not required, to defer their adoption of IFRS
for one year. In March 2012, September 2012 and February 2013, the AcSB announced
additional optional one-year deferrals of IFRS for qualifying entities with rate-regulated
activities. Minell meets the AcSB criteria for deferral and intends to adopt IFRS for its
2015-16 fiscal year with comparative information presented for the 2014-15 fiscal year.

On January 30, 2014, the |IASB issued the interim standard IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral
Accounts for rate-regulated activities effective January 1, 2016 with earlier adoption
permitted. Minell will early adopt the interim standard upon transition to IFRS effective
April 1, 2015 and will continue fo recognize regulatory deferral accounts for its financial
reporting. «

At this time, it is uncertain as to the final position the IASB will take as part of its Rate-
Regulated Activities project. In addition, the IASB has a number of on-going projects on
its agenda which may result in modifications to existing IFRS prior to the
commencement of Minell's 2015-16 fiscal year. Minell continues to monitor and evaluate
the impacts of current and prospective IFRS on its accounting policies, financial position
and business activities.

NOTE 4 FINANCE EXPENSE

2014 2013
thousands of dollars

Interest on amount due to parent 23 21
Interest capitalized (9) 4)
14 17
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MINELL PIPELINES LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2014 2013
thousands of dollars

Land, buildings and equipment 94 94
Gas transmission 1739 1739
1833 1833

Accumulated depreciation 9203 863
‘ 930 970

Construction in progress 848 243
1778 1213

NOTE 6 REGULATED ASSETS

2014 2013
thousands of dollars

Deferred taxes 300 320

If Minell was not subject to rate regulation, the costs associated with the regulated
assets would be charged to operations in the year that they were incurred and the net
income for 2014 would have increased by $20 thousand (2013 — net income increased
by $20 thousand).

In total, regulated assets of $20 thousand (2013 - $20 thousand) were amortized to
operations during the year.

NOTE 7 DUE TO PARENT

2014 2013
thousands of dollars

Amount due to parent 1725 1117

The amount due to the parent company bears interest at the three-month T-Bill rate plus
a 1% Provincial Guarantee Fee on the outstanding balance and has no fixed terms of
repayment. The effective rate for the period was 1.0% (2013 - 1.0%)
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MINELL PIPELINES LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 8 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Rental of gas transmission faciiities is to Centra Gas, a company under common control.
In addition to related party transactions disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
operating and administrative expense includes $75 thousand (2013 - $48 thousand) for

administrative and other services performed by Centra Gas. Related party transactions
are recorded at the exchange amount.

NOTE 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of Minell’s financial instruments at March 31 are as

follows:
2014 2013
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

thousands of dollars

Other Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 30 30 24 24
Due to parent 1725 1725 1117 1117

Minell is exposed to interest rate risk associated with amounts due to the parent
company.

NOTE10 SHARE CAPITAL

2014 2013
thousands of dollars

Share capital
Authorized
Unlimited number of shares of one class
lssued
285 000 shares 285 285

NOTE 11 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Minell meets its capital requirements through cash provided by operating activities and
advances from its parent company, the Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board.
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Unaudited Financial Statements of

MANITOBA HYDRO UTILITY
SERVICES LIMITED
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MANITOBA HYDRO UTILITY SERVICES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31

2014 2013
thousands of dollars
Revenues
Manitoba Hydro meter reading 4 096 3916
Line locating 13 23
Cther contracted services 3 3
Manitoba Hydro contracted services ' 684 562
Interactive voice response system 116 117
4912 4621
Expenses
Operating and administrative
Wages and benefits 4103 3922
Equipment maintenance .57 78
Other operating and administrative 593 537
4753 4 537
Depreciation and amortization 51 64
Capital and other taxes 78 74
4 882 4675
Income (Loss) before other items 30 (54)
Other items
Interest income 14 14
14 14
Net Income (Loss) 44 (40)
Retained earnings, beginning of year : 1721 1761

Retained earnings, end of year 1765 1721

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MANITOBA HYDRO UTILITY SERVICES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)
As at March 31

Notes 2014 2013
thousands of dollars
Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Cost 3 1095 1032
Less accumulated amortization 3 987 935
108 97
Current Assets ‘
Cash 534 63
Term investment 6 1425 1325
Accounts receivable 4 415 789
Prepaid expenses 12 17
2386 2194
2494 2291
Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 6 &9 729 570
Shareholder's Equity
Share capital 7 - -
Retained earnings 1765 1721
1765 1721
2494 2291

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

7

William Fraser, FCA James Husiak, CA
Chair of the Board Chair of the Audit Committee
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'MANITOBA HYDRO UTILITY SERVICES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31

2014 2013
thousands of dollars
Operating Activities
Cash receipts from customers 5291 4 266
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (4 672) (4 744)
Interest received 14 14
Cash provided by (used for) operating activities 633 (464)

Investing Activities

Term investment (100) -
Additions to property, plant and equipment, net of disposals (62) (3)
Cash used for investing activities (162) (3)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 471 (467)
Cash, beginning of year 63 530
Cash, end of year 534 63

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MANITOBA HYDRO UTILITY SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Manitoba Hydro Utility Services Limited (MHUS) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board (Manitoba Hydro) and commenced operations on
January 2, 1998. MHUS provides meter reading, interactive voice response
systems and contracted services primarily to Manitoba Hydro and Centra Gas
Manitoba Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Manitoba Hydro.

As a wholly-owned subsidiary of Manitoba Hydro, MHUS is not subject to income
taxes under section 149(d) of the Income Tax Act (Canada).

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

d)

Basis of Presentation

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Part Il of the
Chartered Professional Accountants (CPA) Canada Handbook - Accounting -
Canadian Accounting Standards for Private Enterprises, which sets out
generally accepted accounting principles for non-publicly accountable
enterprises in Canada (“GAAP”) and include the significant accounting
policies described hereafter.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided
using the straight-line method. The following rates are designed to depreciate
the assets over their estimated useful lives:

Furniture 10.0%
Office equipment 20.0%
Computer systems 10.0%
Computer hardware 20.0%
Meter reading devices 20.0%
Line locating equipment 20.0%
Revenue

Revenue is recognized as services are provided. Revenue from related
parties is recorded at the exchange amount.

Financial Instruments

All financial instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition as of
the trade date. Measurement in subsequent periods depends on the
classification of the instrument. Financial instruments are classified into one of

4
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MANITOBA HYDRO UTILITY SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

the following five categories: held-to-maturity investments, loans and
receivables, held-for-trading, available-for-sale, or other financial liabilities.

Financial instruments classified as loans and receivables and other financial
liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method
of amortization. Held-for-trading financial instruments are measured at fair
value.

Employee Future Benefits

MHUS full time employees are eligible for pension benefits under the Civil
Service Superannuation Board (CSSB) defined benefit plan that provides
pension benefits based on years of service.

MHUS is considered a matching employer under the Civil Service
Superannuation Act (Act). Under the provisions of the Act, MHUS is required
to match employee contributions at a prescribed contribution rate into the Civil
Service Superannuation Fund (CSSF) pool of assets. MHUS does not carry
any pension obligation value on its financial statements.

Pension expenses for MHUS employees are recognized at the time
contributions are made to the Civil Service Superannuation Fund (CSSF),
which maintains the funds and obligations relating to these employees in its
financial records.

Other benefits earned by employees include vacation, banked sick leave and
incentive compensation. Where applicable, the future costs of these benefits
are based on management’s best estimates.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements. Actual results could differ from
those estimates, but differences are not expected to be material.
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MANITOBA HYDRO UTILITY SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2014
Accumulated Net
Cost Amortization book value
thousands of dollars
Furniture 30 23 7
Office equipment 12 12 -
Computer systems 86 86 -
Computer hardware 186 177 9
Line locating equipment 24 24 -
Meter reading devices 757 665 92
« 1095 987 108
2013
Accumulated Net
Cost Amortization book value
thousands of dollars
Furniture 30 21 9
Office equipment 12 12
Computer systems 85 85 -
Computer hardware 183 168 15
Line locating equipment 24 24 -
Meter reading devices 698 625 73
1032 935 97
NOTE 4 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
2014 2013
thousands of dollars
Manitoba Hydro 403 783
Cther 12 6
415 789
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MANITOBA HYDRO UTILITY SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 5 LEASE COMMITMENTS

MHUS leases its premises from Manitoba Hydro. The lease requires payments of
approximately $19 thousand per year (2013 - $12 thousand). In addition, MHUS is
responsible for payment of property taxes which approximate $9 thousand annually
(2013 - $2 thousand). The lease was renewed in December 2013 and will expire in
November 2015 with a one year extension option. Rent and rates were adjusted in
the renewed lease based on City of Winnipeg Assessment & Taxation data.

NOTE 6 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

MHUS identifies all financial transactions with Manitoba Hydro separately in its
records at the exchange amount. During the year, Manitoba Hydro provided $212
thousand (2013 - $266 thousand) in services to MHUS. Amounts due to Manitoba
Hydro in the amount of $21 thousand (2013 - $36 thousand) are included in
accounts payable and accrued liabilities. MHUS paid $15 thousand (2013 - $12
thousand) rent to Manitoba Hydro. MHUS provided $4 923 thousand (2013 - $4 632
thousand) in services to Manitoba Hydro. Amounts receivable from Manitoba Hydro
in the amount of $368 thousand (2013 - $751 thousand) are included in accounts
receivable. MHUS has made a term investment of surplus cash of $1 425 thousand
(2013 - $1 325 thousand) which Manitoba Hydro has invested on its behalf. The
interest earned and paid on this investment will be based on the average interest
rate earned by Manitoba Hydro on their trust investments over the same period, or
the average of the overnight investment rates as quoted by the Province of Manitoba
over the term of the investment.

NOTE 7 SHARE CAPITAL

An unlimited number of Class A and Class B shares authorized and ten (10) Class A
shares issued. Class B shares are redeemable and retractable and are not entitled
fo dividends.

NOTE 8 FINANCIAL RISKS

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a third party to a financial instrument might fail to meet its
obligations under the terms of the financial instrument. MHUS's financial asset that
is exposed to credit risk is accounts receivable. This risk is minimal as it mainly
relates to accounts receivable arising from services provided to Manitoba Hydro.
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MANITOBA HYDRO UTILITY SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in the market interest rates. MHUS is exposed to interest
rate risk associated with debt financing provided by Manitoba Hydro through
variable-rate credit facilities. As at March 31, 2014 the amount of financing
outstanding is nil (2013 - nil).

NOTE 9 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities as at March 31, 2014 are

government remittances payable of $6 245 (2013 - $19 420) relating to Manitoba
payroll tax and Manitoba Workers’ Compensation Board insurance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Partners of
Keeyask Hydropower Limited Partnership

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Keeyask
Hydropower Limited Partnership, which comprise of the balance sheet as
at March 31, 2014, and the statement of partners’ capital and cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

A raember firm of Ernst & Young Globat Limited
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Keeyask Hydropower Limited Partnership as at
March 31, 2014, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the

year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for
private enterprises.

&m«t; \d ?M?/ AP
Winnipeg, Canada, '

June 25, 2014. Chartered Accountants

E ﬁ A member firm of Ernst & Young Gioba! Limited
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KEEYASK HYDROPOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

BALANCE SHEET
As at March 31

Appendix 11.4

Corporate Overview MFR 6

Notes 2014 2013
Assets
Current Assets
Cash 10 000 10 000
10 000 10 000
Equity
Partners' capital | 3 10 000 10 000
10 000 10 000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

S ST

Bruce A. Barrett, P.Eng.
President of the general partner of KHLP
(5900345 Manitoba Ltd.)
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KEEYASK HYDROPOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENT OF PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
For the year ended March 31

Units Capital Units Capital
as at as at as at as at
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
Class 2014 2014 2013 2013
dollars dollars
Manitoba Hydro M 7 499 8 249 7 499 8249
General Partner M 1 1 1 1
(5900345 Manitoba Ltd.)
Cree Nation Partners Limited Partnership K 1050 1050 1050 1050
: E 450 - 450 -
FLCN Keeyask Investments Inc. K 350 350 350 350
E 150 - 150 -
York Factory First Nation Limited Partnership K 350 350 350 350
E 150 - 150 -
10 000 10 000 10 000 10 000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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KEEYASK HYDROPOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended March 31

2014 2013
dollars

Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of units of KHLP - -
Cash provided by financing activities - -
Net increase in cash : - -
Cash, beginning of year 10 000 10 000
Cash, end of year 10 000 10 000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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KEEYASK HYDROPOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Keeyask Hydropower Limited Partnership (KHLP or the Partnership) was formed on July 30,
2009 under the laws of Manitoba to carry on the business of developing, owning and
operating the Keeyask hydroelectric generating station (the Project) and related works
excluding the transmission facilities but including the powerhouse and spillway and all dams,
dikes, channels, excavations and roads to be located in the vicinity of Gull Rapids, upstream
of the point at which the Nelson River flows into Stephens Lake.

An agreement was reached between Manitoba Hydro and Tataskweyak Cree Nation (TCN)
and War Lake First Nation (War Lake) operating as Cree Nation Partners (CNP), York Factory
First Nation (York Factory) and Fox Lake Cree Nation (Fox Lake) on the development of the
Project pursuant to the Joint Keeyask Development Agreement (the JKDA) signed on May 29,
2009.

Manitoba Hydro, Cree Nation Partners Limited Partnership (CNPLP) (owned beneficially by
TCN and War Lake through CNP), FLCN Keeyask Investments Inc. (FLCNKII) (owned
beneficially by Fox Lake) and York Factory First Nation Limited Partnership (YFFNLP) (owned
beneficially by York Factory) are limited partners of KHLP. 5900345 Manitoba Ltd. (the
General Partner), which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Manitoba Hydro, also owns a nominal
interest in KHLP.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Part Il of the Chartered
Professional Accountants (CPA) Canada Handbook — Accounting - Canadian Accounting

Standards for Private Enterprises, which sets out generally accepted accounting principles for
non-publicly accountable enterprises in Canada (“GAAP”).
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KEEYASK HYDROPOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended March 31, 2014

Appendix 11.4
Corporate Overview MFR 6

NOTE 3 PARTNERS’ CAPITAL

Authorized Unlimited number of limited partnership units (Class E, K and M)

Issued Manitoba Hydro
General Partner

CNPLP

FLCNKII

YFFNLP

Total

The units have no preference, exchange, pre-emptive or redemption rights.

7499  Class M Units 74.99%
1 Class M Unit 0.01%
1050 Class K Units 10.50%
450 Class E Units 4.50%
350 Class K Units 3.50%
150 Class E Units 1.50%
350 Class K Units 3.50%
150 Class E Units 1.50%
10000 Class M, K and E Units 100.00%
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5022649 MANITOBA LTD.

March 31, 2014
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5022649 MANITOBA LTD.
STATEMENT OF LOSS AND RETAINED EARNINGS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31

2014 2013
thousands of doffars

Partnership Loss (M (4)
Retained earnings, beginning of year (4) -
Retained earnings, end of year (11) 4)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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5022649 MANITOBA LTD.

BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)
As at March 31

Notes 2014 2013
thousands of dolfars

Assets

Current Assets

Cash ' 4 4

Other Assets

Investment in Partnership 3 22 29
26 33

Shareholders' Equity

Share capital 4 37 37

Retained earnings " (11) (4)
26 33

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

T A (L

Lorne Midford, P.Eng. Darren B. Rainkie, CA
- Chair of the general partner of WPLP Treasurer and Chair of the
(5022649 Manitoba Ltd.) Audit Committee
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5022649 MANITOBA LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS {(UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31

2014 2013
thousands of dollars

Financing Activities
Proceeds from common share issue - -
Cash provided hy financing activities - -

Investing Activities

Investment in partnership - (3)
Cash used for investing activities - (3)
Net decrease in cash - 3
Cash, beginning of year : 4 _ 7
Cash, end of year ‘ 4 4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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5022649 MANITOBA LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

5022649 Manitoba Ltd. was incorporated on November 30, 2004 and is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Manitoba Hydro. This company is the General Partner of the Wuskwatim
Power Limited Partnership (Partnership) and has acquired .01% ownership of the
Partnership.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of Presentation

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Part Il of the Chartered
Professional Accountants (CPA) Canada Handbook — Accounting - Canadian
Accounting Standards for -Private Enterprises, which sets out generally accepted
accounting principles for non-publicly accountable enterprises in Canada (“GAAP")
and include the significant accounting policies described hereafter.

{b) Revenue Recognition
The investment in the Partnership is accounted for by the equity method.
NOTE 3 INVESTMENT IN PARTNERSHIP
5022649 Manitoba Lid.’s investment in the Partnership is accounted for using the equity
method where contributions to the Partnership increase the investment and the General

Partner’s share of the Partnership loss decreases the investment.

2014 2013

thousands of dolfars

Investment in Partnership, beginning of year 29 30
Contributions to Partnership - 3
Partnership loss (7) 4)
Investment in Partnership, end of year 22 29
NOTE 4 SHARE CAPITAL

An unlimited number of common shares are authorized and 3 700 common shares have
been issued.
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Unaudited Financial Statements of

5900345 MANITOBA LTD.

March 31, 2014
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5900345 MANITOBA LTD.

BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)
As at March 31

Notes 2014 2013
dollars
Assets
Current Assets
Cash 1000 1000
Other Assets
Investment in Keeyask Hydropower Limited Partnership 1 1
1001 1 001
Shareholder's Equity
Share Capital 3 1001 1 001
1001 1 001

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

Bruce A. Barrett, P.Eng.
President of the general partner of KHLP
(5900345 Manitoba Ltd.)
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5900345 MANITOBA LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31

2014 2013
dollars

Financing Activities
Proceeds from common share issue - -
Cash provided by financing activities - -

Investing Activities
Investment in Partnership - -
Cash used for investing activities - -

Net increase in cash - -

Cash, beginning of year 1000 1 000

Cash, end of year 1 000 1 000

The accompanying notes are an integrél part of the financial statements.
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5900345 MANITOBA LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

5900345 Manitoba Ltd. was incorporated on June 17, 2009 and is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Manitoba Hydro. This company is the General Partner of the Keeyask Hydropower Limited
Partnership and has acquired .01% ownership of the Partnership.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@) Basis of Presentation
These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Part Il of the Chartered
Professional Accountants (CPA) Canada Handbook - Accounting - Canadian
Accounting Standards for Private Enterprises, which sets out generally accepted

accounting principles for non-publicly accountable enterprises in Canada (“GAAP”)
and include the significant accounting policies described hereafter.

NOTE 3 SHARE CAPITAL

An unlimited number of common shares authorized and 1001 common shares issued.
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Unaudited Financial Statements of

4985371 MANITOBA LTD.

March 31, 2014
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4985371 MANITOBA LTD.

BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)
As at March 31

Note 2013 2012
dollars
Assets
Cash 1 1
1 1
Shareholder's Equity
Share Capital 2 1 1
1 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

//W /Ad/zfy//

William Fraser, FCA Jarmes Husiak, CA
Chair of the Board Chair of the Audit Committee
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4985371 MANITOBA LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

4985371 Manitoba Ltd was established September 14, 2004 to hold legal title of the
property at 360 Portage Avenue. As a bare trustee, 4985371 Manitoba Ltd holds title
to the property without any further duty to perform, except convey title to the
beneficiary, Manitoba Hydro, upon demand.

NOTE 2 SHARE CAPITAL

An unlimited number of Class A common shares authorized and one Class A
common share issued.
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Unaudited Financial Statements of

6690271 MANITOBA LTD.

March 31, 2014
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6690271 MANITOBA LTD.

BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)
As at March 31

Notes 2014 2013
thousands of dollars
Assets
Current Assets
Cash 12 -
Fixed Assets
Work in Progress 6792 -
6 804 -
Liabilities and Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 624 -
Intercompany payable 3 887 -
4 511 -
Equity
Share capital 3 2293 -
6 804 - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

G 2B

L

Lorne Midford, P.Eng.
President
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6690271 MANITOBA LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31

2014 2013
thousands of dollars

Investing Activities
Work in progress (2 281) -
Cash used for investing activities (2 281) -

Financing Activities

Proceeds from issue of common shares 2293 -
Cash provided by financing activities 2293 -
Net change in cash 12 -

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ‘ - -

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 12 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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6690271 MANITOBA LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

NOTE 1 NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

6690271 Manitoba Ltd. was incorporated on April 8, 2013 and is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Manitoba Hydro. This company was formed to fund a portion of the US segment of the
new international transmission interconnection, the Great Northern Transmission Line, being
constructed by Minnesota Power.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of Presentation

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Part Il of the Chartered -
Professional Accountants (CPA) Canada Handbook - Accounting - Canadian
Accounting Standards for Private Enterprises, which sets out generally accepted
accounting principles for non-publicly accountable enterprises in Canada (“GAAP”)
and include the significant accounting policies described hereafter.

NOTE 3 SHARE CAPITAL

Unlimited number of common shares authorized at one dollar each and 2 293 482 common
shares were issued.
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Updated Ownership schematic for WPLP and KHLP.

Figure 2.4 below was included in the Needs For and Alternatives to the Wuskwatim Project
(NFAAT) submission to the Manitoba Clean Environment Commission in 2003 and is
representative of the current ownership structure of the partnership. As at the date of this
Application, NCN is fully invested at a 33% ownership interest in WPLP.

FIGURE 2.4 AGREEMENT FRAMEWORK AND EQUITY OWNERSHIP FOR THE PROJECT

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Lirnited Parinership
Agreement

Wuskwatim Power Limited Parinership

will inchede. among other
things project description,
raining, employment,
business opportunities,
adverse =fects and
commercial terms

e : || Adwisory
Nﬁzreerr':;?t | Board of Directors o
{with Hydro)

001% — (General Partner
Construction Agreement
Limited Partners {with Hydro)
nanci Project Financing
"ﬁﬁrﬁem"“ NCN Up to 33% Hydro Mirimum {with Hydra)
" -
{with Hydro) terest 63.99% Interest
Power Purchase Agreement
{with Hydro)
Ciperations Agreement
{with Hydro)
Maintenance Agreerment
{with Hydro)
Adwerse Effects Agresment
{with MCN)
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Schedule 2-1 from the Joint Keeyask Development Agreement (JKDA) is representative of
the current ownership structure of the partnership. As of the date of this Application, the

KCN have a 17.5% ownership interest in KHLP (with an option to activate the incremental
7.5% at future points in time).

SCHEDULE 2-1

JOINT KEEYASK DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

- provides for the establishment of
the LP to develop the Project, the

Limited Partnership

Keeyask Hydropower

Agreement

Limited Partnership

financing of the LP, the investment
in the LP, the financing of the
KCN, how the Project will be built,
the environmental and regulatory
licensing process, the services to
be provided by Hydro, the power
purchase and transmission
arrangements, training,
employment, and business
opportunities for the KCN and
describes how the adverse effects
of the Proiect will be dealt with.

General Partner

Board of —  Advisory

.01% of units

Limited Partners

KCN Financing
Agreements (with Hydro)

Construction Agreement

Project Financing Agreement

Power Purchase Agreement

KCN Hydro as
Investment limited partner,
Entities as minimum

limited 74.99% of units
partners, up
to 25% of
units

Assumption of the KCN
Adverse Effects Agreements

Assumption of the

Interconnection and
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Corporate Overview MFR 8

Financial Forecasts for WPLP and KHLP

Please find attached the 2014 projected financial statements for WPLP and KHLP.

The WPLP forecast assumes terms of the agreement in principle with NCN commencing
in 2014/15.

The KHLP forecast assumes the KCN’s will hold a 17.5% common ownership interest up
to June of 2021 and then elect to invest in the preferred ownership option.

Page 1 of 13
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For the year ended March 31

WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (IFF14)
PROJECTED OPERATING STATEMENT
(In Millions of Dollars)

Appendix 11.6

Corporate Overview MFR 8

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
REVENUES
Revenue 41 82 98 103 107 111 114 119 124 129
41 82 98 103 107 111 114 119 124 129
EXPENSES
Operating and Administrative 13 12 12 12 12 13 13 13 13 13
Finance Expense 74 75 77 79 79 79 77 76 75 73
Depreciation and Amortization 26 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27
Water Rentals and Assessments 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
119 119 121 123 124 123 122 121 120 119
Net Income (77) (37) (23) (21) (17) (13) (9) (2) 4 11
Financial Ratios
Debt 89% 91% 93% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 93%

Page 2 of 13
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (IFF14)
PROJECTED OPERATING STATEMENT
(In Millions of Dollars)

For the year ended March 31

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034
REVENUES
Revenue 134 121 124 128 130 135 140 145 151 156
134 121 124 128 130 135 140 145 151 156
EXPENSES
Operating and Administrative 14 14 14 14 15 11 11 11 11 11
Finance Expense 71 70 67 65 62 60 57 53 51 50
Depreciation and Amortization 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27
Water Rentals and Assessments 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
117 116 113 111 109 103 100 96 94 94
Net Income 17 5 11 17 21 32 40 49 56 63
Financial Ratios
Debt 92% 91% 90% 88% 85% 81% 76% 75% 75% 75%

Page 3 of 13
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (IFF14)
PROJECTED BALANCE SHEET
(In Millions of Dollars)

For the year ended March 31

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
ASSETS
Plantin Service 1,345 1,345 1,375 1,375 1,375 1,375 1,375 1,375 1,378 1,378
Accumulated Depreciation (52) (72) (92) (113) (134) (155) (175) (196) (217) (238)
Net Plant in Service 1,293 1,273 1,283 1,262 1,241 1,220 1,199 1,179 1,161 1,140
Construction in Progress 2 15 - - - - - - - -
Current and Other Assets 298 304 310 316 324 332 340 349 358 368
1,594 1,592 1,592 1,578 1,565 1,552 1,540 1,528 1,520 1,509
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Long-Term Debt 1,302 1,301 1,300 1,298 1,297 1,295 1,294 1,292 1,290 1,288
Current and Other Liabilities 144 180 205 213 207 197 188 179 170 150
Partners Capital 147 110 87 66 61 60 58 57 60 71
1,594 1,592 1,592 1,578 1,565 1,552 1,540 1,528 1,520 1,509
Debt Ratio 89% 91% 93% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 93%
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For the year ended March 31

WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (IFF14)
PROJECTED BALANCE SHEET

(In Millions of Dollars)

Appendix 11.6
Corporate Overview MFR 8

ASSETS

Plantin Service
Accumulated Depreciation

Net Plantin Service

Construction in Progress
Current and Other Assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Long-Term Debt
Current and Other Liabilities
Partners Capital

Debt Ratio

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034
1,378 1,378 1,378 1,378 1,378 1,378 1,378 1,378 1,382 1,382
(259) (279) (300) (321) (342) (363) (384) (404) (425) (446)
1,120 1,099 1,078 1,057 1,036 1,015 995 974 957 936
379 389 401 413 425 438 451 465 480 496
1,498 1,488 1,479 1,470 1,461 1,453 1,446 1,439 1,437 1,432
1,286 1,284 1,281 1,279 1,276 1,273 1,270 1,267 1,264 1,261
125 111 9 70 43 5 (40) (35) (27) (21)
88 93 104 121 142 174 215 207 201 193
1,498 1,488 1,479 1,470 1,461 1,453 1,446 1,439 1,437 1,432
92% 91% 90% 88% 85% 81% 76% 75% 75% 75%
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WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (IFF14)
PROJECTED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(In Millions of Dollars)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Receipts from Customers
Cash Paid to Suppliers and Employees
Interest Paid
Interest Received

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt
Other

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Property, Plant and Equipment, net of contributions
Sinking Fund Payment
Other

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
Cash at Beginning of Year

Cash at End of Year

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
M 82 98 103 107 111 114 119 124 129
(18) (17) (17) (18) (18) (18) (18) (18) (18) (18)
(74) (76) (78) (80) (81) (81) (81) (80) (79) (78)
- 0 1 1 2 3 3 4 4 5
(51) (11) 3 6 11 15 18 26 31 38
1 (1) (1) (1) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2)
1 (1) (1) (1) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2)
(9) (12) (14) - - - - - (3) -
(10) (12) (12) (13) (14) (14) (15) (15) (16) (16)
- - - - - 11 11 7 - -
(19) (24) (26) (13) (14) (3) (4) (8) (19) (16)
(69) (36) (25) (8) (5) 10 13 16 10 19
(48) (117) (152) (178) (186) (191) (181) (168) (152) (142)
(117) (152) (178) (186) (191) (181) (168) (152) (142) (123)
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For the year ended March 31

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Receipts from Customers
Cash Paid to Suppliers and Employees
Interest Paid
Interest Received

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt
Other

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Property, Plant and Equipment, net of contributions
Sinking Fund Payment
Other

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
Cash at Beginning of Year
Cash at End of Year

WUSKWATIM POWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (IFF14)
PROJECTED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(In Millions of Dollars)

Appendix 11.6
Corporate Overview MFR 8

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034
134 121 124 128 130 135 140 145 151 156
(19) (19) (19) (19) (20) (16) (16) (16) (16) (16)
(77) (76) (75) (74) (73) (71) (69) (67) (66) (66)
6 6 9 10 11 12 12 13 15 16
44 33 38 44 49 59 68 76 84 90
(2) (2) (2) (2) (3) (3) (3) (3) (3) (3)
(2) (2) (2) (2) (3) (3) (3) (3) (3) (3)
- - - - - - - - (4) -
(17) (17) (18) (18) (19) (19) (20) (21) (21) (22)
. . . ) - - . - (57) (63)
(17) (17) (18) (18) (19) (19) (20) (21) (82) (85)
25 13 18 23 27 37 45 53 (2) 1
(123) (97) (84) (66) (43) (16) 2 67 119 117
(97) (84) (66) (43) (16) 2 67 119 117 118
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KEEYASK HYDROPOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (IFF14)
PROJECTED OPERATING STATEMENT
(In Millions of Dollars)

For the year ended March 31

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
REVENUES
Revenue - - - - - 35 226 286 298 315
- - - - - 35 226 286 298 315
EXPENSES
Operating and Administrative - - - - - 5 14 14 14 15
Finance Expense 0 0 0 0 0 20 181 247 248 247
Depreciation and Amortization - - - - - 6 62 85 85 85
Water Rentals and Assessments - - - - - 2 13 15 19 20
0 0 0 0 0 32 270 361 367 367
Net Income (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) 2 (44) (74) (69) (52)
Financial Ratios
Debt 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 76% 77% 78%
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For the year ended March 31

KEEYASK HYDROPOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (IFF14)
PROJECTED OPERATING STATEMENT
(In Millions of Dollars)

Appendix 11.6
Corporate Overview MFR 8

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034
REVENUES
Revenue 324 318 324 331 337 349 361 370 384 399
324 318 324 331 337 349 361 370 384 399
EXPENSES
Operating and Administrative 15 15 15 15 15 15 14 15 15 15
Finance Expense 248 246 242 240 237 234 229 225 215 209
Depreciation and Amortization 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85
Water Rentals and Assessments 20 20 20 20 20 21 21 21 22 22
368 366 363 360 358 355 350 346 337 332
Net Income (44) (48) (38) (29) (21) (6) 11 25 47 67

Financial Ratios
Debt

78%

79%

79%

80%

80%

79%

79%

75%

75%

75%
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KEEYASK HYDROPOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (IFF14)
PROJECTED BALANCE SHEET
(In Millions of Dollars)

For the year ended March 31

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
ASSETS
Plantin Service - - - - - 2,541 5,929 5,929 5,929 5,929
Accumulated Depreciation - - - - - (6) (65) (146) (227) (308)
Net Plant in Service - - - - - 2,535 5,864 5,783 5,701 5,620
Construction in Progress 1,666 2,303 3,196 4,449 5,240 3,175 (51) (5) (0) 0
Current and Other Assets 14 27 56 94 149 199 199 238 278 322
1,681 2,330 3,252 4,543 5,389 5,908 6,011 6,016 5,980 5,942
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Long-Term Debt 1,014 1,627 2,256 3,294 3,949 4,199 4,401 4,400 4,399 4,552
Current and Other Liabilities 277 155 225 164 158 306 211 279 312 174
Partners Capital 389 548 771 1,084 1,282 1,403 1,399 1,336 1,268 1,216
1,681 2,330 3,252 4,543 5,389 5,908 6,011 6,016 5,980 5,942
Debt Ratio 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 76% 77% 78%
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KEEYASK HYDROPOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (IFF14)
PROJECTED BALANCE SHEET
(In Millions of Dollars)

For the year ended March 31

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034
ASSETS
Plantin Service 5,929 5,929 5,929 5,929 5,929 5,932 5,932 5,932 5,932 5,932
Accumulated Depreciation (390) (471) (552) (633) (715) (796) (877) (958) (1,040) (1,121)
Net Plantin Service 5,539 5,458 5,376 5,295 5,214 5,137 5,055 4,974 4,893 4,812
Construction in Progress 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Current and Other Assets 367 414 463 515 568 624 682 743 806 872
5,905 5,871 5,839 5,810 5,782 5,761 5,738 5,717 5,699 5,683
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Long-Term Debt 4,550 4,549 4,548 4,547 4,545 4,544 4,542 4,540 4,539 4,537
Current and Other Liabilities 182 198 205 206 201 187 155 (75) 14 0
Partners Capital 1,173 1,124 1,086 1,057 1,036 1,030 1,041 1,252 1,146 1,146
5,905 5,871 5,839 5,810 5,782 5,761 5,738 5,717 5,699 5,683
Debt Ratio 78% 79% 79% 80% 80% 79% 79% 75% 75% 75%
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For the year ended March 31

KEEYASK HYDROPOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (IFF14)
PROJECTED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(In Millions of Dollars)

Appendix 11.6
Corporate Overview MFR 8

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Receipts from Customers - - - - - 35 226 286 298 315
Cash Paid to Suppliers and Employees - - - - - (7) (27) (29) (34) (34)
Interest Paid (15) (56) (83) (122) (176) (212) (233) (241) (244) (245)
Interest Received - - - - - - - - 2 4
(15) (56) (83) (122) (176) (184) (34) 16 22 39
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt 1,000 600 600 1,000 600 200 200 - 154
Other 371 154 218 308 193 113 34 6 (5) (6)
1,371 754 818 1,308 793 313 234 6 (5) 147
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Property, Plant and Equipment, net of contributions (1,515) (571) (797) (1,114) (604) (274) (100) (47) (4) (0)
Sinking Fund Payment - - - - - - - (43) (45) (47)
Other - - - - - - - - - -
(1,515) (571) (797) (1,114) (604) (274) (100) (89) (49) (47)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (159) 127 (62) 72 14 (144) 100 (67) (32) 139
Cash at Beginning of Year - (159) (32) (94) (22) (8) (153) (53) (120) (152)
Cash at End of Year (159) (32) (94) (22) (8) (153) (53) (120) (152) (13)
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For the year ended March 31

KEEYASK HYDROPOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (IFF14)
PROJECTED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(In Millions of Dollars)

Appendix 11.6
Corporate Overview MFR 8

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Receipts from Customers 324 318 324 331 337 349 361 370 384 399
Cash Paid to Suppliers and Employees (35) (35) (35) (35) (36) (36) (35) (36) (37) (37)
Interest Paid (248) (248) (249) (249) (249) (248) (247) (245) (239) (236)
Interest Received 6 8 12 15 17 20 23 27 30 33
47 43 53 62 70 85 102 116 139 158
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt - - - - - - - - - -
Other (6) (7) (7) (7) (7) (6) (6) (6) (6) (7)
(6) (7) (7) (7) (7) (6) (6) (6) (6) (7)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Property, Plant and Equipment, net of contributions - - - - - (4) - - - -
Sinking Fund Payment (49) (51) (53) (55) (58) (60) (62) (64) (67) (70)
Other - - - - - - - - 186 (153)
(49) (51) (53) (55) (58) (64) (62) (64) 119 (223)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (8) (15) (7) (0) 6 15 33 45 252 (72)
Cash at Beginning of Year (13) (22) (37) (44) (44) (39) (23) 10 55 307
Cash at End of Year (22) (37) (44) (44) (39) (23) 10 55 307 235
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Corporate Overview MFER 10

Corporate Risk Analysis Report and Specific Risk Management Plans for all Major
Risks including Drought.

Please find attached the redacted version of Manitoba Hydro’s Corporate Risk Management
Report.

In addition, Manitoba Hydro has provided a full copy of its Corporate Risk Management
Report to the PUB, in confidence, as requested in PUB/MH 1-84b.

Page 1 of 1
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2015/16 & 2016/17 General Rate Application Corporate Overview MFR 10

Cover: Keewatinohk Construction Camp

When completed the Keewatinohk Converter Station
will improve power reliability and expand

exporting capabilities.
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Corporate Risk Management Report

L.

INTRODUCTION

The Corporate Risk Management Report is normally updated on an annual basis to
provide Manitoba Hydro’s stakeholders with information on the status of major risks
facing the Corporation as it carries out its mandate. The report identifies and assesses
each risk, describes activities used to manage the risk and provides estimates of the
potential residual impact to the Corporation in terms of likelihood and consequence after
mitigation actions have been taken. The Corporation’s tolerance for each risk and an
assessment of whether the risk is within or outside the desired tolerance level is also
provided.

As a Crown-owned utility providing an essential and life-sustaining energy service to
Manitobans, Manitoba Hydro has a relatively low tolerance for risk. However, because
Manitoba Hydro is also an important economic driver for the Province, some risks are
necessary in order to take advantage of opportunities to maximize value for stakeholders.
These risks are managed through a systematic, proactive and integrated process which is
designed to balance the objectives of:

o identifying threats that affect the achievement of the Corporation’s mission and
mandate;
e mitigating the consequences of negative occurrences; and

e taking advantage of opportunities to provide benefits to all stakeholders.

Most risk management efforts are focused on reducing the occurrence of negative events.
However, the Corporation also has plans in place to reduce the impacts should a negative
event occur. These plans are under continual assessment. In addition, all safety and
reliability risks are managed through strict adherence to design, construction and
operating standards and practices together with extensive public education and employee
training programs. A comprehensive Emergency Response Program is also in place to

ensure an effective and coordinated response to possible emergencies or disasters.

The financial and operational risks associated with the management of an integrated
electricity and natural gas utility are significant. These risks include the impacts of
weather on supply and demand, price and market uncertainties, interest, inflation and
foreign exchange rates, skilled labour availébility and costs, aging infrastructure
maintenance and replacement, increasing regulatory, environmental and legal

requirements, and accelerated technological change. Manitoba Hydro manages these
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risks through an integrated control framework and through the maintenance of an

adequate level of retained earnings.

Manitoba Hydro’s Corporate Risk Management Report is structured to provide the

following:

e A summary of the high consequence risks including:

= Loss of major infrastructure

= Drought

= Loss of export markets

® An overview of significant and emerging risks and actions taken to address those

risks.

e A Corporate Risk Map providing a visual depiction of Manitoba Hydro’s risks

categorized into high, medium and low likelihood of occurrence and the

corresponding consequences.

e A Corporate Risk Tolerance Assessment of each risk.

o Corporate Risk Profiles - one page summaries of each of Manitoba Hydro’s risks.

II. HIGH CONSEQUENCE RISKS

The most significant risks facing Manitoba Hydro are those rated as high consequence
due to the potential magnitude of impact on the Corporation’s ability to achieve its

mandate and strategic goals and are quantified in the following table:

RISK

POTENTIAL FINANCIAL IMPACT

INFRASTRUCTURE
Prolonged loss of supply

DROUGHT
Water Supply Variation / Drought

LOSS OF EXPORT MARKET ACCESS

> $2 billion

>$1.7 billion for a 5 year drought
commencing in 2017 (IFF 14)

> 30 % of electricity revenue

November, 2014
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Infrastructure Risk (Category D)

A catastrophic infrastructure failure continues to be the most significant risk facing the
Corporation and its customers. Potential impacts include prolonged loss of system
supply, the inability to maintain minimum energy services, loss of life, severe
environmental damage and significant costs to the Manitoba economy. Failure can be
caused by a number of factors including an extreme weather event, sabotage, fire, human
error, or technical malfunction.

By the nature of its business, Manitoba Hydro has an especially low tolerance for
infrastructure risk. Significant efforts are expended on managing this risk in a manner
that avoids the occurrence of a catastrophic event and minimizing consequences should a
catastrophic event occur.

Risk Treatment

In the short term, actions are continually being taken to enhance emergency response and
disaster management processes. In the longer term, major investment in renewal and
expansion of the infrastructure system are underway to maintain and improve system
reliability, energy security and safety. Key management plans and projects include:

e Construction of Bipole IIT with a planned in-service date of 2018.

® Re-termination of the 500 kV Interconnection at Riel (2014).

e Renewal and replacement of aging electric and gas infrastructure over a long term
period to improve system capacity and reliability. This includes critical
distribution assets and stations, rehabilitation of existing generators, wood poles,
cable and gas pipe replacement, cyber and physical security upgrades, and
changes to gas distribution operations and pipelines to respond to changes in
geographic gas production and shipment patterns. These changes to gas
distribution operations also include lessons learned from a four day loss of gas
supply to a large number of customers as a result of an explosion of the
TransCanada main gas pipeline.

® Moving forward with implementation of Manitoba Hydro’s Development Plan to
meet export sales and forecasted domestic load growth. The provincial
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Water

government and Public Utilities Board endorsed proceeding with the Keeyask
Generating Station, the new 500 kV line to Minnesota and increased levels of
Demand Side Management activity. In addition to meeting domestic demand,
these projects will allow the Corporation to increase firm export obligations and
access greater amounts of energy with additional import capability provided by
the new interconnection. ‘

Water retaining structures and flow control management, including: surveillance
inspections, instrumentation monitoring, and engineering analyses of dams and
dykes including emergency plans for individual facilities; systematic utilization
of failure modes-based condition assessment techniques; and rehabilitation of the
Pointe du Bois spillway facility.

Continual improvement of the Corporate Emergency Management Program that
includes a long term plan for managing the available resources, load and system
supply following the loss of infrastructure; development of business continuity
plans; constructing an emergency fuel depot; spare infrastructure material and
equipment inventory to enable timely re-building and restoration of potentially
affected assets. The corporation also has short term emergency energy and
mutual aid agreements with Ontario, Saskatchewan and U.S. Utilities.

Supply Variation / Drought Risk (C.1 and D.2)

On average, there is a high likelihood of a drought occurring about once in every ten

years.
record,

In the circumstances of an extreme drought that is more severe than the worst on
there is a possibility of insufficient energy supplies being available to meet firm

load demands. This would result in extreme financial and reputational impacts on the

Corporation. The cost of a five year drought similar to the worst on record is estimated to
be $1.7 billion (IFF 14) for a drought commencing in 2017.

Risk Treatment

There are several measures in place to manage the impacts of a drought, as follows:

Manitoba Hydro’s current generation and transmission facilities are designed and
operated to ensure firm demand can be supplied given a repeat of the lowest river

November, 2014
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flows since 1912. A drought more severe than the worst on record could occur
and would require non-normal operations. This may include operating reservoirs
outside of the normal range for power production. Non-normal operation may
also include demand reduction measures such as public appeal for conservation,
enforced conservation, or rotating reductions of non-essential load. Actions to
manage drought will depend on its duration and severity and any other conditions
that prevail at the time.

Once built, the new interconnection with the U.S. in combination with additional
long term exports in the Development Plan will provide the Corporation with
increased ability to access additional amounts of energy through higher imports
than planned and through financial settlement of firm export contracts.

Adequate retained earnings are required to protect against a repeat of the worst
drought on record. At March 31, 2014 retained earnings totaled $2.7 billion. It
should be noted, however, that while drought is a major quantifiable risk, an
adequate level of retained earnings is required to recover from other significant
risks such as a prolonged loss of supply or the loss of export market access.

Export Market Access Risk (Category A.2)

On average Manitoba Hydro derives a significant portion of its revenue from export sales

to U.S.

and Canadian markets. The prime impact of restricted market access would be

significantly reduced net export revenues which are fundamental in keeping domestic

rates low and offsetting the upfront costs of capital investments. Market access risk also

includes restrictions on Manitoba Hydro’s ability to import which could increase the cost

of droughts, and degrade system reliability.

Risk Treatment

Manitoba Hydro continues to actively work to mitigate and manage market access

uncertainties, as follows:

In alliance with other industry participants such as the Canadian Electricity
Association, and other stakeholders, Manitoba Hydro continues to lobby MISO,

[ESO and FERC for the development or elimination of market rules that affect

November, 2014
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III1.

electricity trade and facilitate full participation of Manitoba Hydro in US and
Canadian electricity markets.

e Manitoba Hydro also engages in extensive lobbying efforts in the US to promote
waterpower as a clean, reliable and renewable source of energy and to counter
anti-hydro special interest group lobbying.

o The Corporation also engages with environmental, consumer and business
stakeholder groups to discuss and promote its development plans.

o Market access risk is also reduced by having long term contracts and strong
relationships in place with major export counterparties.

SIGNIFICANT AND EMERGING RISKS

While loss of infrastructure, drought and potential loss of export markets remain as the
highest consequence risks for the Corporation, there are other significant and emerging
risks that can affect the-achievement of the Corporation’s mission and mandate. These
are:

Infrastructure Investment (Category D / A.2.6)

Manitoba Hydro is moving forward with a number of major initiatives (e.g. construction
of Bipole III, replacement of aging infrastructure, Keeyask generating station, a new
interconnection to the U.S and increased Demand-Side Management activities ) in order
to further improve electrical and gas system reliability, meet the future energy needs of
the province, and take advantage of export opportunities. These plans will require the
investment of approximately $18 billion (CEF 14) over the next 10 years.

There are a number of risks associated with such large initiatives that will challenge the
Corporation’s ability to meet Manitoba’s energy needs while keeping customer rates
affordable, and maintaining the Corporation’s financial strength. These challenges
include managing the costs of Bipole III, Keeyask and the new interconnection project;

Mitigation measures to address these cost risks include the use of best practices in cost
estimating, contracting practices, the inclusion of appropriate contingencies and
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management reserves. B e e e e g e

With regard to Conawapa, the Corporation has suspended the majority of expenditures

associated with that project consistent with government direction following the PUB’s
NFAT report. Conawapa is now seen as an opportunity that will only proceed if sufficient
additional profitable export sales materialize that will shoulder most of the financial risk
associated with building Conawapa much earlier than needed for domestic purposes.
Without those contracts further expenditures to protect an early in-service date for
Conawapa will not be made. The consequences of that will be a lost opportunity
resulting in higher rates in the very long term, reduced near term provincial economic
activity and reduced socio-economic benefits to northern aboriginal communities who
would partner with Manitoba Hydro on the project.

Financial Strength (B.7)

Maintaining financial strength is essential in order to make the necessary investments in
infrastructure, to continue to provide safe and reliable service to customers, financially
withstand the risks and uncertainties that are inherent in the Corporation’s operations and
to provide customers with long-term rate stability and predictability and avoid the need
for large or sudden rate increases in the future. The required investment in new and
existing infrastructure is expected to place a certain degree of pressure on the
Corporation’s key financial targets, and if not carefully managed, there is a risk of higher
required future rate increases or potential negative impacts to the credit rating of the
Province.

Key areas of focus to maintain financial strength include:

* Continuing cost containment measures. This includes utilizing resources effectively
and efficiently while diligently managing capital projects to be on time and on
budget. Management continues to evaluate the need to fill positions vacated as a
result of attrition, considering opportunities for process improvement, technological
enhancements and organizational restructuring. This also involves leveraging
experience from the development of new tools and past projects to improve upon
capital cost estimating, project and contract management.

o Aggressively pursuing a balanced portfolio of domestic and profitable export sales to
provide the highest financial benefits to ratepayers and all Manitobans over the long
term.

November, 2014 Page 8
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o Managing and mitigating financial risk by closely monitoring economic factors,
financial markets, and energy markets.

e Implementing modest, regular domestic electricity rate increases necessary to achieve
financial targets over the long term.

Domestic Electricity Rate Increases (B.7)

The infrastructure system that served Manitoba well for decades now needs significant
re-investment to continue meeting the province’s needs. Electricity rates in Manitoba
must rise to ensure the ongoing safety and reliability of the electricity supply and delivery
system. This is an issue that is present across North America, as other utilities address
aging infrastructure and growing demand.

Manitoba’s electricity rates continue to be among the lowest overall in North America,
due in large part to past investments in hydroelectric generating stations and the
contribution to earnings from the sales of surplus energy into the export market.
However, Manitoba Hydro’s plan for re-powering the province requires a significant
capital investment. This investment in the replacement and refurbishment of plant will
require increased revenues, which must be obtained from a series of future electricity rate
increases, at levels higher than the historical average.

It is a significant challenge to convince stakeholders that higher rate increases are in the
best long-term interests of all ratepayers to ensure ongoing safe and reliable service.
Significant efforts will need to be focused on delivering compelling and convincing
arguments before the PUB to obtain the required level of rate increases going into the
future. Even with the projected rate increases, it is expected that Manitoba Hydro’s
domestic customers will continue to have electricity rates that are affordable and
competitive. ‘

Offering new and expanded Power Smart programs aggressively targeting additional
electricity and natural gas savings, as outlined in the Corporation’s development plan,
will aid customers in managing their overall energy costs.

November, 2014 Page 9
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Export Sales (Category A.2)

As was previously mentioned, increased export sales are fundamental to achieving the
Corporation’s strategy of reducing the costs of building new generation supply for
Manitoba ratepayers.

Key factors affecting the ability to increase export volumes and revenues are:

e Ixport Market Prices - In recent years export prices for electricity have been
affected by the economic slowdown in the U.S. and the availability of low-cost
natural gas made possible by new production techniques. The corporation has
endeavored to reflect these factors as accurately as possible in its forecasts of
future export market prices. Based on the input of external industry specialists,
the corporation is forecasting a moderate rise in export prices over the long term,
restrained by the continued impact of natural gas pricing. There is a residual risk
that export prices could be lower than industry experts are predicting, and that
would be a downside risk that could hamper the Corporation’s ability to achieve
forecasted export revenues and other financial targets with projected rate
increases.

° Cost of New Hydraulic Generation — The resources in the Corporation’s
development plan are supported by a number of export agreements, including a
250-megawatt sale to Minnesota Power, a 125 MW sale to Northern States Power

and a 108-megawatt sale to Wisconsin Public Service.

Commencement of construction of Conawapa is not required in the near term to
serve Manitoba load. As a result resumption of planning and capital expenditures
for Conawapa will only proceed if sufficient firm export interest materializes in
the next two years that convince the Corporation that there are significant benefits
with proceeding and that the risks of the project will not be borne by Manitoba
ratepayers. To date only the 308 MW Power Sale Agreement with Wisconsin
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Public Service has been signed. By itself that sale only requires 30% of
Conawapa’s output until 2035. Commitments tied to a large portion of its
remaining output will be necessary before resumption of expenditures can be
justified.

Market Access - Manitoba Hydro’s development plan includes the construction
of a new 500 kV interconnection with the U.S. The interconnection will increase
export capability by 883 MW and import capability by 683 MW. These increases
in transfer capability will increase the amount of firm load that can be served by
the Manitoba generating system, will enhance the value of new DSM initiatives
and will result in Manitoba Hydro achieving higher export prices and lower
import prices. The line will increase export volumes by reducing water spillage in
high water years.

Critical to receiving regulatory and political approval to build the US portion of
the interconnection is having a US utility who will champion and build the line in
the US. The risks of this project not moving forward are significantly reduced
this year as Manitoba Hydro and Minnesota Power have now signed several
agreements which establish the business arrangements necessary for the
Minnesota Power to proceed with the permitting, and route selection processes.
These permitting processes are underway and MP expects to receive approval by
the end of 2015 with actual construction of the Great Northern Transmission Line
commencing in 2016.

In addition, Manitoba Hydro’s subsidiary (6600271 MB. Ltd), Minnesota Power
and MISO have signed a Facilities Construction Agreement. These agreements
are subject to several conditions and regulatory approvals which still must be

satisfied before construction can commence.

November, 2014
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Gas Price Volatility (B.5)

There is significant upward cost pressure for transportation services on the TCPL
Canadian Mainline (the “Mainline”), to which Centra is currently captive in bringing
natural gas to its load centre. The Mainline is significantly underutilized resulting in less
revenue than that which is required to cover the Mainline’s relatively high embedded cost
structure. As a result, the pipeline has been seeking regular toll increases since 2010,
which costs are passed through to Manitoba natural ge'ls ratepayers. Tolls on the Mainline
also affect transportation services that Centra obtains from third parties.

This market circumstance was recently compounded by a proposal by TCPL to segment
the Mainline’s cost allocation and tolls post-2020 between the under-utilized Western
Mainline (on which Centra moves gas) and the highly utilized Eastern Ontario Triangle,
which would facilitate the avoidance of cost responsibility for under-utilized or stranded
assets on the Mainline by eastern shippers at the expense of Centra and other captive
shippers on the Western Mainline. Centra is the largest captive shipper on the Western
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Mainline. The proposal, if approved by the National Energy Board (“NEB”), is expected
to result in significantly higher costs and risk for Centra than it would bear if the
Mainline were to remain integrated.

Centra actively intervened to oppose Mainline segmentation in the recent Oral Hearing
RH-001-2014 before the NEB regarding the Application by TCPL for Approval of
Mainline 2015-2030 Tolls & Restructuring. Interested parties are awaiting a Decision by
the NEB, which is expected in November, 2014. In the event that the Decision is
unfavourable for Centra, work will be undertaken to explore alternatives to continuing to
move gas on the Mainline.

Interest Rates (B.2)

As a result of the intensive capital investment period, it is projected that Manitoba
Hydro’s level of debt will significantly increase and financial results will be affected by
market interest rates. Over the next 10 years the potential cumulative financial impact of
a one-percent change in interest rates is estimated at $1.1 billion (IFF 14).

Manitoba Hydro’s interest rate policy on its existing debt portfolio is to limit the
aggregate of short term debt, floating rate debt and debt to be refinanced within the
subsequent 12 month period to a maximum of 35% of the total debt portfolio. When
selecting terms for its new borrowings, Manitoba Hydro gives careful consideration to
the debt maturity schedule and the total level of annual financing requirements. The debt
management strategy guidance is to have less than 15% of the long term debt portfolio
maturing within a fiscal year. In order to mitigate refinancing risk, to maintain financing
flexibility during the intensive capital investment period, and in keeping with the concept
of matching the Corporation’s long-lived assets with long term debt, Manitoba Hydro
will continue to favour long term financings with maturities of 10+ years, while
maintaining short term debt and floating rate long term debt within policy limits.

As a result of the low interest rate environment over the past several years Manitoba
Hydro has been able to reduce its net weighted average interest rate by approximately
2.0% since 2006/07 and increase its weighted average term to maturity by over three
years during the same period.
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Environmental (Category C)

There are a number of environmental issues currently facing the Corporation that could
impact operations if they are not addressed.

A potentially significant environmental issue arises as a result of the 2013 Clean
Environment Commission (CEC) recommendation to have both the Province and
Manitoba Hydro conduct a Regional Cumulative Environmental Effects Assessment
(RCEEA) of all Manitoba Hydro projects in the lower Nelson River sub-basin before any

more projects are licensed for construction. [
R TR oo

Hydro has completed Phase I of the Study and submitted it to the government. Phase II

is now underway and a new committee has been formed with the Province.

Another significant environmental issue deals with the listing of Lake Sturgeon under the
Species at Risk Act (SARA). Almost all of the Corporation’s hydroelectric generating
stations are located where Lake Sturgeon are found and it is likely that at most sites the
infrastructure and operations have negatively affected the fish and/or its habitat. Due
primarily to historical commercial overharvest, plus additional stressors including
hydroelectric development and ongoing — Lake Sturgeon
populations have been severely depleted over the past 100 years and the species is
currently under review for listing as endangered under SARA at most locations in
Manitoba. If Lake Sturgeon is listed as “Endangered” under the SARA, the Corporation
could face restrictions on current operations, structural modifications to infrastructure,
delays in developing new generation due to difficulties with securing permits, and high
costs of recovery measures that are potentially mandated. There is also a remote chance
that new projects could be cancelled. The Corporation continues to take significant
action to minimize the need for and likelihood of listing Lake Sturgeon under SARA,
however uncertainty remains.

Regulation and Licensing (H.1)
The Corporation requires a variety of regulatory approvals and licenses to carry out its

activities. Key approvals and licenses include the National Energy Board, water power
and environmental approvals to build new generation or transmission facilities or to
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maintain or improve the efficiency of existing facilities. Failure to obtain approvals and

licenses on favourable terms or in a timely fashion could have significant financial,

operating and water regime impacts. These could result in increased costs, reduced

hydraulic generation, capacity and export sales. Expiration of a license without renewal

could expose the Corporation to embarrassment and loss of reputation and cancelation of

a license could expose the Corporation to the possibility that a third party could acquire

the water power rights at a location and Manitoba Hydro would lose the asset and

associated capacity and generation.

There are several measures in place to manage these risks. These include:

Incorporating regulatory/licensing concerns into the planning of new rate
programs and facilities (e.g. low-head Wuskwatim to minimize environmental

impact).

Pursuing regulatory/license approvals with appropriate diligence and explaining
the merits of the corporate position at any public proceedings where the scope of
regulation is under debate.

Maintaining systems to ensure ongoing compliance with regulatory/license
requirements and focusing attention on overall corporate image.

Making recommendations for an efficient and streamlined regulatory framework.

With respect to Water Power Licenses: (1) Manitoba Hydro has a strong working
relationship with the WPA Licensing Section at Water Stewardship. This ensures
proper understanding of licensing condition implications and to ensure timely
licensing activities; (2) Manitoba Hydro monitors compliance with its WPA
licenses and self reports annually on compliance; (3) Manitoba Hydro applies for
short term license extensions when licenses would otherwise expire. Historically
Manitoba Hydro had several WPA licenses that had expired. Although this was a
potential source of embarrassment, it did not result in a disruption of operations;
and (4) Manitoba Hydro operates its facilities within the limits established in the
WPA licenses. To the extent that deviations are necessary or occur, authorization
is requested when possible from Water Stewardship. As a result there is no risk of

license cancelation as a result of non-compliance.

November, 2014
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Workforce (Category E)

Attracting, developing and retaining a highly skilled and motivated workforce that
reflects the demographics of Manitoba is critical to the Corporation’s success. Key
factors that impact the ability to achieve this are the number of employees that are
eligible for retirement, competition for highly skilled workers, and the ability to keep up
with technological and other changes. Manitoba Hydro’s contractors will also be
impacted by the same competition.

The Corporation is looking at the demographic shift that is occurring in its workforce as a
challenge as well as an opportunity. Nearly 900 employees are eligible for retirement in
2014.  With years of accumulated experience and knowledge, many of those nearing
retirement age are key contributors to the Corporation’s success. It is important therefore
that appropriate succession planning, recruitment and retention activities are in place to
maintain safe and reliable service and to manage the loss of valuable experience and
knowledge that can result from the retirement of key contributors. At the same time there
is opportunity to achieve efficiencies and cost reductions by evaluating the need for
positions that are vacated.

Infectious Disease — Ebola Virus (E.1.1)

In June 2014 an outbreak of the Ebola virus occurred in West Africa that could
potentially impact Manitoba Hydro operations if the virus is not contained. A number of
Hydro employees seconded to the subsidiary company Manitoba Hydro International, as
well as several MHI Independent contractors, were working in West Africa during the
time of this outbreak and were relocated to various other countries in order to continue
their work remotely. None were affected by this virus and they will not return to the area
until such time that it is considered safe.

As is the case with any infectious disease, the Corporation needs to be ready and respond
appropriately to the events as they occur. The developing and changing nature of this
Ebola crisis is being assessed and any changes to established practices and/or policies
will be performed to meet the declared requirements of the health authorities. A
communication strategy to employees is also under development.
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Cyber Security (F.2.1)

The growth of electronic communication and automation, while delivering significant
benefits to Manitoba Hydro, has also increased risk to the Corporation. This risk includes
any cyber attack that could impact the resiliency, reliability, confidentiality, availability
or the integrity of Manitoba Hydro Information and Operational Technology assets,
including the theft of personal and or business information, and or the disruption/misuse
of critical operations/assets. Any computer or control system if not secured properly may
be considered a potential target. These cyber attacks could have a significant impact on
Manitoba Hydro operationally and financially, and may have a rippling effect on the
Manitoba economy.

Countermeasures, management controls and processes are in place to mitigate this risk.
The corporation is also developing a series of measures to further augment cyber-security
efforts consistent with recommendations of the Office of the Auditor General. Steps to
address the recommendations include establishing an Enterprise Security Council
comprised of senior executives to provide oversight for all physical and technology
security. The Auditor General's report consisted of eight recommendations and the
Corporation has developed action plans to address each.

Reputation (G.1)

The Corporation has recently completed a number of significant regulatory hearings,
including the Clean Environment Commission and Needs For and Alternatives To
(NFAT) Manitoba Hydro’s Preferred Development Plan.

_ Similar to other Canadian electric utilities, the Corporation’s

customer satisfaction ratings have been recently declining below its typical range.

A Public Communication Plan continues to be developed to aid in managing customer
perceptions of the Corporation’s efforts to meet their mandate as outlined under the
Manitoba Hydro Act while balancing the need for future domestic rate increases. A
component of the plan will use the Corporation’s existing communications channels,
stakeholder engagement and media relations efforts to address issues that may continue to

arise.
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] 1 Corporation will

take all steps possible to try to ensure that its customer satisfaction rating and current
positive reputation are maintained.

IV.  CORPORATE RISK MAP

Corporate Risk Profiles (see Appendix B) identify and assess each risk facing the Corporation,
describe activities used to manage the risk, and provide estimates of the potential residual impact
to the Corporation in terms of likelihood and consequence after mitigation actions have been
taken. The Corporation’s tolerance for each risk and an assessment of whether the risk is within
or outside the desired tolerance level is also provided. The risk rating and tolerance criteria are
provided in Appendix C. As well, further detail of the risk tolerance assessment for each risk is
provided in Appendix A.

The following Corporate Risk Map illustrates the results of a residual risk assessment for all
risks facing the Corporation.
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L. Water Supply Variation / Drought

2. Climate Change

3. Operational Impact and Infrastructure
1. Legal - Species at Risk Act

4. Reliability of Supply G.

5. Upstream Regulation and Water
Withdrawals

D. Infrastructure
1. Loss of Plant (all property, all perils)
L.1. Water Retaining Structures and
Flow Control
Extreme Drought — Shortfall Energy
Prolonged Loss of System Supply
System Shutdown (Short Term)
System Shutdown (Natural Gas)
Technology

Sl Ohith Bl B

Emergency Management Program

E. Human K.

l. Safety and Health
1. Infectious Disease
2. Union/ Employee Issues
3. Workforce
4. Technology

Business Operational

1. Supply Chain

2. Operational Controls
1. Cyber Security

Reputation
1. Reputation

Governance / Regulatory / Legal
Regulation and Licensing

Export Market Access

Legal Compliance

Contracts and Ventures
NERC/MRO Reliability Standards

S ol el

-

Special Interest Groups I

Emerging Energy Technologies
1. Emerging Energy Technologies

Strategic

1. Strategic Direction and Implementation
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Risks that are coded yellow on the risk map indicate that some emerging issues need to be
monitored and additional action may be required. A summary of the yellow coded risks that are
not discussed in the previous sections of this report is provided below.

.A.Z.l Export Regulatory Environment — Export market rules continually evolve
with new rules being imposed that could impact future access to export markets.

Manitoba Hydro collectively manages its market access risks through a

o A.2.4 Export Special Interest Groups — A positive corporate and product image
enables the Corporation to maximize export sales opportunities and to develop
generation and transmission projects required for both domestic needs and exports.
Negative lobbying efforts by Special Interest Groups can tarnish the Corporation’s
image or the image of hydropower, limiting its marketability. Manitoba Hydro is

renewable source of electricity; (2) Aggressively countering Special Interest Group
activities with Manitoba Hydro’s perspective; and (3) Expanding engagement with
groups who may lobby for or against Manitoba Hydro.
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Appendix 11.7
: Corporate Overview MFR 10
Corporate Risk Management Report

A.2.6 Major Export Contracts Requiring Early Conawapa ISD - There is a lost
opportunity to Manitoba Hydro if it’s export customers do not commit to additional
large power sales agreements _ These new agreements will
justify an early in-service date for Conawapa, otherwise spending on Conawapa will

end.

Several actions are being taken to ménage this risk, including: (1) Aggressively
pursuing discussions with export customers to ensure that they understand that their
- commitment is required if they are counting on purchasing generation from
Conawapa, and (2) Advocating with US legislative and regulatory bodies to provide
incentives for US utilities to contract for new hydro from Manitoba as part of their
plans to address emerging carbon regulations and generation retirements.

C.4 Reliability of Supply — The Corporation is at risk that environmental licensing
concerns could obstruct the Corporation’s ability to build the necessary transmission
facilities required to provide a reliable supply of energy. The Corporation will
continue to be proactive in addressing these concerns and ensuring adequate lead
times to resolve issues.

D.1.1 Water Retaining Structures and Flow Control — Dam or dyke structures
can fail resulting in impacts ranging from insignificant to catastrophic. |

D.7  Special Interest Groups —

D.8 Emergency Management Program - As discussed throughout the Category D
Infrastructure section, the Corporation’s energy infrastructure is highly exposed to
events that can have impacts ranging from insignificant to catastrophic. These
include prolonged loss of system supply, the inability to maintain minimum energy
services, loss of life, severe environmental damage and significant costs to the
Manitoba economy. To ensure that appropriate plans and programs are in place, there

November, 2014 : Page 22
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are: (1) policies and procedures to guide actions, (2) staff training and emergency
preparedness exercises on a regular basis, (3) actions to follow up on and address
identified deficiencies, and (4) continual enhancements to the program to ensure the
state of readiness. Initiatives currently underway include developing a corporate
plan for business continuity for continuation of critical operations and constructing an
emergency fuel depot. Several other initiatives are being considered.

e K.  Safety and Health — Employee safety is always a key concern to the
Corporation due to the inherent nature of the operational work performed by
Manitoba Hydro. To date a focus on continuous safety improvements has resulted in
a steady decline in workplace accident severity and frequency rates. The
Corporation will continue to focus on making improvements to the safety program.

e F.1 Supply Chain — The Corporation requires a variety of critical goods and services

to achieve its objectives.

e H.5 NERC/MRO Reliability Standards — Achieving the highest level of reliability
is one of the core tenets of Manitoba Hydro’s Vision statement. In support of this
vision, Manitoba Hydro is a member of the North American Electric Reliability
Corporation (NERC) and has been legally required to comply with nearly 100 of its
reliability standards since 2007. These standards specify requirements for planning,
operating and maintaining the bulk electric system. The Corporation has developed a
Corporate NERC Reliability Compliance Program to manage the demands of

compliance.

o K.1 Strategic Direction and Implementation — Manitoba Hydro continues to be at
a critical point in renewing and expanding Manitoba’s electrical and gas system.
Major strategic decisions, plans and assumptions are subject to significant internal
and external review and approval processes. Decisions for future power generation,
transmission and distribution will depend on the best information at the time, and
plans will be modified at key decision points if circumstances warrant.
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Financial Information MFR 2

Summary of Reasons for Application Table of operating results (Tables 2.1.1, 2.1.2
2010 GRA) including ten years of record/ (7 years actual and current and test years)
including the retained earnings for electric operations, and the financial targets,
interest coverage, capital coverage and debt to equity ratio for electric operations
only.

Please see the following tables for the requested information.



2015/16 & 2016/17 General Rate Application Appendix 11.8
Financial Information MFR 2

Net Income - Electricity Operations

Actual Forecast
(in millions of $) 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Rewvenue
General Consumers Revenue
- at approved rates $ 1075 $ 1127 % 1145 $ 1200 $ 1193 $ 1341 $ 1424|$ 1437 $ 1454 $ 1460
- Bipole lll Resene - - - - - - (19) (30) (32) (34)
Extraprovincial Revenue (net of Fuel & Power Purchased and Water Rentals) 366 323 202 172 98 101 137 150 181 147
Other Revenue 8 16 6 6 14 30 22 15 14 14
1448 1 466 1353 1379 1305 1472 1564 1572 1617 1587
Expenses 1112 1209 1193 1240 1243 1407 1439 1495 1571 1653
Operating, Maintenance and Administrative 323 364 378 397 412 463 481 486 542 552
Finance Expense 401 433 373 388 385 452 435 495 510 548
Depreciation and Amortization 324 340 358 365 353 392 411 405 401 422
Capital and Other Taxes 57 64 76 81 83 86 97 99 107 121
Corporate Allocation 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 8 8
Other expenses - - - - 1 5 6 2 2 2
Non-controlling Interest - - - - - 13 22 25 12 8
Net Income (loss) before proposed rate increases $ 337 % 257 $ 160 $ 139 $ 61 $ 78 $ 147|$ 102 $ 58 $ (58)
Proposed rate increases (3.95% April 1, 2015 and 3.95% April 1, 2016) 57 118
Net Income including proposed rate increases $ 337 $ 257 $ 160 $ 139 $ 61 $ 78 $ 147| $ 102 $ 115 $ 59
Retained Earnings and Financial Ratios (without proposed rate increases)
Retained Earnings (electric operations) $ 1784 $ 2028 $ 2190 $ 2328 $ 2390 $ 2468 $ 2614|$ 2717 $ 2721 $ 2662
Debt to Equity Ratio (electric operations) 73:27 77:23 72:28 72:28 74:26 75:25 77:23 78:22 82:18 85:15]
Interest Coverage Ratio (electric operations) 1.72 1.50 1.33 1.26 1.11 1.13 1.25 1.16 1.08 0.93
Capital Coverage Ratio (electric operations) 1.65 1.82 1.28 1.22 1.10 1.26 1.39 0.98 0.92 0.74
Retained Earnings and Financial Ratios (including proposed rate increases)
Retained Earnings (electric operations) $ 1784 $ 2028 $ 2190 $ 2328 $ 2390 $ 2468 $ 2614|$ 2717 $ 2778 $ 2837
Debt to Equity Ratio (electric operations) 73:27 77:23 72:28 72:28 74:26 75:25 77:23 78:22 82:18 84:16
Interest Coverage Ratio (electric operations) 1.72 1.50 1.33 1.26 111 1.13 1.25 1.16 1.16 1.07
Capital Coverage Ratio (electric operations) 1.65 1.82 1.28 1.22 1.10 1.26 1.39 0.98 1.02 0.94
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Comparison of Electrical Operations MH14 to MH13

Increase/(Decrease)
(millions of $)

General Consumers at projected rates
Extraprovincial Revenue (net of Fuel & Power Purchased and Water Rentals)
Other

Total Revenues

Operating and Administrative
Finance Expense
Depreciation and Amortization
Capital and Other Taxes
Corporate Allocation

Other Expenses

Non-controlling Interest

Net Income

Appendix 11.8
Financial Information MFR 2

2015 2016 2017

MH14 MH13 Variance MH14 MH13 Variance MH14 MH13 Variance
1407 1442 (35) 1479 1516 (36) 1544 1592 (48)
150 118 32 181 77 104 147 90 57
15 13 2 14 13 1 14 14 0
1572 1573 1) 1674 1606 69 1705 1695 9
486 494 8) 542 542 0) 552 548 4
495 499 4) 510 514 3) 548 567 (19)
405 440 (35) 401 437 (36) 422 448 (26)
99 101 ) 107 109 ) 121 121 (0)
9 9 0) 8 9 0) 8 9 0)
2 0 2 2 0 2 2 0 2
1495 1543 (47) 1571 1611 (40 1653 1692 (39)
25 24 1 12 18 (6) 8 16 8)
102 55 48 115 12 103 59 19 41
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Financial Information MFR 3

Appendix 11.9
Financial Information MFR 3

For the years 1999/00 through the test years, a details of rate increases requested,
approved, the annual revenue increase and prevailing Manitoba CPI in similar
basis to PUB/MH 1-2 (b) (2010 GRA).

Please see the table below.

Annual $ Inflation
% Rate Inc Req. % Approved Inc./(Dec.) Rate
1999/00 0% - - 2.2%
2000/01 0% - - 2.5%
2001/02 -1.92% - ($14.4) 2.1%
Uniform Rate Legislation million
2002/03 0% - - 2.3%
2003/04 0% -0.72% Apr 1/03 ($6.5) 0.9%
Status Update BO 7/03 million
2004/05 3.0% Apr 1/04 5% Aug 1/04 $32.3 2.7%
(two year application) Plus conditional million
2.25% Apr 1/05 & 2.25%
Oct 1/05
BO 101/04 & 143/04
2005/06 2.5% Apr 1/05 2.25% $21.8 2.4%
BO 34/05 million
2006/07 2.25% Feb 1/07 2.25% Mar 1/07 $23.1 2.0%
BO 20/07 (interim) million
BO 90/08 (final)
2007/08 0% 0% - 1.9%
2008/09 2.9% Apr 1/08 5.0% Jul 1/08 $52.4 2.2%
(except ARL 0%) million
Plus conditional
4.0% Apr 1/09
BO 90/08 (final)
2009/10 3.9% Apr 1/09 2.9% Apr 1/09 $32.8 0.6%
BO 32/09 (final) million
2010/11 2.9% Apr 1/10 2.9% Apr 1/10 $32.9 1.0%

Page 1 of 2
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Appendix 11.9

Financial Information MFR 3

Annual $ Inflation
% Rate Inc Req. % Approved Inc./(Dec.) Rate
(except ARL 0%) million
BO 18/10 (interim)
BO 5/12 reduced increase
to 1.9%. Review & Vary
BO 43/13 approved original
increase of 2.9% (final)
2011/12 2.9% Apr 1/11 2.0% Apr 1/11 $24.4 2.8%
(except ARL 0%) million
BO 40/11 (interim)
BO 5/12 & BO 43/13(final)
2011/12 0.9% Aug 1/11 0%
BO 99/11 (interim)
BO 5/12 (final)
2012/13 3.5% Apr 1/12 2.0% Apr 1/12 $25.8 1.6%
BO 32/12 (interim) million
BO 43/13 (final)
2,50 Sep 1/12 2.4% Sep 112 $31.0
BO 116/12 (interim) million
BO 43/13 (final)
2013/14 3.5% Apr 1/13 3.5% May 1/13 $47.6 2.4%
(1.5% to BPIII million
Reserve)
BO 43/13 (final)
2014/15 3.95% April 1/14 2.75% May 1/14 $38.7 1.8% (est)
(0.75% to BPIII million
Reserve)
BO 49/14 (interim)
BO 51/14 (final)
2015/16 3.95% April 1/15 $57.4 million 1.9% (est)
(Proposed)
2016/17 3.95% April 1/16 $59.9 million 2.0% (est)
(Proposed)
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It starts with the flick of a switch.

July 31, 2013

Honourable Dave Chomiak

Minister charged with the administration of the Manitoba Hydro Act
Legislative Building

Winnipeg, Manitoba

R3C OV8

Dear Minister:

| have the honour of presenting the 62nd Annual Report of The Manitoba Hydro-Electric
Board, together with the financial statements, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013.

Respectfully submitted,

William C. Fraser, FCA
Chair, The Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board

Millions of times a day our customers turn to us for
the electricity they depend on.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chair's message 11
President and CEO’s message 12
Year in review 15
Corporate governance 38
Management’s discussion and analysis A
Consolidated financial statements ?SO
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2015/16 & 2016/17 General Rate Application

CORPORATE PROFILE

Manitoba Hydro is one of the largest integrated electricity and natural
gas distribution utilities in Canada. We provide reliable, affordable
energy to customers throughout Manitoba and trade electricity within
three wholesale markets in the Midwestern United States and Canada.
We are also a leader in promoting conservation, providing numerous
Power Smart* programs to help our customers get the most out of their
energy. Nearly all of the electricity Manitoba Hydro produces each year is
clean, renewable power generated using the province’s abundant water

resources.

Manitoba Hydro is a provincial Crown Corporation governed by the
Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board, whose members are appointed by the
Lieutenant-Governor in Council.

And, for over 60 years, Manitoba Hydro has
answered that call.

*Manitoba Hydro is a licensee of the Trademark and Official Mark.

We harnessed the energy flowing in this province’s
rivers; first building generating stations on the
Winnipeg River and, as demand grew, moving north
to the Saskatchewan and Nelson rivers.

We built the transmission and distribution systems
to deliver that electricity.

We created transmission interconnections with other
markets and sold our surplus electricity, bringing
billions of dollars into Manitoba.

These investments resulted in one of the most
affordable, reliable and sustainable power systems
anywhere.
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##81 255 000

Hydroelectric generating stations added since 1961

1993

Grand Rapids: 479 MW
Kelsey: 250 MW
Kettle: 1220 MW
Long Spruce: 1010 MW
Jenpeg: 129 MW
Limestone: 1340 MW
Wuskwatim: 200 MW
-
©
2
-
6 In 1996-97, four 33-MW units at the Brandon Generating =)
Station were retired. Five years later, two natural gas ,
combustion turbines were added to the station with a “g\‘

combined capability of 266 MW.

1995 1997 1999 2001 2003 2005 2007 2009 2011



Now, it's time to invest in our system again.

The demand for electricity is continuing to grow
here in Manitoba. New sources of energy are
needed.

A considerable portion of the infrastructure we use
to generate and deliver electricity is approaching
the end of its service life and cannot continue to
meet our customers’ evolving expectations. To
serve the future energy needs of this province, we

need to renew, upgrade and construct new facilities.

Manitoba Hydro is ready to meet these challenges.

Millions of kilowatt hours

Appendix 11.10
Financial Information MFR 4

Our plan continues the proven strategy of developing
this province’s clean, renewable hydro resources and
building interconnections to leverage the associated
export sale opportunities while enhancing reliability.

We are preparing to build the 695-megawatt Keeyask
Generating Station and the proposed 1 485-megawatt
Conawapa Generating Station along with a new
transmission interconnection to the United States.

We are continuing to make investments in Power Smart
energy conservation programs that will reduce growth in
demand by over 500 megawatts in the next 15 years.

New generating stations

Reliable electricity supply

¥
1 )

Forecast electricity demand

Keeyask Conawapa

2014 2016 2018 2020 2022 2024 2026 2028 2030 2032




We are accelerating investment in our infrastructure

to maintain reliability; building the new Bipole Ill high
voltage direct current transmission line and replacing
assets — ranging from wood poles to substations — that
have reached the end of their service life or the limits of
their capacity.

We are investing in a powerful future for Manitoba,
ensuring the next generation will continue to enjoy the
benefits of affordable, reliable and sustainable electricity
— every time they flick a switch.

/
|
ills &

1]

i

Substations in Winnipeg: 97

Substations replaced/refurbished in next 12 years: 20

Estimated cost = $630 mi”ion

2014 2016 2018 2020 2022 2024 2026 2028 2030
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3332 Chair's message

Manitoba Hydro plays an important role in =k
ensuring all Manitobans benefit from this

e 31l

T

province’s energy resources. |t was true nearly

3 50 years ago when the decision was made to
ssee

Seesassst develop the hydro potential of this province’s

northern rivers. It is true today as the corporation
again turns north to develop new generating
: stations and transmission capacity.

These are important investments for Manitoba
Hydro and the board carefully monitors all major

projects. This includes engaging management
of the corporation to review activities related
to the planned development of the Keeyask

S008I RRRERINERENIRRENERRRRRRERIRRRNRRRRRRRERIRRENRREERReERssssnRRRERe

and Conawapa generating stations and a new

transmission interconnection to the United States.

In July, I had the opportunity to visit the new concluded in the past fiscal year. It is anticipated that

LI T I T T ]

Wuskwatim Generating Station with leaders of the a licensing decision will be received this summer,

Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation (NCN) to mark the start  allowing work on this reliability project to commence

i E’E of electricity production. Developed in partnership later in the year.
3 : with NCN, Wuskwatim is a model of responsible
resource development — one where potentially The Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board is comprised
. 1 impacted Aboriginal communities are engaged of 11 members whose primary responsibility is to

in project planning, environmental assessments
and in the creation of employment and business
opportunities.

This responsible approach is also being taken with

ensure the corporation carries out its legislated
mandate. In performing this oversight, the board
reviews Manitoba Hydro's financial forecasts as

well as quarterly and annual financial statements.
Members also review and approve the corporation’s

g i the planned Keeyask Generating Station which, strategic plan.

sriiiiiIiIIIITIIIOT . pending regulatory approvals, will be developed

: in partnership with Tataskweyak Cree Nation, War | would like to express my gratitude to the members
Lake First Nation, Fox Lake Cree Nation and York of the board for their diligent work throughout the
Factory First Nation. The board was pleased with the  past year.

progress on the project in 2012-13, which included

.
.o
e
.o
'
.

filing its environmental impact statement. | would also like to recognize Manitoba Hydro’s
employees for their dedication and ongoing
Progress also continued on the Conawapa commitment to service.

Generating Station, including the ongoing planning

9888000 SRSRRRRSRIRNE

008000 RRRS

process with the communities in the vicinity of the
RBa55505000000000808 foe project — Fox Lake Cree Nation, York Factory First
e 89
si it Nation, Tataskweyak Cree Nation, War Lake First
sees: BEER: Nation and Shamattawa First Nation.
++4+44 e =
;'::::::838:
el sssiss A public hearing to review the environmental impact ~ William C. Fraser, FCA
_ 31 statement for the Bipole Ill Transmission Project Chair, The Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board
b S 3332228 :
3888833 : :
000800888 s8 s s . c s ss -
198888800 28283: 531504
4444
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President’s message

For most people, the act of flicking a switch or turning
up a thermostat is routine. Lights are turned on and
furnaces are started up without much thought to where
the energy comes from.

In the past year, however, we started asking our
customers to consider what is behind the switch. Our
message is this: the system that served Manitoba well
for many years now needs a significant investment

to continue meeting the province’s needs. It is an
investment that will require modest, regular increases
to the rates our customers pay for electricity.

Much of the infrastructure we use to deliver electricity
was built several decades ago when service was first
extended to urban then rural customers. It's getting
old and more costly to maintain. Manitoba Hydro is still
maintaining high levels of reliability — higher than most
in the industry. But, the condition of our distribution
assets is starting to impact reliability, outage
performance and the system’s ability to accommodate
load growth. Like most energy utilities in Canada, we
need to replace those assets that are at the end of
their service life. The cost of that work is expected to
be $500 to $600 million per year over the next two
decades.

Manitoba also needs new sources of energy. The
demand for electricity in our province is continuing

to grow and, at the current rate of approximately

80 megawatts of peak demand per year, it is projected

that a new source of electricity will be needed by the
2022-23 fiscal year. To meet the future needs of the
province, we are planning to build the 695-megawatt
Keeyask Generating Station at an estimated cost

of $6.2 billion followed by the 1,485-megawatt
Conawapa Generating Station at an estimated cost of
$10.2 billion.

Manitoba Hydro is well positioned to make these
investments while maintaining reasonable and
competitive rates for our customers and ensuring the
continued financial health of the corporation. This
past fiscal year, the corporation continued to add to
our equity base through retention of earnings. Our
consolidated net income of $92 million for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2013 contributed to retained
earnings which now stand at $2.54 billion, the highest
level in the corporation’s history. The debt to equity
ratio of 75:25 is on target and both the corporation’s
capital coverage and interest coverage ratios improved
over last year.

These measures are significant. Manitoba Hydro will
need to attract and invest a large amount of capital

as we face the renewal of our infrastructure and the
need to develop new sources of energy. As a Crown-
owned utility, we are fortunate to have the support

of the provincial government to guarantee our debt.
However, we must also maintain sufficient levels

of net income and retained earnings to ensure the
corporation remains self-sufficient. Export sales along
with modest, regular domestic electricity rate increases
will help us achieve this objective as we move forward.

Utilities across Canada are experiencing similar rate
pressures. It's been estimated that nearly $350 billion
must be spent across Canada in the next 20 years

to renew and replace electricity systems. Manitoba’s
advantage is our electricity rates are currently among
the lowest overall in North America. We are taking

a prudent, proven approach to developing our
system that will allow us to maintain this competitive
advantage.

One way we'll do that is by leveraging the export
sale opportunities associated with Manitoba’s
hydropower resources to create revenues that offset
capital investments in new generating stations.

There continues to be a demand for clean, reliable
hydroelectricity in the United States where utilities are
looking to diversify their supply portfolios by replacing
aging coal-fired units and limiting exposure to the price
volatility in natural gas markets. Manitoba Hydro has
already signed firm sale agreements with Northern
States Power, Minnesota Power and Wisconsin Public
Service valued at $7 billion. We are also negotiating a
term sheet with Wisconsin Public Service for up to

500 megawatts of additional capacity.

We will continue to pursue demand side management
where economic, providing our customers innovative
solutions for conserving energy and reducing their
costs while also making more electricity available for
export sales. Our broad spectrum of Power Smart
programs helped Manitoba Hydro’s customers save

a combined $102 million on their electricity and
natural gas bills in 2012-13. Over the next 15 years,
Manitoba Hydro will invest over $420 million to achieve
reductions of approximately 1,500 gigawatt hours in
electricity consumption and 60 million cubic metres of
natural gas per year by 2027-28.

As a corporation, we are also carefully examining all
expenditures and reducing or deferring where possible.
We are gaining synergies and cost reductions through
process improvements such as the implementation of
our new mobile workforce management system. In the
longer term, we are looking at the demographic shift
that is occurring in our workforce as an opportunity.
Nearly 00 employees are eligible for retirement in
this calendar year. While we aren’t expecting that
many employees to move on, we are evaluating those
positions that are vacated and determining whether
they need to be filled or if we can change the way we
work without sacrificing safety and reliability.

However, the potential opportunity in our workforce
demographics also presents a challenge. With years

of accumulated experience and knowledge, many of
those at or nearing retirement age are key contributors
to our success. It is important, therefore, that we do the
necessary succession planning as well as recruitment
and retention activities. Effectively managing this
changeover in staff will be as critical to maintaining

the level of service our customers expect as renewing
infrastructure or building new generating stations.

It is also important that we promote and protect the
health of our workforce. | am pleased to report that
there were no high-risk accidents in 2012-13 and that
Manitoba Hydro’s overall safety performance saw
another year-over-year improvement. In particular, we
made good progress in reducing accident frequency
and accident severity — improving both measures for
the fifth year in a row.

| continue to be impressed with the quality of energy
service in Manitoba and consider myself fortunate to
be a part of an organization with such a long, proud
tradition of customer service excellence. Over the past
year, I've seen first-hand the dedication of Manitoba
Hydro’s employees — from the work done to restore
service in difficult conditions such as the Thanksgiving
Day weekend storm in southeastern Manitoba to

the diligent efforts to prepare for public hearings

that reviewed our rate applications and the Bipole Il
Transmission Project.

It reinforces my belief that Manitoba Hydro is ready to
meet the challenges of providing reliable power both
today and for decades to come.

| want to thank all the men and women who work

for Manitoba Hydro for their contributions to the
achievements of the past year. In addition, | want to
acknowledge Vince Warden, who retired earlier this
year from his position as Senior Vice-President of
Finance and Administration and Chief Financial Officer
after 45 years of service. He was a key advisor during
my first year at Manitoba Hydro whose counsel was
invaluable and much appreciated.

| also want to express my sincere appreciation to Bill
Fraser and the other members of the Manitoba Hydro-
Electric Board for their guidance and support over the
past year.

w-{

Scott A. Thomson, CA
President and Chief Executive Officer
Manitoba Hydro
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To be the best utility in North America with respect to safety, rates, reliability, customer satisfaction
and environmental leadership; and to always be considerate of the needs of customers, employees
To provide for the continuance of a supply of energy to meet the needs of the province and to promote
economy and efficiency in the development, generation, transmission, distribution, supply and end-use
* Extend and protect access to North American energy markets and profitable export sales.

develop and retain a highly skilled and motivated workforce that reflects the
* Be recognized as an outstanding corporate citizen and a driver of economic development

* Strengthen working relationships with Aboriginal communities.
* Promote cost effective energy conservation and innovation.

* Protect the environment in everything that we do.
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is natural gas or electricity, we remain focused on ensuring our customers

Established by the government of Manitoba over 60 years ago, as demand
for electricity in the post-war economy flourished, the Manitoba Hydro-
power supply for the province. That mission hasn’t changed. Whether it
continue to benefit from an affordable and reliable source of energy.

Electric Board was tasked with providing an adequate and economic
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Highlights

Net Income Equity Ratio - For the year ended March 31
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millions of dollars
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Highlights

Total Hydraulic Generation Power Smart Savings - Electricity Power Smart Savings - Natural Gas
For the year ended March 31 For the year ended March 31 For the year ended March 31
billions of kilowatt hours billions of kilowatt hours millions of cubic metres
35F 250 N
30F
OPERATING STATISTICS
2013 2012 Increase/(Decrease) x5k
Electrical Operations
20F
Sales billions of kilowatt hours
. 15F
Manitoba sales 21.5 20.8 0.7
Extraprovincial sales 9.1 10.2 (1.1) 10k
System supply billions of kilowatt hours 51
Generation 33.2 33.2 -
0
Purchases 1.4 1.2 0.2 3 =4 = ] fad] e o — N ™ N o — o~ ™
S © © ©o o S © © o© o S © o o o
N N N ~N ~N N N N ~N N N ~N N N N
thousands of kilowatts
Manitoba peak load 4 535 4343 192
Customer Satisfaction with Overall Service Customer Satisfaction with System Reliability (electricity)
(Source: MH quarterly customer satisfaction tracking study) (Source: MH quarterly customer satisfaction tracking study)
10p 10pF
2013 2012 Increase/(Decrease)

@
o

Natural Gas Operations

millions of cubic metres

oy

N o

‘-”.ooI
ooI

Residential sales 602 509 93 ’

Commercial and industrial sales 849 728 121 7
1451 1237 214

Transportation service 598 629 (31 6
2049 1866 183

billions of joules
Manitoba peak load 504 961 500 434 4527

o
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o
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CEA average for all Canadian electric utilities

o
o
o
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CEA average for all Canadian electric utilities
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2012
2013
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2011
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On Resources

Situated where some of the largest drainage basins in North America
converge, Manitoba is home to an impressive source of clean, renewable
water power. Our customers tap into this power at 15 generating stations
which produce nearly all of Manitoba Hydro's electricity. We also export
about a third of this electricity in an average water year, creating additional
revenues that reduce rates in Manitoba. The hydro system is supported

by two small thermal generating stations, power purchased from two
independent wind farms and a dozen transmission interconnections with
neighbouring utilities. In 2012-13, Manitoba Hydro invested $472 million
to ensure we continue to meet our customers’ energy needs, reliably

and affordably.

Installed Average annual
energy produced:

32 billion
5 685 kilowatt hours.

generating
capability:

megawatts.

First power at the Wuskwatim
Generating Station

A major milestone was achieved in June, when the
first of three units at the 200-megawatt Wuskwatim
Generating Station entered commercial service.

The second unit was released for service two
months later in August and the final unit followed in
October. In total, the $1.8 billion Wuskwatim Project
will deliver an average of 1 550 gigawatt hours of
renewable energy annually.

Developed by the Wuskwatim Power Limited
Partnership — a unique partnership involving
Manitoba Hydro and the Nisichawayasihk Cree
Nation (NCN) — the Wuskwatim Generating
Station is on the Burntwood River approximately

Energy exported
in 2012-13:

9.1 billion

kilowatt hours.

45 kilometres southwest of Thompson within
NCN's traditional territory. The Wuskwatim Project
Development Agreement signed in 2006 provides
NCN the option to own up to one-third of the
Wouskwatim Generating Station through its wholly-
owned Taskinigahp Power Corporation. NCN
confirmed its intention to maintain a significant
ownership position during the fiscal year.

From the beginning of construction in August

2006 to completion in December 2012, just over

6 000 workers were hired to work on the project for
various periods of time. Approximately 37 percent
of these hires were Aboriginal and 65 percent were
from Manitoba.

Environmental review set for
Keeyask Generating Station

The environmental impact statement for the proposed
695-megawatt Keeyask Generating Station was
submitted to Manitoba Conservation and Water
Stewardship and the Canadian Environmental
Assessment Agency in July. Public hearings on the
project by the Clean Environment Commission are
scheduled for the fall of 2013.

The Keeyask Generating Station will be part of

a Needs For and Alternatives To review that will
examine Manitoba Hydro’s proposed development
plan, including the Conawapa Generating Station, a
new Manitoba to U.S. transmission interconnection
and new long-term export sales. This review will be
conducted by the Manitoba Public Utilities Board.
Manitoba Order in Council 128/2013 sets out the
terms of reference. The review commences

August 2013.

The $6.2 billion Keeyask Project is being developed
by Manitoba Hydro in partnership with the four
Keeyask Cree Nations — Tataskweyak Cree Nation,
War Lake First Nation, Fox Lake Cree Nation and York
Factory First Nation. The site for the station is on the
Nelson River, approximately 30 kilometres west of
Gillam, within the Split Lake Resource Management
Area. Once completed, the Keeyask Generating
Station will provide an average of 4 400 gigawatt
hours of renewable energy each year.

At the end of the fiscal year, the process was
underway to select a general civil contractor for the
project. Pending regulatory approvals, construction
of the generating station is scheduled to start in June
2014 with an expected in-service date of 2019.

To minimize risk of delays and optimize employment,
training and business opportunities for the Keeyask
Cree Nations, a separate infrastructure agreement
was negotiated to enable an early start to
construction of an access road and the first phase of
the main construction camp. Work on the Keeyask
Infrastructure Project began in early 2012 after a
Manitoba Environment Act licence was received.

The majority of service contracts for the infrastructure
project were awarded to joint venture partnerships
involving the Keeyask Cree Nations.

Planning continues for Conawapa
Generating Station

Preparatory work on the proposed 1 485-megawatt
Conawapa Generating Station continued throughout
the fiscal year. Environmental and Aboriginal
traditional knowledge studies are underway with
expectations that the project’s environmental impact
statement will be completed and ready to file with
regulators by the end of 2014. Engineering and
construction planning activities also continued with

a potential construction start date of 2016 and an
in-service date of 2025.

The $10.2 billion Conawapa project would be built on
the Nelson River, about 90 kilometres downstream of
Gillam, in the Fox Lake Resource Management Area.
When complete, the station will produce an average
of 7 000 gigawatt hours of electricity annually.

A formal planning process is ongoing with
communities in the vicinity of the proposed
generating station, including Fox Lake Cree Nation,
York Factory First Nation, Tataskweyak Cree Nation,
War Lake First Nation and Shamattawa First Nation.
A memorandum of understanding between Fox Lake
Cree Nation, the Province of Manitoba and Manitoba
Hydro recognizes that Fox Lake will have a leading
and significant role in the planning process of the
Conawapa Project because of its proximity to the
community.

New spillway for Pointe du Bois

Significant progress was achieved at the Pointe du

Bois Generating Station where century-old spillway
structures will be replaced with a seven-bay spillway
and an earth-fill dam. Excavation of the new spillway
channel finished in March and the new spillway
structure is expected to be operational by spring 2014.
Construction of the earth-fill dam and removal of the
existing spillway structures is scheduled for completion
in 2015.



The $560 million Spillway Replacement Project is
required to maintain public and dam safety as well
as provide a safer work environment for Manitoba
Hydro employees. All but six of Pointe du Bois’ 97
spillway bays or sluiceways have to be manually
operated — a difficult and sometimes dangerous
task in cold winter conditions when icing can occur.
Further, the current spillways no longer meet the
Canadian Dam Association’s dam safety guidelines.

The new spillway structure will increase the station'’s
flood capacity from approximately 2 850 cubic
metres per second — the equivalent of a one-in-90-
year flood event — to approximately 5 000 cubic
metres per second.

Seasonal diversity agreement
extended

In December, Manitoba Hydro and Great River
Energy of Minnesota signed a term sheet for the
seasonal exchange of 200 megawatts of capacity
and associated energy from 2014 to 2025. The
arrangement would provide Manitoba Hydro with
200 megawatts of firm capacity and energy during
Manitoba’s peak winter demand period. During
the summer, when demand in Manitoba is lowest,
the corporation would sell its surplus capacity and
energy to Great River Energy.

The proposed arrangement would begin on
November 1, 2014 and replace an existing
150-megawatt diversity exchange agreement that
is currently set to expire on April 30, 2015.

Kelsey re-runnering nears completion

The last generating unit to be overhauled as part
of a re-runnering project at the 52-year-old Kelsey
Generating Station was taken out of service in
September. The second-to-last unit was returned to
service in May 2012 after rewinding, modifications
to the draft tube and installation of a new turbine
runner. The work increased the capacity of the unit
by approximately 11 megawatts to 45 megawatts.

Rehabilitation of Kelsey's seven units began in 2006.
The final unit is scheduled for return to service

in late May 2013. When complete, the project is
expected to increase the total output of the Kelsey
Generating Station by about 77 megawatts at a cost
of approximately $300 million.

More wind energy added

Ten additional wind turbines were built at Algonquin
Power’s St. Leon Wind Farm in the past fiscal

year as the result of a 25-year power purchase
agreement signed with Manitoba Hydro. The new
turbines entered commercial service in December,
increasing the installed capacity at St. Leon to 120.5
megawatts.

Manitoba Hydro also purchases energy from the
138-megawatt St. Joseph Wind Farm developed by
Pattern Energy.

Left: The Wuskwatim Generating Station. Right: Senior staff, including Ken Adams, Senior Vice-President of Power
Supply, pictured second from left, accompany Scott Thomson, President and Chief Executive Officer, second from right,
on a visit to the site of the proposed Conawapa Generating Station.

On Reliability

Financial Information MFR 4

Any time our customers turn on a light, plug-in a computer or ignite a
gas stove, they are connecting to a vast network of wires and pipes that
deliver energy where and when it's needed. Our network has grown, and
must continue to grow, in step with the province we serve. In the past
fiscal year, Manitoba Hydro invested $509 million to build and maintain a
secure, dependable delivery system.

Transmission lines:

12 800 78 000 9 000

kilometres.

Bipole Il environmental review
hearing concludes

In March, the Clean Environment Commission
concluded 35 days of hearings over five months
to review the environmental impact statement
for the Bipole Il Transmission Project as well as

a supplementary filing on four proposed route
adjustments. An environmental licensing decision
is pending.

Bipole Il is required to strengthen Manitoba
Hydro's overall system reliability. The $3.3 billion
project includes: a 1 384-kilometre, 500-kilovolt
direct current transmission line; the Keewatinoow
Converter Station near the site of the proposed
Conawapa Generating Station about 90 kilometres

Distribution lines:

kilometres.

Natural gas pipelines:

kilometres.

downstream of Gillam: and the Riel Converter
Station on the east side of Winnipeg. These
facilities will provide backup to the Bipole | and

Il high voltage direct current system which shares
a common right-of-way corridor and common
southern terminus at the Dorsey Converter Station.
This critical system delivers over 70 percent of

the hydroelectricity Manitoba Hydro generates in
northern Manitoba to customers in the south and
markets outside of the province.

Work to identify a route and assess the
environmental effects of the Bipole Il Transmission
Project began in 2008 and included multiple
rounds of public and stakeholder consultations.
Aboriginal communities were engaged as part

of this process and their perspectives, including
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Aboriginal traditional knowledge, were incorporated
into the planning, site selection and environmental
assessment process. The corporation continued to
work with Aboriginal communities over the past
fiscal year to discuss potential employment and
business opportunities related to the project as well
as review the project’s proposed environmental
protection program.

The target in-service date for the Bipole |lI
Transmission Project is late 2017.

New Riel high voltage terminal will
improve reliability

Contractors were erecting structural steel and other
equipment at the new Riel Terminal Station at the
end of the fiscal year. Under construction just east
of Winnipeg, at the future site of the Riel Bipole llI
Converter Station, this new alternating current (AC)
terminal will create another point where electricity
imported from the United States on an existing
500-kilovolt transmission interconnection can be
injected into Manitoba Hydro's transmission network.
This will improve the reliability of the province’s
energy supply during prolonged outages to existing
termination facilities or during droughts.

The Riel AC Reliability Improvement Project

was undertaken after studies concluded it was
necessary to reduce dependence on the existing
termination at the Dorsey 500-kilovolt AC station.
Those studies were conducted after a major wind
downburst in September 1996 severely damaged
19 towers on both high voltage direct current lines
immediately north of the Dorsey Converter Station
and the adjacent Dorsey to Minnesota 500-kilovolt

transmission line. This outage to the high voltage
direct current system curtailed Manitoba Hydro's
ability to transmit power from northern generating
stations. The planned in-service for this project

is 2014.

The proposed Bipole Il Transmission Project will
also terminate at Riel and include the addition of
converters and ancillary equipment.

Replacing aging distribution stations

Like many utilities across Canada, significant portions
of Manitoba Hydro's transmission and distribution
systems that were installed decades ago are aging
and are increasingly costly to maintain and renew. In
addition, population growth and increased customer
use of electricity requires a significant investment in
new facilities to ensure a reliable electricity supply.

One example of this investment is the work at the new
Burrows Distribution Station in Winnipeg’s north end
where final commissioning was underway at the end of
the fiscal year. The 66- to 12-kilovolt station replaces
two distribution stations which were over 75 years old
and had reached the limits of their capacity. Designed
with specific attention to safety and aesthetics because
of the proximity to residential homes, the station offers
a low profile presence in the community.

In February, work began on the new Martin Distribution
Station in the ElImwood neighbourhood of Winnipeg.
Similar in design to the Burrows station, the 66- to 12-,
four-kilovolt Martin station is sited next to a station built
in the 1950s that is no longer adequate for serving the
needs of the area. The new station is scheduled to be
in-service by the end of 2014.

Left: The new Riel Terminal Station under construction east of Winnipeg. Right: Three transformers were moved to the
Riel site in November using a 320-tire self-propelled trailer.

Tenders for the engineering, materials procurement
and construction of the Madison Distribution
Station were issued in March. The Madison station
will replace the St. James Distribution Station

in Winnipeg, addressing concerns with aging
infrastructure at the existing facility and providing
capacity for the growing number of commercial
and industrial customers in the area. Construction
is expected to begin in the fall of 2013 pending the
receipt of necessary environmental approvals.

New transmission stations add
capacity

Progress was also made on a number of projects

to add needed capacity to Manitoba Hydro’s
transmission system. The new 230- to 66-kilovolt
Transcona East Transmission Station was completed
in March in northeast Winnipeg and will resolve line-
loading issues and accommodate the retirement of
aging equipment at the existing Transcona Station. A
new 230- to 66-kilovolt transmission station is under
construction near Neepawa to meet forecast load
growth in the area and scheduled to be in-service in
2015. And, the 230- to 115-kilovolt Rockwood East
Transmission Station just north of Winnipeg is also
scheduled to enter service in 2015, addressing load
requirements north of Winnipeg. Rockwood East will
eventually replace the older Parkdale Station near
St. Andrews which was built in the 1940s.

Verifying ratings to maximize
capacity

When transmission line wires carry more current, they
run hotter, expand and sag closer to the ground. By
ensuring compliance with applicable transmission

line clearance requirements, Manitoba Hydro’s
Transmission Line Rating Verification and Mitigation
Program helps maintain the reliability of the

system while allowing the corporation to safely
maximize capacity. Using aerial surveys

that employ laser technology and transmission
modeling applications, the program assesses about
500 kilometres of transmission line each year. As of
March, approximately 33 000 line spans had been
assessed representing about 80 percent of the
corporation’s transmission lines.

Maintaining natural gas reliability

Manitoba Hydro undertook a number of projects in
the past fiscal year to maintain the integrity of the
corporation’s natural gas infrastructure, including
pressure regulator upgrades, replacement of gas
mains and corrosion control through the ongoing
replacement of anodes. The completion of the

lle des Chenes Transmission Network Upgrade
Project improved the reliability of the gas supply
to Winnipeg and surrounding areas through the
installation of 30-centimetre steel pipe and two
above grade isolation valve assemblies.

Manitoba Hydro also initiated a review of its
natural gas assets. Similar to condition assessments
undertaken with the corporation’s electric
infrastructure, the review will provide a better
understanding of the natural gas systems condition
and produce recommendations for addressing any
areas of concern that are identified.

Left: The King Street Distribution Station in downtown Winnipeg is nearly 100 years old. Centre: A
45 000-kilogram transformer is slid into place at the new Burrows Distribution Station. Right: Staff remove a 230-kilovolt

bushing at the Radisson Converter Station.
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On Service

$102 million in 2012-13.

Number of
electricity
customers:

548 774

Increasing accessibility of energy
efficiency

Manitoba Hydro introduced two initiatives in the
past fiscal year to make energy efficiency accessible
to more Manitoba homeowners or tenants who rent
a home.

The Power Smart Pay As You Save (PAYS) Financing
Program provides residential customers a convenient
option for completing energy efficiency upgrades
while keeping upfront costs and future monthly
finance payments as small as possible. To do this,
PAYS Financing allows a customer to use estimated
annual utility savings gained from installing energy
efficient measures to pay for those measures. Also,
the financing is tied to the property, allowing a
customer to transfer their financing to the next
homeowner or tenant renting the property.

Striving to be the best energy utility in North America requires more than
developing sustainable energy sources or building reliable infrastructure
to deliver that energy. It necessitates maintaining rates that are reasonable
while ensuring future price stability. It requires working in challenging
conditions, when called for, to restore interrupted service. And, it means
finding innovative ways to help customers get the most out of their
energy. An investment of $36 million in Power Smart energy conservation
programs helped our customers reduce their energy costs by a combined

Number of
natural gas
customers:

269 786

Through the Power Smart Neighbourhood Project,
Manitoba Hydro is working with community
organizations and groups to bring the benefits of
energy efficiency and sustainability to residents

of lower income neighbourhoods. Available
measures include free in-home energy reviews,
improvements to sealing, caulking and weather-
stripping, adding pipe wrapping and water efficiency
devices, installing new high-efficiency furnaces
and boilers, and insulation upgrades. Community
groups will manage each project and Manitoba
Hydro will provide funding to cover coordination
and promotion expenses. As of March, projects
were underway in Winnipeg with the North End
Community Renewal Corporation and in Brandon
with the Brandon Neighbourhood Renewal
Corporation.

Helping customers save

Manitoba Hydro offered both technical and financial
support to customers looking to improve the
efficiency of their operations and reduce energy
costs through a suite of 20 Power Smart programs,
including 10 for those in the commercial sector and
three aimed at industrial customers.

Kitchen Craft of Canada, for example, was able

to realize significant energy savings by revamping
the compressed air system at their manufacturing
plant in Winnipeg. Acting on recommendations

by Manitoba Hydro, Kitchen Craft reduced system
waste by redesigning their air compressor control
system, resizing their air distribution system and
adding more efficient compressors. As a result,
Kitchen Craft reduced their electricity consumption
by 1.6 million kilowatt hours per year. With the help
of financial incentives provided under Manitoba
Hydro's Power Smart Program, these improvements
will pay for themselves in four years.

The corporation’s Natural Gas Optimization Program
and the Performance Optimization Program
provided financial incentives to Malteurop Canada
helping to improve the performance of their malt
barley processing plant in Winnipeg. Exhaust air
heat recovery and high efficiency process air heaters
were installed, along with variable speed drives on
the kiln fans and upgrades to process controls. As a
result, Malteurop is expected to reduce their natural
gas consumption by 640 000 cubic metres and their
electricity consumption by 2.3 million kilowatt hours
per year.

The Hanover School Division worked with Manitoba
Hydro to build a new school in Steinbach to Power
Smart Design Standards. Clear Spring Middle
School is nearly 70 percent more energy efficient
than a conventional school thanks to features such
as a geothermal ground source heat pump for
heating and cooling, energy efficient lighting plus

a combination of occupancy sensors and daylight
controls to minimize the use of artificial light, high
levels of insulation in the walls and roof along with
energy efficient windows and doors. The corporation
provided technical advice throughout the design
process as well as financial incentives through the
Power Smart Commercial Lighting and Building
Envelope programs.

Demonstrating benefits of
bio-energy

A demonstration project that converts waste wood
chips into a synthetic gas similar to natural gas

then burns that gas to run two 50-kilowatt electrical
generators went online last fall at the Pineland Forest
Nursery near Hadashville. In Swan River, Spruce
Products Ltd. also began using heat produced from
combusted waste wood to operate a 100-kilowatt
electric generator.

Both projects are part of Manitoba Hydro’s Power
Smart Bio-energy Optimization Program which shows
businesses how to use new technologies to take
advantage of renewable biomass fuels and lower
operating costs. A third project was completed at
Tolko Industries’ kraft paper mill in The Pas in 2010 to
demonstrate pyrolysis oil, a renewable energy source

Left: Scott Thomson, President and Chief Executive Officer, speaks to media after introducing the new Power Smart Pay
As You Save Financing Program. Centre: Manitoba Hydro offers 13 Power Smart Programs to help business customers
lower energy costs. Right: The Power Smart Bio-energy Optimization Program showcases technologies that can convert

waste products into electricity or heat.




derived from waste wood that can be used to replace

fossil fuels burned to produce steam or power.

Two additional demonstration projects will be
implemented at other customer sites in the coming
fiscal year. All five projects received financial support
from the Government of Canada’s Clean Energy
Fund matched by Manitoba Hydro and participating
customers through work-in-kind contributions and
capital investments.

Centralized dispatch serving
province

Manitoba Hydro completed implementation of

a new province-wide workforce management
system in March that is improving productivity. The
system standardizes work planning, scheduling and
assignment for all electric and natural gas service
staff. Over 600 laptops are deployed in vehicles
allowing field staff to wirelessly receive work orders
which are assigned based on location, driving time,
work priority and skills required. It is expected that
customers will see improved response times as

a result of the system’s ability to more effectively
schedule work and allocate resources.

Severe snow and ice storms
challenge crews

Ice and snow storms are not uncommon in
Manitoba. In fact, Manitoba Hydro is a recognized
leader in techniques to protect infrastructure in such
conditions, including ice-melting on distribution and
some transmission lines. This year, however, two

severe storms — including the most powerful and
widespread snow storm in nearly three decades —
caused extensive damage and service interruptions.

Up to 45 centimetres of heavy, wet snow fell in the
southeast corner of Manitoba between October 4
and 5, causing record ice accumulations of up to
eight centimetres on conductors. These conditions
combined with high winds caused outages on
numerous transmission and distribution lines
affecting approximately 29 000 customers. Over
250 staff from across the province responded to the
storm, rolling ice off conductors, making conductor
repairs and removing trees from lines. In total,

250 wood poles, 50 cross-arms, five distribution
transformers and 700 insulators were replaced over
five days.

Crews were also busy in the western part of the
province during the month of December. For

three weeks, unseasonably warm temperatures
accompanied by freezing rain and hoar frost caused
excessive ice accumulations on distribution lines.
Over 300 staff rolled ice from nearly 4 500 kilometres
of line and used ice-melting to clear an additional

2 300 kilometres of line. About 800 customers
experienced outages ranging from one hour to

14 hours in duration. The ice removal work was
successful in limiting damage to 12 wood poles,
613 conductor repairs and 58 insulator
replacements.

Left: Crews work to remove ice from lines near Goodlands in southern Manitoba. Centre: A new centralized dispatch
system is expected to improve response times. Right: Staff work to complete repairs after a severe storm in the Dauphin
and Swan River area last June.

Electricity rate changes

On September 1, 2012, Manitoba Hydro
implemented an interim 2.4 percent overall
electricity rate increase. This followed an
interim two percent increase implemented on
April 1, 2012. Both increases were granted by
the Manitoba Public Utilities Board pending
conclusion of its review of the corporation’s
2012-13 and 2013-14 general rate application.

In its final order, the Public Utilities Board finalized
the interim rate increases and approved a further
3.5 percent rate increase across all customer
classes effective May 1, 2013. The order also
reversed a one percent rate rollback effective
April 1, 2010 and returned associated revenues
which had been held in a deferral account.

Manitoba Hydro's electricity customers continue to
enjoy the lowest rate structure in North America.

Natural gas rates decline

Natural gas prices across North America remained
low throughout the 2012-13 fiscal year and
Manitoba Hydro's natural gas customers benefitted
as a result. The total annual natural gas bill for a
typical residential customer in Manitoba was 44
percent lower than in 2003. From April 1, 2012

to March 31, 2013, natural gas rates declined by
six percent or the equivalent of $46 annually for a
typical residential customer.
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On Safety

Promoting safety in the work of our employees and in the actions of the
public around our facilities is Manitoba Hydro’s foremost goal. We are

continually seeking to improve our safety performance and, in doing so,
have achieved a steady decline in both workplace accident severity and

frequency rates.

ACCIDENT FREQUENCY RATE
Incidents per 200 000 hours worked
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Improving workplace safety
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Manitoba Hydro’s safety performance markedly
improved for the fifth consecutive year. In 2012-13,
the corporation achieved an accident frequency rate
of 0.72 incidents per 200 000 hours worked and

an accident severity rate of 9.68 calendar days

lost due to workplace injury or illness per 200 000
hours worked.

Manitoba Hydro’s safety culture is shaped by
a safety management system, over 750 safe
work procedures, job planning, work site visits,

ACCIDENT SEVERITY RATE
Days lost per 200 000 hours worked
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employee orientations, safety training and incident

investigations. Additionally, Manitoba Hydro assists
its employees to return to work as soon as medically
possible through attendance management and
reasonable accommodations. Timely return to the
workplace decreases recovery time and reduces the
financial impact for the employee, their families and
the corporation.

Profiling employees committed
to safety

Twelve employees who demonstrate safe work
habits and a commitment to motivating others to
practise safety at work and at home are the subject
of a year-long internal safety campaign that kicked
off in January. Each month the corporation’s internal
newsletter as well as calendars and banners posted
in work locations across the province feature a
different safety ambassador’s photo and story
describing why he or she chooses to work safe.
Primarily directed at customer service field staff, this
is the second year for the safety campaign.

Farm safety a priority

Farm safety continues to be a priority for Manitoba
Hydro. The corporation’s agricultural equipment
move permit program encourages farm customers to
provide a designated route map to ensure there are
adequate clearances to move oversized equipment.
The Go Underground Program encourages
customers to bury overhead power lines in their
farm yards. Manitoba Hydro will share 50 percent
of the cost of burying the primary service line up to
$10 000. In the last fiscal year, 18 customers took
advantage of the program.

These farm safety programs were promoted
through billboards, posters and public service
announcements on radio and television. Agricultural
safety messages were also delivered to over 2 000
youth in 16 communities at Progressive Agriculture
Safety Days.

Play It Safe Club celebrates

2013 marks the twentieth anniversary of Louie the
Lightning Bug’s Play It Safe Club which continues to
be a popular, fun and educational way for children
to learn about electrical and natural gas safety.
The nearly 7 000 members of the club receive a
personally addressed membership kit, collectible
trading cards, newsletters full of activities and
birthday wishes from Louie himself. In addition to
the club, Louie also keeps busy spreading safety
messages through videos, posters, television
commercials and personal appearances across
the province.

Promoting snowmobile safety

The corporation continued to work closely with
Snoman Inc., a non-profit organization providing
safety resources to 51 member snowmobile clubs.
The past year’s safety campaign included trail map
advertising, billboard messages throughout the
province, school posters, television advertising
and public service announcements for radio

and newspaper. Support was also provided to
community snowmobile safety clinics in Victoria
Beach and Thompson.

Throughout 2013, these twelve safety ambassadors will share their personal reasons for choosing to work safe as part of
an internal safety campaign.

Everythlng you care about... starts WIth SAFETY

STAY SAFE TOGETHER

A\Manitoba
Hydro
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On Environment

Manitoba Hydro endeavours to incorporate environmental awareness

and protection into all our activities. We proactively plan to prevent or
mitigate adverse impacts from our projects. We maintain a corporate-wide
environmental management system registered to ISO 14 001 standards.
We also support environmental research and education initiatives relevant

to our operations.

Amount of generation from renewable sources:

99 percent

Manitoba Hydro Place certified
platinum

In May, Manitoba Hydro's head office building
became the first office tower in Canada to achieve

a platinum certification from the Green Building
Council of Canada for adherence to Leadership in
Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) standards.
Completed in 2009, Manitoba Hydro Place is already
recognized as the most energy efficient office tower
in North America. Compared to conventional office
towers, Manitoba Hydro Place achieves reductions
in energy use of over 70 percent — from over

300 kilowatt hours per square metre to under

85 kilowatt hours — resulting in estimated energy
savings of over $500 000 annually.

These savings were achieved thanks to a unique
building design that utilized leading-edge Power
Smart technologies as well as passive and active
energy efficient systems. These include south-facing
winter gardens to capture the maximum amount of
solar energy during winter months, a solar chimney
to provide ventilation with minimum energy usage

and the extensive use of glass to allow for
natural lighting.

Manitoba Hydro Place also received the 2012
International Green Good Design Award and was
one of 14 developments from around the world to
receive a 2012 Urban Land Institute Global Awards
for Excellence.

Wouskwatim fish habitat enhancement

While construction of the Wuskwatim Generating
Station was completed in the fiscal year, fish

habitat enhancement work related to the project is
continuing. To obtain a Fisheries Act Authorization
to construct and operate the station, the Wuskwatim
Power Limited Partnership submitted a No Net Loss
Plan to Fisheries and Oceans Canada describing how
fish habitat lost during construction would be offset.

Those offsets include building an isthmus to protect
areas of Wuskwatim Lake from wave action, using
rock to construct whitefish spawning reefs and
creating more than 300 boulder clusters on the lake

bottom to create variability in an effort to promote
use by fish. Debris was also removed from an
embayment at the base of what was Taskinigup Falls
and aquatic vegetation planted to create habitat.
An access road used during construction will be
converted into a notched weir in 2013-14 to control
water levels in the embayment while allowing access
for fish.

The effectiveness of the habitat enhancement works
will be monitored in the years following completion
and results will be reported annually to Fisheries and
Oceans Canada.

Enhancing sturgeon stewardship

Manitoba Hydro concluded negotiation of a lake
sturgeon stewardship agreement for the lower
Nelson River with area First Nations and the fisheries
branch of Manitoba Conservation and Water
Stewardship. Signed by Tataskweyak Cree Nation,
War Lake First Nation, York Factory First Nation,

Fox Lake Cree Nation and Shamattawa First Nation,
the agreement establishes the Lower Nelson River
Sturgeon Stewardship Committee — a forum where
all parties will work collaboratively to develop a
regional stewardship plan. Such a plan will set out
comprehensive research and monitoring measures as
well as objectives and strategies for the protection
and enhancement of lake sturgeon populations.

The stewardship committee will also support
Manitoba Hydro’s Lake Sturgeon Stewardship and
Enhancement Program and work in partnership with
Keeyask Cree Nations to protect and enhance lake
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sturgeon populations by incorporating extensive
design features and mitigation measures into the
Keeyask Generating Station Project.

Lower Churchill River confluence
study

An assessment of flow conditions in a known
sturgeon spawning area located at the confluence
of the Little Churchill and Churchill rivers was
completed in the past fiscal year. Initiated by
Manitoba Hydro and the Tataskweyak Cree Nation
in 2010, the Lower Churchill River Confluence

Study examined the role flows in each river play in
sturgeon access to the Little Churchill and described
habitat characteristics important to sturgeon in

the area.

Since 1976, Manitoba Hydro has diverted a portion
of Churchill River flows into the Nelson River for
hydroelectric production purposes. The study
concluded that flows on the Churchill River in
drought conditions do not impact the Little Churchill
and thus do not diminish sturgeon spawning
potential on that river.

Supporting environmental awareness
initiatives

Manitoba Hydro’s Environmental Partnership Fund
supported over 20 community-based projects

in 2012, including the Provincial Rod and Reel
Program run by Fish Futures. The program delivered
a stewardship message as well as rods, reels and
tackle to over 600 students located in northern

Left: Students at Little Black River School learn forest research skills thanks to funding from Manitoba Hydro's Forest
Enhancement Program. Centre: Manitoba Hydro is working to increase the province’s sturgeon population. Right:
Manitoba Hydro’s head office building in downtown Winnipeg is the most energy efficient office tower in North America.




Manitoba. The students were given the opportunity
to participate in a hands-on activity and learn about
fish habitat and biology.

Established in 1993, the Environmental Partnership

Fund provides one-time or multi-year contributions

to support the development and implementation of
environmental education projects with a sustainable
development focus.

With funding from Manitoba Hydro's Forest
Enhancement Program, youth at Little Black

River School developed forest research skills and
reconnected to the surrounding forest in their
community. The students also planted 500 trees on
their school property while learning about many
benefits of planting trees; absorbing greenhouse
gases, producing oxygen, stabilizing the soil and
providing habitat for birds and small mammals.

In 2012, 42 projects from around Manitoba received
funding through the program which will enhance
community forests and support forest education.
Over 113 000 trees have been planted as a result of
the program since 1995.

One of Canada’s greenest

In March, the editors of Canada’s Top 100 Employers
project named Manitoba Hydro one of Canada’s
greenest employers. Competing employers

were evaluated on four main criteria: unique
environmental initiatives and programs; success at
reducing their environmental footprint; the degree
to which employees are involved in these programs;
and the extent to which these initiatives are linked to
the organization’s public identity.

Manitoba Hydro's selection recognized a number of
initiatives, including the corporation’s environmental
management system designed to ensure impacts
from ongoing and future operations are addressed,
work to preserve lake sturgeon, a centralized
facility to ensure proper disposal of both hazardous
and non-hazardous waste, and the Education for
Sustainable Development Grants Program.

On Relationships

Financial Information MFR 4

Manitoba Hydro’s commitment to being an outstanding corporate citizen
is manifest in our work to create positive relationships with our customers,
our employees and their representatives, Aboriginal communities and
other stakeholders. It is also evident in our efforts to recruit a workforce
that reflects the diversity of our province and in the support we provide to
community activities.

Number of Women:

25 percent

employees:

6 463

Persons with
disabilities:
10 percent

Building a skilled and diverse
workforce

Manitoba Hydro was selected as one of the nation’s
leading employers and one of the best diversity
employers for 2013 by the editors of Canada’s Top
100 Employers who recognized the corporation’s
many workplace diversity and inclusiveness
programs.

Aboriginal:
17 percent

Visible minorities:

7 percent

Examples include the corporation’s Northern

and Southern Aboriginal Pre-placement Training
programs, and the Aboriginal Line Trades Training
Program. These programs provide on-the-job
training, academic upgrading, mentorship and
guidance to help Aboriginal candidates acquire the
skills and competencies to successfully move into
Manitoba Hydro’s technical trades training programs.
In the past fiscal year, 26 candidates successfully
completed the pre-placement training and were




selected for the power electrician, operating
technician or line trades training programs. A
combined 29 new trainees were hired into the pre-
placement training programs.

Another example is the corporation’s Acquired Brain
Injury Program. Designed to reintegrate people

who have sustained a severe brain injury into the
workforce, 10 participants have become permanent
employees since the program was first implemented
in 2002. Two individuals began work placements with
Manitoba Hydro as part of the program in the

fiscal year.

Two graduates of the University of Manitoba's
Internationally-Educated Engineers Qualification
(IEEQ) Program were hired into Manitoba Hydro's
Internationally Educated Engineer — Career
Development Program and the Engineer-in-Training
Program during the past fiscal year. Another graduate
of the program was also hired direct to a permanent
professional engineering position. The IEEQ Program
supports engineers who trained abroad in fulfilling
the academic requirements of the Association of

Professional Engineers and Geoscientists of Manitoba.

Manitoba Hydro provides cooperative work terms
and, since 2004, has awarded annual bursaries worth
$1 500 to two students enrolled in the program.

Manitoba Hydro supported continued education in
programs that connect to high demand occupations
in 2012. Fifty-nine individual awards, bursaries and
scholarships valued at over $180 000 were awarded
to students at the high school, college and
university levels.

The corporation has established positive and
mutually beneficial working relationships with

four certified bargaining units - the International
Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 2034, the
Canadian Union of Public Employees Local 998, the
Association of Manitoba Hydro Staff and Supervisory
Employees, and the Communications, Energy and
Paperworkers Union Local 681 — as well as the
Manitoba Hydro Professional Engineers Association.
The corporation also liaises regularly with the Allied
Hydro Council, the official bargaining agent for the
17 international and 19 local unions whose members
are involved in the construction of northern
generation facilities.

Strengthening relationships with
Aboriginal peoples

Manitoba Hydro continued to build relationships
with Aboriginal peoples by addressing the effects of
its operations on their communities, by promoting
and pursuing business relationships with Aboriginal
companies and by fostering an appreciation of
Aboriginal culture in the workplace.

Out of $470 million in contracts awarded to
Manitoba companies in the past fiscal year,

$49 million went to Manitoba Aboriginal companies.
Manitoba Hydro uses procurement strategies

and policy to create business opportunities for
Aboriginal enterprises. These strategies include
restricted tendering or creation of smaller custom
work packages to suit the business capacities of a
community in proximity of the work.

Left: Some of Manitoba Hydro’s Corporate Facilities staff with a Project Search student pictured at centre. Centre: Elder Bill
Compton shared teepee teachings with Manitoba Hydro employees as part of Aboriginal Awareness Week in May. Right:
Manitoba Hydro continued as title sponsor of the Power Smart Winnipeg Santa Parade in November.

In November, the Manitoba Métis Federation
signed an agreement with Manitoba Hydro on
behalf of the primarily Métis trappers from Duck
Bay and Camperville to address all impacts of the
Grand Rapids Project on commercial trapping,
past, present and future. The corporation provided
funds to the Manitoba Métis Federation for
distribution as compensation to individual trappers
or eligible survivors according to the principles in
the agreement.

Over 135 000 kilometres of waterways in the
Saskatchewan, Burntwood, Churchill and Nelson
River systems were patrolled between June

and October 2012, as part of Manitoba Hydro’s
Waterways Management Program. The program
enhances the safety of northern waterways with

its Safe Travel Routes, Debris Management and
Boat Patrol Initiatives. A total of 18 boat crews
employing Aboriginal people from communities in
northern Manitoba complete a wide range of tasks
including placing navigational markers, collecting
potential hazards such as floating logs and old
nets, and assisting resource users.

The corporation celebrated National Aboriginal
Awareness Week in May 2012 with culturally
significant activities including musical
performances by Aboriginal employees of
Manitoba Hydro and teepee teachings from

an Aboriginal elder. In addition, over 1 700
employees have participated in Aboriginal cultural
awareness workshops since the corporation began
offering sessions in 2005.

Supporting communities

In June 2012, eight students representing the first
Canadian class of Project Search graduated from
high school during a ceremony at Manitoba Hydro
Place. Project Search partnered with Manitoba Hydro
to provide high school students with an intellectual
disability the opportunity to gain employability
skills. The 10-month program included class time at
Manitoba Hydro combined with a variety of work
experience placements. Students are given support
through work accommodations and adaptations as
well as on-the-job coaching provided by the Project
Search Program. Year two of the program began in
September 2012.

Manitoba Hydro was a sponsor of the 55Plus
Games held in Arborg from June 12 to 14. The
event attracted nearly 900 participants competing
in events such as bowling, contract bridge, darts,
golf, baseball and track. Organized by the Active
Living Coalition for Older Adults in Manitoba, the
games promote the benefits of healthy living for
older Manitobans and provide opportunities for
regular physical, mental and social activities. The
corporation has also agreed to sponsor the 2013
games to be held in Morris.

The corporation also sponsored a number of other
community events in 2012-13 including the Power
Smart Santa Claus Parade in Winnipeg, the Power
Smart Manitoba Games in Swan River and the
Northern Manitoba Trapper’s Festival in The Pas.
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Corporate governance

The affairs of Manitoba Hydro are overseen by
a board whose members are appointed by the
Lieutenant-Governor in Council of Manitoba.

The board’s primary responsibility is to ensure that
the corporation carries out its legislative mandate.
The board considers the principles of sustainable
development, and Manitoba Hydro’s code of
ethics, in its decisions. Minutes of board meetings
are public and the corporation’s annual report and
quarterly financial statements are tabled in the
legislature. The annual report is approved by a
committee of the Manitoba legislature. The mandate
of the corporation is reviewed by the Crown
Corporations Council.

The Audit Committee of the board reviews
Manitoba Hydro's integrated financial forecast and
makes recommendations to the board. The Audit
Committee reviews whether Manitoba Hydro's
quarterly and annual financial statements present
fairly the financial position and performance in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The Audit Committee confirms whether
management has assessed areas of potential
significant financial and operational risk and

has taken appropriate measures, and the Audit
Committee reviews management’s systems for
ensuring legal compliance. The Audit Committee
obtains opinions from external auditors, internal
auditors and management on the quality of internal
controls, and verifies that external auditors have
performed their duties with sufficient independence
from management.

The Human Resources and Governance Committee
assists the board with succession planning and
human resources issues. The committee reviews the
board’s approach to corporate governance with a
view to best practices and Manitoba

Hydro’s mandate.

All of the members of the board sit on the Planning
Committee, which approves the annual corporate
strategic plan.
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Financial Information MFR 4

Integrity Program

Manitoba Hydro encourages employees and others to speak up on matters of concern without fear of
reprisal, through its Integrity Program. All disclosures under the Integrity Program are protected by strict
rules of confidentiality.

Below is a summary of all disclosures received during 2012-13 which allege wrongdoing as defined in The
Public Interest Disclosure (Whistleblower Protection) Act:

Total number of disclosures received: 22
Number of disclosures ongoing from 2011-12: 4
Number of disclosures acted upon: 26
Number of disclosures not acted upon: 0
Number of investigations commenced/continued: 26
Number of disclosures that were verified: 5
Number of disclosures that were investigated and could not be verified: 11
Number of disclosures carried forward to 2013-14: 10

Corrective action was taken for each verified incident, as follows:
* Two employees were terminated for a conflict of interest.

* One employee was terminated and one employee received a written reprimand for mismanagement
at a work site.

* An employee was terminated for falsifying a mileage claim.
* An employee received a five-day suspension for submitting and entering false information into
the corporation’s records.

* An employee received a three-day suspension for making unwanted sexual advances and comments.
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Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board

Appearing left to right:

Carmen Neufeld
Dr. John Loxley
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
section of the Annual Report provides comments on
the financial results and operational performance of
Manitoba Hydro for the year ended March 31, 2013
with comparative information where applicable. The
MD&A also provides an assessment of Corporate
risks and contains forward-looking statements
regarding conditions and events which may affect
financial performance in the future. Such forward-
looking statements are subject to a number of
uncertainties which are likely to cause actual results
to differ from those anticipated. For context, the
MD&A should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and notes.

As a provincially-owned Crown Corporation,
Manitoba Hydro’s mandate is to provide for the
continuance of a supply of energy to meet the
needs of Manitoba consumers in the most reliable,
economic and environmentally sustainable manner.
In fulfilling its mandate, Manitoba Hydro has
assessed all known risks and has established a
number of goals with related measures and targets.
In addition to a review of financial and operational
performance, the MD&A also reviews Manitoba
Hydro's progress towards achieving its strategic goals.

OVERVIEW

Manitoba Hydro’s consolidated net income from
electricity and natural gas operations for the

fiscal year ended March 31, 2013 was $92 million
compared to $61 million in the previous fiscal year.
The increase in net income of $31 million was largely
attributable to increased revenues from domestic
electricity sales partially offset by higher expenses.
The Wuskwatim Generating Station became
operational during 2012-13 which also contributed
to higher expenses over the previous year.

Consolidated net income of $92 million for the 2013
fiscal year was comprised of net income of $84
million in the electricity sector and net income of

$8 million in the natural gas sector. The gas sector

net income represented a $14 million improvement
over the previous year which was mainly a result

of colder weather during the winter of 2012-13
compared to warmer weather during the winter of
2011-12.

Consolidated net income of $92 million for 2012-13
was higher than the forecasted net income of $60
million largely due to higher than forecast electricity
revenues and lower than forecast power purchases.

Net income of $92 million contributed to the
Corporation’s retained earnings of $2 542 million at
March 31, 2013, the highest level of equity in the
Corporation’s history. The debt to equity and capital
coverage ratios met or exceeded target levels while
the interest coverage ratio was close to the target
level for the year.

The Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board 62" Annual Report

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

The following schedule summarizes Manitoba Hydro's consolidated financial results for the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2013 compared to the previous fiscal year:

Electricity Natural Gas
2012

2013 2012 2013

Consolidated
2013

2012 Change

millions of dollars

Revenues

Manitoba (net of cost of gas sold) 1380 1219 147 132 1527 1351 176

Extraprovincial 353 363 - - 353 363 (10)

1733 1582 147 132 1880 1714 166

Expenses 1662 1515 139 138 1801 1653 148
Net income (loss) before non-controlling interest 71 67 8 (6) 79 61 18
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest 13 - - 13 - 13
Net income (loss) 84 67 8 (6) 92 61 31
Total assets 13928 13203 614 588 14542 13791 751
Retained earnings 2500 2416 42 34 2542 2450 92
Financial Ratios

Debt:Equity 75:25 74:26

Interest coverage 1.15 1.10

Capital coverage 1.25 1.13
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Revenues from consolidated electricity and natural gas
operations totaled $2 062 million in 2012-13 compared
to $1 911 million in the previous fiscal year. After
deducting the cost of gas sold, which is a pass-through
cost with no mark-up to customers by Manitoba Hydro,
revenues amounted to $1 880 million compared to

$1 714 million in the prior year. The $166 million or
9.7% increase in revenues was largely attributable

to increased domestic electricity sales as a result of
increases in electricity rates and colder weather than
the previous year.

Expenses for electricity and natural gas operations
totaled $1 801 million in 2012-13, an increase of $148
million or 8.9% over the previous year. The increase
was largely due to a $66 million increase in finance
expense, a $52 million increase in operating and
administrative expense and a $42 million increase in
depreciation and amortization partially offset by a $13
million decrease in power purchases.

Retained Earnings
3000 qu Fhe year ended March 31
millions of dollars
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Interest Coverage Ratio
2.0 For the year ended March 31 Target

18 1.77

0.0

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest
represents Taskinigahp Power Corporation’s (TPC) 33%
share of the Wuskwatim Power Limited Partnership’s
(WPLP) operating loss of $40 million in 2012-13. The
WPLP has two limited partners, Manitoba Hydro and
TPC, which is owned beneficially by Nisichawayasihk
Cree Nation (NCN), and a General Partner which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Manitoba Hydro.

Net income from electricity and natural gas operations
amounted to $92 million in 2012-13 compared to

$61 million in the previous year. The consolidated net
income increased retained earnings to $2 542 million
at March 31, 2013. As indicated in the accompanying
chart, net income of $92 million resulted in the equity
ratio being 25% at March 31, 2013, which is consistent
with the Corporation’s target of 25%. The capital
coverage ratio of 1.25 exceeded the target of 1.20 and
the interest coverage ratio of 1.15 was slightly lower
than the target of 1.20.

Equity Ratio
30 ~ Forthe year ended March 31 Target

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Capital Coverage Ratio
For the year ended March 31 Target
B 2.28

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
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Financing

Cash provided from operations in 2012-13 was
$589 million, an increase of $22 million from the
previous year. The increase reflects higher net
income than the previous year.

Proceeds from financing arranged by the
Corporation amounted to $807 million in 2012-

13 compared to $698 million in the previous year.
Current year proceeds were used to fund new capital
requirements and to retire long-term debt maturing
during the year.

During 2012-13, the Corporation retired $242 million
of debt comprised of Provincial Advances of $150
million, HydroBonds of $81 million and Manitoba
Hydro-Electric Board Bonds of $11 million.

ELECTRICITY OPERATIONS

Electricity Revenues

Electricity revenues totaled $1 733 million, an
increase of $151 million or 9.5% from the previous
year. The increase was the result of a $161 million
increase in domestic revenues partially offset by a
$10 million decrease in extraprovincial revenues. The
increase in domestic revenues was primarily due to
rate increases and higher usage as a result of colder
weather during the winter heating season. The
decrease in extraprovincial revenues was primarily
due to lower volumes in the U.S. markets.

Electricity Revenues
For the year ended March 31
2000 millions of dollars
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Electricity Rates

In Order 43/13, dated April 26, 2013, the Public
Utilities Board (PUB) provided final approval of the
2.0% and the 2.4% rate increases that had been
approved on an interim basis effective April 1, 2012
and September 1, 2012, respectively.

The PUB had directed in Order 5/12, dated
January 17, 2012, that the 2.9% electricity rate
increase previously approved on an interim basis
effective April 1, 2010 be reduced to 1.9% and
that the associated revenues were to be set aside
as a regulatory deferral until further direction was
provided by the PUB. The cumulative impact of the
1.0% rate reduction for 2010-11 and 2011-12 was
recorded as a reduction to revenues of $23 million
in 2011-12. In Order 43/13, the PUB approved the
Corporation’s application to reinstate the 1.0% rate
deferral as revenue in the 2012-13 fiscal year. The
cumulative impact of this decision was to increase
revenues by $35 million in 2012-13 of which $23
million related to 2010-11 and 2011-12.
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Manitoba Hydro's domestic electricity rates continue
to be the lowest overall in North America. This is
illustrated in the chart below which was excerpted
from utilities” annual reports and United States
Department of Energy and Edison Electric Institute

publications.

Retail Price of Electricity
"r cents/kWh (Cdn)

10.1

The breakdown of electricity revenues by customer segment is as follows:

Electricity Revenues and Kilowatt Hour Sales
For the year ended March 31

2013 2012 % change 2013 2012 % change

millions of dollars millions of kWh

Manitoba

Residential 554 501 10.6 7 334 6930 5.8
General service 465 432 7.6 6877 6 660 3.3
Industrial 299 283 5.7 7 266 7 180 1.2
Other revenue 39 26 50.0 - - -
1357 1242 9.3 21 477 20770 34
1% rate deferral 23 (23) - = - -
Manitoba revenue 1380 1219 13.2 21477 20770 3.4
Extraprovincial 353 363 (2.8) 9 087 10 244 (11.3)
1733 1582 9.5 30564 31014 (1.5)
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Revenues from electricity sales in Manitoba

totaled $1 380 million in 2012-13, an increase of
$161 million from the previous year. Electricity
consumption in Manitoba was 21 477 million
kilowatt-hours, 707 million kilowatt-hours higher
than the previous year. The increase in consumption
was mainly due to higher heating loads as a result of
colder winter weather in 2012-13.

Revenues from sales to residential customers for
2012-13 amounted to $554 million, an increase of
$53 million or 10.6% from the previous year. The
increase was primarily a result of a higher heating
load from colder winter weather and the rate
increases implemented during the year. At March
31, 2013 the number of residential customers was
480 254, an increase of 5 593 or 1.2% compared to
the previous year.

Revenues from general service customers amounted
to $465 million in 2012-13, an increase of $33
million or 7.6% from the previous year. The increase
was mainly attributable to the rate increases
implemented during the year, colder winter weather
and an increase of 488 customers.

Revenues from large industrial customers amounted
to $299 million, an increase of 5.7% or $16 million
from the previous year. The increase was mainly the
result of rate increases implemented during the year
and increased consumption.

Electricity Expenses
For the year ended March 31

[l Residential

. General service

B Extraprovincial
Industrial

Other

Electricity Revenue
For the year ended March 31, 2013

33%

27%

20%

18%

2%

Extraprovincial revenues totaled $353 million in
2012-13, a decrease of $10 million from the previous
year. The decrease reflects lower U.S. and Canadian
sales volumes resulting from increased Manitoba
load partially offset by higher export prices. Of the
total extraprovincial revenues, $312 million or 88%
was derived from the U.S. market, while $41 million
or 12% was from sales to Canadian markets.

Electricity Expenses

Electricity expenses totaled $1 662 million for
2012-13, an increase of $147 million or 9.7% over
the previous year. The increase in expenses was
primarily the result of a $67 million increase in
finance expense, a $50 million increase in operating
and administrative expenses, a $41 million increase
in depreciation and amortization partially offset by a
$13 million decrease in power purchases.

2013 2012 % change
millions of dollars

Operating and administrative 469 419 1.9
Finance expense 452 385 17.4
Depreciation and amortization 394 353 11.6
Water rentals and assessments 118 119 (0.8)
Fuel and power purchased 133 146 (8.9)
Capital and other taxes 87 84 3.6
Corporate allocation 9 9 -

1662 1515 9.7
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Operating and administrative expenses are expenditures, the financing costs associated with the Hydraulic Generation
comprised primarily of labour, material and overhead = Wuskwatim Generating Station coming into service 20 Zﬁ,r,;tﬁ i?i:,\?;ded Morch 31
costs associated with operating, maintaining during the year and a weaker Canadian dollar.
and administering the facilities and programs 349 310 Lip 340
of the Corporation. In 2012-13, operating and Depreciation and amortization expense amounted
administrative expenses for electric operations to $394 million in 2012-13, an increase of $41
amounted to $469 million, an increase of $50 million or 11.6% from the previous year. The increase
million over 2011-12. The increase in operating and  was mainly attributable to new additions to plant
administrative expenses attributable to accounting and equipment coming into service, including the
changes implemented during the year was $30 Wouskwatim Generating Station.
million and the increase in employee benefits
resulting from changes in discount rates was $12 Water rentals and assessments amounted to $118
million. After adjusting for these accounting and million in 2012-13, a decrease of $1 million from > 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
discount rate changes, the increase in operating and  the previous year. The decrease reflects a small
administrative expenses for 2012-13 was $8 million reduction in other fees and assessments. Hydraulic
or 1.9% as compared to the previous year. generation amounted to 33.1 billion kilowatt-hours
in 2012-13 which is the same as 2011-12. Electricity Capita| Expenditures Electricity Capital Expenditures
The following graph provides a comparison of the Expenditures for capital construction totaled 1200 :?,',thsyffa&ﬁ,ﬁid March 31 s
growth in operating and administrative expenses, Fuel and power purchased includes fuel for the $1 003 million in 2012-13 compared to $1 093 1100
including and excluding accounting changes, as thermal generating stations and remote diesel sites, million during the previous fiscal year. Capital 1000
compared to changes in the consumer price index purchases of wind power from the independently- expenditures for ongoing plant and equipment 900
(CPI). This demonstrates that when excluding owned St. Leon and St. Joseph wind farms and from requirements, referred to as base capital, amounted 800
accounting changes Manitoba Hydro has managed electricity imports. Fuel and power purchased was to $429 million, a decrease of $124 million 700
its operating and administrative expenses consistent ~ $133 million in 2012-13, a decrease of $13 million compared to the previous year. The decrease was :gg
with inflation even with the in-service of the or 8.9% over 2011-12. The decrease in power attributable to lower expenditures on generation 200
Wouskwatim generating station. purchased was primarily the result of lower system and substation upgrades. 300
merchant purchases due to reduced arbitrage 200
Operating & Administrative Expenses opportunities between markets and credits received Major new generation and transmission capital 100
For the year ended March 31 — - - . . . L 0
6500 (  Millions of dolars on transmission rights due to higher than expected expenditures of $574 million included $169 million 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
congestion. related to future Keeyask and Conawapa generation [ Base Capital ] New Generation & Transmission
facilities, $109 million related to the Bipole llI
$450 [~ Capital and other taxes amounted to $87 million in project, $101 million towards the Pointe du Bois
2012-13, an increase of $3 million or 3.6% compared Spillway replacement and station rehabilitation, $84
sa00 - to the previous year. The change was mainly due to million for the Riel Station, $78 million related to
/ increased capital taxes related to additional capital the Wuskwatim Generating Station and transmission
investment. line and $28 million for upgrades to the Kelsey
$350 [~ Generating Station.
$300 L L L ! Electricity Expenses

2010 2011 2012 2013 For the year ended March 31, 2013

[l Operating and administrative 28%

O&A including accounting changes
O&A excluding accounting changes
e 2009/10 O&A escalated for CPI

. Finance expense 28%

[ Depreciation and amortization  24%

Finance expense totaled $452 million in 2012-13, an Fuel and power purchased 8%
inc